
 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 

ASSEMBLY 
 

Wednesday, 16 May 2007 - 7:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Barking 

 
To: Members of the Council of the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 
 Chair:   To be appointed 
 Deputy-Chair:  To be appointed 
 
 

        
       R. A. Whiteman 

        Chief Executive 
 
 

Contact Officer: Valerie Dowdell 
Tel. 020 8227 2756 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: valerie.dowdell@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
1. Appointment of Chair and Deputy Chair   
 
 (a) Apologies for Absence  

 
2. Declaration of Members' Interest   
 
 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare 

any personal or prejudicial interest they may have in any matter which is to be 
considered at this meeting.  
 

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 4 April 
2007 (Pages 1 - 9)  

 
4. Presentation by the Corporate Director of Customer Services on the 'Tell 

Us' initiative   
 
5. Report of the Chief Executive: The Council's Statutory Officers (Pages 11 

- 12)  
 



 

6. Report of the Governance Working Party   
 
 See supplementary agenda  

 
7. Report of the Corporate Director of Resources: Annual Review of the 

Council Constitution (Pages 13 - 24)  
 
8. Report of the Corporate Director of Resources: Appointments to the 

Political Structure and Other Bodies 2007/2008   
 
 See supplementary agenda   

 
9. Motions (Pages 25 - 26)  
 
 To debate and vote on a motion submitted in accordance with Part B, Article 2, 

paragraph 15 of the Council Constitution.  
 

10. Report of the Executive - Recent Business (Pages 27 - 88)  
 
11. Leader's Question Time   
 
12. General Question Time   
 
13. Final Report of the Adult Education 60+ Scrutiny Panel (Pages 89 - 97)  
 
14. Annual Report of the Executive 2006/07 (Pages 99 - 100)  
 
15. Annual Report of the Ceremonial Council 2006/2007 (Page 101)  
 
16. Annual Report of the Scrutiny Management Board 2006/2007 (Pages 103 - 

106)  
 
17. Annual Report of the Development Control Board 2006/2007 (Page 107)  
 
18. Annual Report of the Licensing and Regulatory Board 2006/2007 (Pages 

109 - 110)  
 
19. Annual Report of the Personnel Board 2006/2007 (Page 111)  
 
20. Annual Report of the Standards Committee 2006/2007 (Pages 113 - 114)  
 
21. Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2006/2007 (Pages 115 - 116)  
 
22. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
23. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 



 

Private Business 
 

The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Assembly, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended).   There are no such items at the time of preparing this 
agenda.  

 
24. Any confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
ASSEMBLY 

 
Wednesday, 4 April 2007 

(7:00  - 8:45 pm) 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor J Davis (Chair) 
Councillor W F L Barns (Deputy Chair) 

 
 Councillor A Agrawal Councillor J L Alexander
 Councillor Mrs S J Baillie Councillor R J Barnbrook
 Councillor G J Bramley Councillor R J Buckley
 Councillor Ms E Carpenter Councillor S Carroll
 Councillor H J Collins Councillor N Connelly
 Councillor J R Denyer Councillor R W Doncaster
 Councillor C J Fairbrass Councillor M A R Fani
 Councillor Mrs K J Flint Councillor S S Gill
 Councillor D Hemmett Councillor Mrs D Hunt
 Councillor I S Jamu Councillor S Kallar
 Councillor Mrs C A Knight Councillor Miss T A Lansdown
 Councillor J E McDermott Councillor M E McKenzie
 Councillor Mrs P A Northover Councillor W W Northover
 Councillor E O Obasohan Councillor B Poulton
 Councillor Mrs J E Rawlinson Councillor Mrs L A Reason
 Councillor Mrs V Rush Councillor L Rustem
 Councillor L A Smith Councillor Miss N E Smith
 Councillor J Steed Councillor Mrs P A Twomey
 Councillor G M Vincent Councillor L R Waker
 Councillor P T Waker Councillor Mrs M M West
 Councillor J R White 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Councillor R W Bailey Councillor Miss C L Doncaster
 Councillor Mrs S A Doncaster Councillor N S S Gill
 Councillor J K Jarvis Councillor R C Little
 Councillor M A McCarthy Councillor D A Tuffs 
 
92. Minutes (28 February 2007)  
 
 Agreed.  

 
93. Presentation on Docklands Light Railway by Richard de Cani, Head of 

Development and Planning, Docklands Light Railway  
 
 Richard de Cani, Head of Development and Planning, Docklands Light Railway, gave a 

presentation on the progress of the proposed DLR extension to Dagenham Dock, 
highlighting the primary objectives for the scheme, key constraints and issues that need 
to be taken into account.   He confirmed that DLR are looking at the possibility of an 
extension to Chequers Corner and Dagenham Heathway, as requested by the Council. 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



 
Members raised various points, including: 
 
• Making the station at Dagenham Dock accessible to future leisure facilities in the 

area; 
 
• Timescales for completion of the scheme; 
 
• Expressed reservations about the need to extend the scheme to the Heathway as it 

is well served by other means of transport 
 
which Mr de Cani responded to and the Chair thanked him for his presentation.  
 

94. Local Issue - 2005/2006 Joint Audit and Inspection Letter  
 
 Janette Whitfield, Barking and Dagenham’s Relationship Manager from the Audit 

Commission gave a presentation on the draft 2005/2006 Audit and Inspection Letter, 
the main messages for the Council being: 
 
• Barking and Dagenham Council is performing well, as evidenced by the fact that it 

has been classified as three star (up from two star) in its current level of 
performance under the Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA); 

 
• The Council’s auditors issued an unqualified opinion on the Council’s 2005/2006 

accounts and an unqualified value for money conclusion; and  
 
• Improvements in service areas have been recognised in recent inspection and 

review scores 
 
Ms Whitfield also gave details of actions needed by the Council arising from this report. 
 
In terms of the timing of the document, it was noted that it was slightly later than normal 
because of the activities around the CPA Inspection, as it was recommended that 
feedback from residents on their satisfaction levels and indicators produced by Mori be 
included.   There will be a similar reporting timeframe for next year. 
 
Councillor Barnbrook requested that he be sent a hard copy of the full audited accounts 
for Barking and Dagenham. 
 
The Chair thanked Ms Whitfield for her presentation on behalf of the Assembly.  
 

95. Customer Care in Pupil and Family Support, Children's Services  
 
 Anna Harskamp, Head of Pupil and Family Support, gave a presentation on customer 

care within her division, which delivers services to children and young people and those 
who live and work with them.   Details were given of the service areas within pupil and 
family support, their priorities, within the context of community and Council priorities, 
performance relating to school admissions, complaints and attendance and teenage 
pregnancy. 
 
 
 

Page 2



Members raised issues relating to sex education for primary school children and 
teenage pregnancy which Ms Harskamp said she would take forward with her 
colleagues.  
 

96. Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel:  Members' Allowances 2007/08  
 
 Derek Johnson, Chair of the Independent Remuneration Panel, introduced the report, 

giving Members some background to the work of the Panel, and requested that the 
Assembly adopt the scheme. 
 
Councillor Fairbrass thanked the Panel for their hard work.  He also commented that he 
hoped the local media would now correct their statement that the increase to the basic 
allowance payable would be 6%, when in fact it will be 2.7%. 
 
Agreed the Members’ Allowance Scheme for 2007/08 as set out in Appendix A to the 
report to take effect from 1 April 2007, in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel.  
 

97. Report of the Executive - Recent Business  
 
 Agreed to formally adopt the draft Statement of Principles policy document – Gambling 

Act 2005, as appended to the report.  
 

98. Motions  
 
 Motion 1 BME Meetings 

 
This motion was withdrawn because, within the framework of the existing 
Constitution, it is not a matter for decision of the Council Assembly but for 
officers of the Council. 

 
Motion 2 Closure of Residential Care Homes 
 
 Received the following motion moved by Councillor Rustem and seconded 

by Councillor Barnbrook: 
 
 “That Brocklebank Lodge and Lakeside (sic.) residential care 

homes should not be closed.” 
 
 The following amendment to the motion was moved by Councillor 

Fairbrass and seconded by Councillor L Smith: 
 
 “That we await the completion of the review of residential 

accommodation.” 
 
 The amendment was put to the vote and by a majority vote was agreed. 
 
 Agreed, that we await the completion of the review of residential 

accommodation. 
 
 
 

Page 3



Motion 3 Bidding for Housing Stock 
 
 Received the following motion moved by Councillor Buckley and 

seconded by Councillor Barnbrook: 
 
 “That the bidding system should exclude anyone outside the 

borough from bidding for the housing stock in Barking and 
Dagenham.” 

 
 The following amendment to the motion was moved by Councillor L Smith 

and seconded by Councillor Fairbrass: 
 
 “We adhere to our current policy that only persons resident in the 

borough and on our waiting list or who have a long standing local 
connection may bid for property.” 

 
 The amendment was put to the vote and by a majority vote was agreed. 
 
 Agreed, that we adhere to our current policy that only persons resident in 

the borough and on our waiting list or who have a long standing local 
connection may bid for property. 

 
Motion 4 Introduction of Sarah’s Law 
 
 Received the following motion moved by Councillor Mrs Knight and 

seconded by Councillor Barnbrook: 
 
 “That the council accept in principle and lead the way in introducing 

Sarah’s law in the borough.” 
 
 The following amendment to the motion was moved by Councillor 

Alexander and seconded by Councillor Fairbrass: 
 
 “That this is a matter for Parliament to decide, and that the motion 

is noted.” 
 

The amendment was put to the vote and by a majority vote was agreed. 

Councillor Connolly asked that his vote for Sarah’s Law and against the 
amendment be recorded. 

Agreed, that this is a matter for Parliament to decide, and that the motion 
is noted. 

Motion 5 Member Representation on Wards 

Received the following motion moved by Councillor Barnbrook and 
seconded by Councillor Buckley: 

 “That the council reject the notion of having ‘one member wards’ – 
relating to Chapter 3 of the local government white paper ‘Stronger 
and Prosperous communities’.” 

Page 4



 
 The following amendment to the motion was moved by Councillor 

Fairbrass and seconded by Councillor L Smith: 
 
 “That this Assembly accepts the recommendation of the 

Governance Working Party (GWP) of 30 January 2007 confirmed 
by the GWP of 23 February.   The recommendation of the GWP is 
that we oppose the introduction of one Member Wards.   Members 
are asked to note that because of time limits constraints on the 
White Paper consultation this recommendation has already been 
sent to the appropriate body.” 

 
 The amendment was put to the vote and by a majority vote was agreed. 
 
 Agreed, that this Assembly accepts the recommendation of the 

Governance Working Party (GWP) of 30 January 2007 confirmed by the 
GWP of 23 February.   The recommendation of the GWP is that we 
oppose the introduction of one Member Wards.   Members are asked to 
note that because of time limits constraints on the White Paper 
consultation this recommendation has already been sent to the 
appropriate body.  

 
99. General Question Time  
 
 Question: Councillor Fairbrass said that Councillor Barnbrook has published the 

following during the last ten months: 
 
(1) That the Labour Party had organised an Africans for Essex campaign 
 
(2) That this Council has given preference to asylum seekers with reference to 

housing accommodation 
 
(3) That Westminster Council provides payments of up to £100,000, with a minimum 

of £50,000, for immigrants to purchase properties in this Borough. 
 
Councillor Fairbrass went on to say: 
 
The fact is that the Labour Party has never organised any such campaign 
 
The fact is that this Council has never given preference to asylum seekers 
 
The fact is that Westminster Council has not provided payments of up to £100,000, with 
a minimum of £50,000, for immigrants to purchase properties in Barking and Dagenham
 
These true facts have been clearly pointed out to Councillor Barnbrook in previous 
meetings of this Assembly.   Will he now take this opportunity to withdraw his inaccurate 
statements?” 
 
Response: 
(1) Councillor Barnbrook responded that he had no intention of apologising with 

reference to Councillor Fairbrass’ comments, either on the grants from 
Westminster Council or the ‘Africans for Essex’.   In fact these questions should 

Page 5



be asked of Jon Cruddas MP, because on his own website he said that the 
census figures for 2001 are out of date and he has stated both to the media and 
on his website: “That in the last 3 years 5,000 white people have left his 
constituency to be replaced by 5,000 Africans”. 
 
Councillor Barnbrook went on to say they have never said that Barking & 
Dagenham Labour party had instigated a project ‘Africans for Essex’, however 
the Labour government has been in power since 1997 and the demographic 
change in Barking & Dagenham lays at a Labour government’s controlled policy. 
 
The term ‘Africans for Essex’ that they used in their literature was created by 
residents living in Village ward during their last by-election. 

 
(2) In response to Councillor Fairbrass’ question on asylum-seekers being given 

preference; in the last 3 years the mass influx into the borough of asylum-
seekers/immigrants from Eastern Europe is such a large amount in comparison 
to 5-10 years ago indicates that preference has been given to these new people.   
Councillor Barnbrook quoted from a recent press report ‘250 new homes a day 
are needed to house the influx of immigrants’.   He suggested that the electorate 
of Barking & Dagenham be asked what has become of their plight over that of 
these new people moving into the borough. 

 
(3) Councillor Barnbrook concluded that literature relating to Westminster Council’s 

£100,000 grants was not stating that people moving from Westminster to Barking 
& Dagenham had received £100,000 grants but by a report in the media that 
grants up to £100,000 would be available to residents of Westminster to move 
into the Thames Gateway development of which Barking & Dagenham is a part, 
with 15,000 new homes being built in this part of the development.   They first 
heard of this scheme from a newspaper report from last year by Katherine 
Barney printed in the London Lite.   You cannot always trust the media and she 
may have been lying but it’s very unlikely. 

 
Question: Councillor Rustem said that considering the Labour party is condemning the 
loss of life since WW11.   As a result of military conflict.   It must therefore be presumed 
that this Labour council therefore considers that no more lives of brave soldiers should 
be lost in either Iraq or Afghanistan as a result of this governments wretched cow-
towing subservience to American foreign policy which has so far, according to BBC 
figures, resulted in 132 British soldiers killed in Iraq since 2003 with a further forty killed 
in Afghanistan since 2001.   Undoubtedly such military actions at the behest of Blair on 
behalf of the U.S. played a large part in “all those innocents…who have died” in the 
7/7 attack in 2005.   Is it therefore the case that this council would support the view that 
is held by the vast majority of British people that UK troops in Iraq and Afghanistan 
should be brought home? 
 

Response: Councillor Fairbrass said that he had a few comments to make 
before he answered the question.   The Labour Party has not condemned the 
loss of life since WW2, what this Labour Council has done is to build a Peace 
and Memorial Garden.   That garden commemorates all those innocents who 
died or suffered as the result of military conflict during WW2 and up to the 
present time, and also includes all victims of the recent terrorist attacks in 
London.   It is also a memorial to over six million victims of the Holocaust.   The 
garden was recently vandalised, that is what this Labour Council condemned. 

Page 6



 
With respect to the conflicts in Iraq and Afghanistan, Councillor Fairbrass said he 
would remind Councillor Rustem that in 1998 Al Quaida issued a Fatwa that said 
it was permissible to kill American civilians.   On 9 September 2001 2,973 
civilians were killed in New York, 67 of those victims were British.   The second 
Gulf war started 18 months later in March 2003.   As for Afghanistan, our military 
are there as part of a NATO force drawn from across Europe and the USA.   
They are there in support of a democratically elected Government. 
 
A young soldier, 18 years old, was killed on Monday.   He would have been 
14/15 years old when the invasion of Iraq took place, so he must have had some 
idea of where he might be sent.   He was a volunteer, a trained soldier doing his 
duty and I am sure we all regret his death.   We wish all our troops well and hope 
for these conflicts soon to be over but our military are doing what they are trained 
to do.   Guns are not toys, as some of us who have served in the armed forces 
can testify, they are used to kill. 
 
Councillor Fairbrass went on to say that the House of Commons or political party 
meetings are the places to put this question, not this Council, so his answer to 
the question is no. 
 
In conclusion, Councillor Fairbrass said he thought it was sickening that 
Councillor Rustem had the gall to mention 7/7.   His was the party that published 
pictures of the bus bomb wreckage in a by-election leaflet.   His was the party 
that made a disgusting attempt to exploit people’s death and people’s crippling 
injuries for votes. 

 
Question: Councillor Buckley said that a recent article in the Times reported that 
Government both Centrally and Locally spend millions of pounds by employing 
consultants that have no little or no benefit for the job they are employed to do.   With 
this in mind can the Council confirm the amount that it has cost them to employ 
Kendrich Ash to look into the transport services and what financial benefit it has 
provided. 
 
 Response: Councillor McKenzie responded that the Council is fully committed to 

ensuring value for money across all budgets and departments.   This is 
especially the case when we choose to procure the services of consultants or 
private companies.   The contract with Kendric Ash who, in his opinion, is doing a 
good job, is a performance related contract that ensures that if they do not 
achieve the agreed targets they simply do not get paid.   The maximum the 
Council will pay Kendric Ash is £258,624 per annum for three years.   It is 
important to note that this payment is strictly performance related and unless 
bankable efficiencies are gained (whilst maintaining the level of service) of this 
amount or more the payment will be reduced or stopped completely.   Therefore, 
the net cost of the service to the Council is zero and if the current indications on 
performance are correct/maintained, the project will release significant bankable 
efficiencies that can be used in other vital areas to the benefit of residents of 
Barking and Dagenham. 

 
Question: Councillor R Gill asked if the appropriate Executive Member could please 
comment on the controversial plans by Barking and Dagenham PCT to sell off part of 
the Barking Hospital land for housing in Longbridge Ward? 

Page 7



 
 Response: Councillor Fairbrass flagged up that he had given a detailed 

response to a question about plans for Barking Hospital at the last Assembly 
meeting.   He went on to say that, because of a shortage of capital funding, the 
Primary Care Trust is considering selling part of this site.   He personally 
opposes this move and the Council will be taking a stand when they have had an 
opportunity to discuss the matter fully. 

 
Councillor Fairbrass said that this land needs to be retained for future expansion 
as Barking and Dagenham is a growing Borough with new housing and a new 
population.   The original Barking Hospital was built by public subscription by the 
people of Barking.   He thought it was worth exploring whether a covenant exists, 
similar to the one for the Barking UEL site which restricted its use for educational 
purposes, that would restrict the use of the hospital site for medical purposes. 
 
Consultation on the proposals end in June and Councillor Fairbrass urged 
Members to get their constituents to register their opposition by completing forms 
that are available at the Town Hall and sending them back.   This must be done 
by public opinion as well as by the Council. 

 
Question: Councillor Vincent asked if the Executive Member for Environment could 
please outline what actions the Council is proposing to tackle the current abuse of the 
non right turning in Salisbury Avenue at the junction of Upney Lane in Longbridge Ward.
 
 Response: Councillor McKenzie thanked Councillor Vincent for raising the 

matter as it gave him an opportunity to inform the Assembly that the Council will 
be moving towards seeking authority to enforce against ‘moving traffic offences’ 
such as banned right turns and abuse of no-entry signs.   There is a need for this 
to be ratified by the Council to commence the process and reports will be 
submitted in due course.   Once the Council has this power it will be possible to 
utilise CCTV units to undertake enforcement. 

 
 At present responsibility for enforcement of the offences mentioned rests with the 

Police service and he understands that enforcement has been carried out 
against drivers making illegal manoeuvres.   However, Councillor McKenzie 
concluded that when considering the problems in these sorts of locations we 
need to be careful that we do not replace one problem with another.   Some 
drivers do not make the illegal right turn but instead turn left and undertake a u-
turn further along Upney Lane, which is possibly more of a hazard. 

 
Question: Councillor P Waker asked if the Executive Member for Community Safety 
could please comment on the crime figures for the Borough. 
 
 Response: Councillor Mrs Rush thanked the Member for his question and said 

she was delighted to report that, on the basis of the latest information from the 
Metropolitan Police for the year ending 18 March, Barking and Dagenham is 
expected to end the year with a reduction in crime of 5.9%.   This compares very 
well with London as a whole, which is expecting a 6% reduction on the same 
basis.   Further cause for celebration rests in the fact that this success has 
largely been achieved in the last six/seven months through strong partnership 
activity around crime. 

 

Page 8



 There is still some work to do around residential burglary, which ends the year 
around 7.5% up on last year, but there again we are on the right track, having 
ended the year at that level from a point in July 2006 where we faced a 23% 
increase on the same period in the previous year.   Theft from a motor vehicle is 
unchanged and remains at 24%.   The Borough Commander is clear that any 
increase is a concern, especially for the victims of crime that it represents, but 
there is cause for considerable confidence that this impetus for reduction will 
continue in the months ahead. 

 
 In particular the Police are to be commended for their work on detections, which 

sees some particularly noteworthy successes: for example, 37% detection rate 
for domestic violence, compared to a target of 32% and a 23% performance last 
year, for what is our biggest crime of violence in the Borough. 

 
On this basis the future looks bright for continued crime reduction in Barking and 
Dagenham.   Councillor Mrs Rush said we have gone as a Borough from being 
the third worst in London to being the eighteenth best.   We are now one of the 
top five most improved boroughs in London and she is proud to be part of a 
partnership that pulls out these types of successes.  

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 

 
16 MAY 2007 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
Title: The Council’s Statutory Officers 
 

For Decision 

Summary:  
 
There are a number of statutory and regulatory requirements to appoint certain officer 
roles within the Council. However, there are three specific posts, known collectively as the 
statutory officers, that the law stipulates must be approved by full council, which are 
charged with the corporate management and governance of the Council. These are:  Head 
of Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer (known as the Section 151 Officer) and Monitoring 
Officer. These officers designate deputizing arrangements for the three roles.  
 
The Chief Executive, who is the Head of Paid Service, has arranged that John Tatam, and 
since last month Roger Luxton, deputize the Head of Paid Service role as the Deputy 
Chief Executive 
 
As allowed by regulations, the Chief Executive has also been the Chief Financial Officer 
over the past year, with Joe Chesterton, Divisional Director of Corporate Finance, 
deputising.  In 2006/7 Muhammad Saleem, Divisional Director of Legal Services, was the 
Monitoring Officer with Robin Hanton, Group Legal Manager, deputising.   
 
This report recommends a change to the appointment of Chief Financial Officer and 
advises of changes to designated deputy positions in respect of the S151 and Monitoring 
Officer roles. 
 
Wards Affected: None 
 
Implications: 
Financial:  
None. The deputizing arrangements do not incur any additional remuneration. 
 
Legal: 
The legal implications of this report are covered in the substantive sections. 
 
Risk Management: 
The changes lessen any potential risk in that all six positions will be held at senior 
management (JNC) level. 
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity: 
Not applicable 
 
Crime and Disorder: 
Not applicable 
 
Options Appraisal: 
Not applicable 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 11



 
Recommendation(s) 
 
The Assembly are asked to: 
 

(1) appoint the Divisional Director of Corporate Finance, as the Chief Financial 
Officer with immediate effect,  

(2) note that the Chief Executive and Divisional Director of Legal Services remain as 
Head of Paid Service and Monitoring Officer respectively, and 

(3) note that the three statutory officers have designated the following officers to 
deputise in their absence: 
• Roger Luxton, Corporate Director of Children’s Services and Deputy Chief 

Executive for the Head of Paid Service 
• Patrick Clackett, Head of Strategic Finance & Audit, for the Chief Financial 

Officer 
• Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy & Partnerships) for the 

Monitoring Officer. 
 

Reason 
 
To regularise the statutory positions following recent appointments and to recognise these 
important roles at Chief Officer and Head of Service Level. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Rob Whiteman 

Title: 
Chief Executive 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2789 
Fax: 020 8227 2279 
E-mail: rob.whiteman@lbbd.gov.uk  
 

 
Consultees 
 
The Leader & Deputy Leader of the Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report:  None 

Page 12



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
 
Title: Annual Review of the Council Constitution 
 

For Decision 

Summary:  
 
The agenda contains reports on the Governance review and Statutory Officers, which will 
result in some changes to the Constitution. Other changes requiring Assembly approval are 
shown on the attached schedule.  
 
The changes, once agreed, will be incorporated in a revised version of the Constitution which 
will be circulated to all Members of the Council, Corporate Directors and Heads of Service, 
and will replace the existing document. This will also include any administrative changes. 
 
The Constitution is also available on the Internet with a summary of its content. 
 
Wards Affected: None 
 
 
Implications:  
Financial: Although there are no specific implications for the Council the revisions include a 
number of changes to the Financial Rules set out in Part D of the Constitution as summarised 
in the schedule. 
 
Legal: 
The Local Government Act 2000 requires Council’s to produce, maintain and regularly review 
the Constitution document which sets out the rules, codes, protocols and schemes by which 
the Council operates. 
 
Risk Management: 
Any delay in updating the Constitution puts at risk the functions and business of the Council 
being conducted in an effective, efficient and lawful manner. 
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity: 
As this report does not concern a new or revised policy there were no specific or adverse 
impacts. 
 
Crime and Disorder: None 
 
Options Appraisal:  Not applicable 
 
Recommendation: 
 
To agree the changes to the Constitution, based on acceptance of the other reports referred 
to and the amendments set out in the schedule. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 13



Contact Officer: 
John Dawe 

Title: 
Group Manager, 
Democratic Services 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2135 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: john.dawe@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
Consultations:  
 
The following were consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 
• Chief Executive 
• Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy & Partnerships) 
• Divisional Director of Legal Services 
 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
• Council Constitution 
 

Page 14



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 R
ev

is
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

 
C

ou
nc

il 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
M

ay
 2

00
7 

 
A

rt
ic

le
/P

ar
t 

Pa
ge

  
(C

ur
re

nt
 

C
on

st
itu

tio
n)

 

D
et

ai
ls

  

 P
ar

t A
 - 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
an

d 
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
B

oa
rd

 P
ag

e 
   

 A8
      

 
D

el
et

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

nt
en

ce
 a

nd
 in

se
rt

: 
 ‘T

ho
se

 in
te

re
st

ed
 p

ar
tie

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

m
ad

e 
re

le
va

nt
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 to

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

w
ill 

be
 a

llo
w

ed
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

’. 

  P
ar

t B
 –

 M
em

be
r M

ee
tin

gs
 G

en
er

al
 

       

  B3
        

  C
al

en
da

r a
nd

 T
im

in
g 

of
 M

ee
tin

gs
 

 A
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 5
.4

 to
 re

ad
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

Th
e 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

of
 th

e 
A

ss
em

bl
y 

m
ay

 b
e 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
ea

rli
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t o
f t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 
M

em
be

rs
 p

re
se

nt
. A

ny
 u

nf
in

is
he

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
 w

ill 
be

 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 th
e 

ne
xt

 m
ee

tin
g.

   
 

 P
ar

t B
 - 

A
rti

cl
e 

2 
(T

he
 A

ss
em

bl
y)

 
 

 
B

16
 

 U
nd

er
 th

e 
he

ad
in

g 
of

 G
en

er
al

 Q
ue

st
io

ns
 to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
 ‘T

ha
t i

nd
iv

id
ua

l c
on

st
itu

en
cy

 is
su

es
 c

an
no

t b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
’. 

 
 

P
ar

t B
 - 

A
rti

cl
e 

2 
(T

he
 A

ss
em

bl
y)

 
 

B
16

 
 

 In
cl

us
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

at
 1

3.
5:

 
 

Page 15



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

‘S
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

ny
 d

is
cr

et
io

n 
ex

er
ci

se
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ha
ir,

 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
rig

ht
 fo

r t
he

 M
em

be
r w

ho
 a

sk
ed

 th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

to
 a

sk
 a

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 q

ue
st

io
n 

no
r i

s 
th

er
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r a
ny

 d
eb

at
e 

on
 th

e 
is

su
e.

 T
he

 e
xc

ep
tio

n 
to

 th
is

 is
 a

ny
 c

as
e 

w
he

re
, i

n 
th

e 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ha

ir,
  

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f c
om

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

ab
ou

t a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

na
m

ed
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ar
ra

nt
s 

an
 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 o

f r
ep

ly
 b

y 
th

at
 M

em
be

r i
f h

e/
sh

e 
so

 
w

is
he

s’
. 

 
 

P
ar

t B
- A

rti
cl

e 
5B

 (S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

s)
 

  
 

 
B

33
 

 
A

m
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

2.
4 

as
 fo

llo
w

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

an
y 

re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

is
su

es
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
an

d 
th

at
 a

 p
ar

tn
er

 / 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
is

 
al

w
ay

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
co

-o
pt

ed
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p:
 

 ‘2
.4

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

s 
ca

n 
co

-o
pt

 n
on

-c
ou

nc
illo

rs
 to

 jo
in

 
a 

P
an

el
 a

nd
 a

re
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
th

at
, 

al
on

gs
id

e 
ot

he
r e

xt
er

na
l p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fo

r t
he

 to
pi

c 
in

 q
ue

st
io

n,
 a

 
pa

rtn
er

/v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

is
 a

lw
ay

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
co

-o
pt

ed
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p.
 S

uc
h 

co
-

op
te

es
 c

an
no

t h
av

e 
vo

tin
g 

rig
ht

s 
un

le
ss

 th
ey

 a
re

 a
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
co

-o
pt

ed
 m

em
be

r f
or

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
re

la
te

d 
m

at
te

rs
.  

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

s 
ca

n 
al

so
 ta

ke
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 p
er

so
ns

 o
r o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, o

r p
ar

tn
er

s,
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
th

e 
P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t (
P

C
T)

, M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
ol

ic
e,

 B
ar

ki
ng

 
C

ol
le

ge
 a

nd
 th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y,

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
s 

se
ct

or
s;

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 g

et
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
pi

ct
ur

e 
of

 a
n 

is
su

e’
. 

 

Page 16



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

 
P

ar
t B

-A
rti

cl
e 

5D
 (t

he
 C

al
l-I

n 
pr

oc
es

s)
 

 
B

40
 

 In
cl

us
io

n 
of

  t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ne

w
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

: 
 ‘A

ll 
pa

rti
es

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 p

re
se

nt
in

g 
th

e 
C

al
l-I

n 
an

d 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
of

fic
er

s,
 w

ill 
le

av
e 

th
e 

ro
om

 w
hi

ls
t t

he
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 c
on

si
de

rs
 th

e 
C

al
l-I

n,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
ffi

ce
rs

’ r
ig

ht
s 

to
 a

tte
nd

 a
nd

 
ad

vi
se

 a
ll 

m
ee

tin
gs

’  
 

 P
ar

t B
- A

rti
cl

e 
6 

(P
ol

ic
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

s)
 

       

 
B

43
 

 
A

m
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

3.
3 

as
 fo

llo
w

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

an
y 

re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

is
su

es
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d:
 

 ‘3
.3

 P
ol

ic
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

s 
ar

e 
al

so
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 

(p
ar

tn
er

/v
ol

un
ta

ry
/c

om
m

un
ity

/b
us

in
es

s 
se

ct
or

) 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 d
ur

in
g 

th
ei

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l w

or
k 

an
d 

m
ay

 c
o-

op
t n

on
-c

ou
nc

illo
rs

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

.  
S

uc
h 

co
- o

pt
ee

s 
ca

nn
ot

 h
av

e 
vo

tin
g 

rig
ht

s.
  

Th
ey

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
ta

ke
 a

dv
ic

e 
fro

m
 o

th
er

 p
er

so
ns

, 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 o

r p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 g
et

 a
 

ba
la

nc
ed

 p
ic

tu
re

 o
f a

n 
is

su
e’

. 
 

 P
ar

t B
 A

rti
cl

e 
12

- J
oi

nt
 A

rra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

       

 
B

74
 

 Th
e 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 In
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 d

el
et

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 (3

.2
) u

nt
il 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

is
 

se
ct

io
n 

an
d 

in
se

rt
: 

 ‘T
he

 m
ai

n 
pu

rp
os

e 
B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

i p
 is

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
io

n 

Page 17



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 d
riv

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ch

an
ge

s 
th

at
 w

ill 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 a

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

.  
Th

is
 w

ill 
on

ly
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

jo
in

t-w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
’s

 p
ub

lic
, v

ol
un

ta
ry

, c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
 

 Th
e 

ov
er

al
l r

ol
e 

of
 th

e 
B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 is

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 fo
ru

m
 fo

r t
he

 k
ey

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

 ‘B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
, T

ra
ns

fo
rm

in
g 

Li
ve

s,
 a

nd
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
th

at
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

its
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

  
Th

is
 w

ill 
m

ai
nl

y 
be

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

. 
 Th

e 
B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ill 

m
ee

t 
tw

ic
e 

ye
ar

ly
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 s
ty

le
 e

ve
nt

s 
th

at
 w

ill 
ai

m
 to

 in
vo

lv
e 

an
d 

br
in

g 
to

ge
th

er
 p

ub
lic

, p
riv

at
e,

 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

rs
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 T
he

 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 w
ill 

be
 b

y 
in

vi
ta

tio
n 

on
ly

. 
 Th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

 B
oa

rd
 w

ill 
le

ad
 o

n 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

de
ci

si
on

s 
of

 th
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, t
he

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 T
he

re
 

w
ill 

be
 a

re
as

 th
at

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
ha

ve
 d

ire
ct

 
co

nt
ro

l o
ve

r a
nd

 a
ls

o 
w

id
er

 is
su

es
 w

he
re

 th
ey

 c
an

 
us

e 
th

ei
r n

et
w

or
ks

 a
nd

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

to
 h

av
e 

in
flu

en
ce

 
on

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. 
 Th

e 
ke

y 
th

em
ed

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

tra
te

gy
 w

ill 
be

 c
ha

m
pi

on
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

5 
S

ub
 G

ro
up

s 
th

at
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

th
em

ed
 b

lo
ck

s 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l 

Page 18



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t: 
 

• 
Th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Tr

us
t 

• 
Th

e 
A

du
lt’

s 
Tr

us
t 

• 
S

tro
ng

er
 a

nd
 S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
• 

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
• 

In
cl

us
io

n 
 

 
Th

e 
S

ub
-G

ro
up

s 
ov

er
se

e 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t A

ct
io

n 
P

la
ns

 fo
r t

he
ir 

th
em

ed
 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
m

ee
t q

ua
rte

rly
.  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ts

 a
s 

th
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 B
od

y’
. 

 
 P

ar
t D

 –
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ul

es
 

 
D

33
 –

 D
42

 
     

 A
 n

um
be

r o
f c

ha
ng

es
 to

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ul

es
 a

re
 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
 C

ha
ng

e 
of

 L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 re
fle

ct
 c

or
po

ra
te

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
cu

rr
en

t f
un

ct
io

ns
 

 Th
e 

lim
its

 o
f d

el
eg

at
ed

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

an
d 

up
da

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 c
om

pa
ris

on
s 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
. 

 C
la

rif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

di
st

in
ct

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

a 
vi

re
m

en
t 

(re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 y
ea

r o
nl

y)
 a

nd
 a

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

bu
dg

et
 tr

an
sf

er
 (p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 a
s 

a 
pe

rm
an

en
t v

ire
m

en
t) 

 Fo
rm

al
is

e 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 d
ra

w
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

pl
ac

es
 a

 li
m

it 
on

 o
ffi

ce
r d

el
eg

at
io

n 
to

 
do

 s
o.

 

Page 19



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

 G
en

er
al

ly
 u

pd
at

ed
 a

ud
it 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 A

cc
ou

nt
 a

nd
 A

ud
it 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
ed

 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
n 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
m

an
ag

e 
ris

k.
 

 Is
su

es
 o

f i
ns

ur
an

ce
 a

re
 a

m
en

de
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

lin
k 

to
 

th
e 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 ri
sk

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ris

k 
re

gi
st

er
s.

 
 Li

nk
 th

e 
w

rit
e-

of
f p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

w
rit

e-
of

f s
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 
fo

rm
al

is
es

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 it

. 
 

 P
ar

t D
 –

 R
ul

es
 (C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 V

is
its

 a
nd

 H
os

pi
ta

lit
y)

 
 

 
D

46
 

 N
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.3
 a

nd
 re

nu
m

be
rin

g:
 

 ‘2
.3

 T
he

 ru
le

s 
w

ill 
al

so
 n

ot
 a

pp
ly

 in
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f 
sp

ec
ia

l, 
pe

rs
on

al
 in

vi
ta

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
Le

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 e

ve
nt

s 
w

hi
ch

 d
o 

no
t s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 fa

ll 
in

to
 th

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
.1

 a
bo

ve
. I

n 
su

ch
 c

as
es

 th
e 

Le
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
se

rv
es

 th
e 

rig
ht

 to
 ju

dg
e 

w
he

th
er

 o
r n

ot
 th

e 
in

vi
ta

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

nd
, 

at
 h

is
/h

er
 d

is
cr

et
io

n,
 h

e/
sh

e 
m

ay
 p

as
s 

th
e 

in
vi

ta
tio

n 
to

 
an

ot
he

r M
em

be
r. 

O
nl

y 
tra

ve
l e

xp
en

se
s 

w
ill 

be
 fu

nd
ed

 
in

 s
uc

h 
in

st
an

ce
s.

 A
 re

co
rd

 w
ill 

be
 k

ep
t b

y 
th

e 
Le

ad
er

’s
 P

A
’. 

 A
m

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
2.

6 
to

 re
ad

: 
 ‘W

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
M

ay
or

’s
 s

po
us

e,
 p

ar
tn

er
, 

co
ns

or
t, 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 a

t e
ve

nt
s 

by
 s

po
us

es
 a

nd
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

is
 g

en
er

al
ly

 n
ot

 a
llo

w
ed

. H
ow

ev
er

, i
t i

s 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
na

l o
cc

as
io

ns
 

w
he

n 
su

ch
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
’. 

Page 20



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

 P
ar

t E
 –

 C
od

es
 a

nd
 P

ro
to

co
ls

 
     

 E1
 

 ‘Im
m

in
en

t N
ew

 M
od

el
 C

od
e 

of
 C

on
du

ct
 

Th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t p

la
ns

 to
 in

tro
du

ce
 a

 re
vi

se
d 

M
od

el
 

C
od

e 
of

 C
on

du
ct

 fo
r C

ou
nc

ill
or

s.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t o

f w
id

e-
sp

re
ad

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 C
om

m
itt

ee
. T

he
 n

ew
 C

od
e 

w
ill 

cr
ea

te
 a

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il's

 
C

od
es

 a
nd

 P
ro

to
co

ls
. T

he
re

 is
 a

n 
in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 a

n 
ea

rly
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

ch
an

ge
s 

re
qu

ire
d.

 T
he

 re
vi

se
d 

C
od

e 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 
be

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
in

 M
ay

 2
00

7.
  

 P
ar

t E
 –

 C
od

es
 a

nd
 P

ro
to

co
ls

 
 

E
1-

E
84

 
 D

el
et

e 
va

rio
us

 re
fe

re
nc

es
 to

 th
e 

Le
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 c

on
se

nt
 a

nd
 re

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
po

lit
ic

al
 n

eu
tra

lit
y 

of
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
 

 P
ar

t E
- C

od
es

 a
nd

 P
ro

to
co

ls
 (P

ar
ty

 G
ro

up
 M

ee
tin

gs
)  

  

 
E

35
 

 In
se

rt
 n

ew
 s

en
te

nc
e 

at
 4

th
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
 ‘E

m
pl

oy
ee

s’
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t G

ro
up

 M
ee

tin
gs

 w
ill 

ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e 

in
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f B

ar
ki

ng
 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 M

em
be

rs
 o

nl
y’

. 
 

 P
ar

t E
 –

 C
od

es
 a

nd
 P

ro
to

co
ls

 
 

 
E

37
/E

45
/E

65
 

 

 G
en

er
al

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

(E
37

) 
 W

or
di

ng
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 re

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 g

en
er

al
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ar
e 

ad
he

re
d 

to
. 

  

Page 21



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 b

ul
le

t p
oi

nt
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
w

or
de

d:
 

 ‘E
qu

al
ly

, M
em

be
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

av
oi

d 
br

in
gi

ng
 in

flu
en

ce
 to

 
be

ar
 o

n 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 to

 ta
ke

 a
ny

 a
ct

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 is

: 
 

• 
R

el
at

ed
 to

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

’. 
 A

n 
am

en
dm

en
t t

o 
th

e 
la

st
 s

en
te

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
pe

nu
lti

m
at

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

 ‘M
em

be
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t, 

th
er

ef
or

e,
 in

vi
te

 e
xt

er
na

l 
vi

si
to

rs
 s

uc
h 

as
 p

ar
ty

 o
ffi

ci
al

s 
or

 w
or

ke
rs

, o
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
, t

o 
su

ch
 m

ee
tin

gs
’. 

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

co
nf

id
en

tia
lit

y 
(E

45
) 

 Em
pl

oy
ee

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
(E

65
) 

 G
en

er
al

 w
or

di
ng

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 re
fe

re
nc

es
 to

 c
as

ew
or

k 
an

d 
ge

ne
ra

l e
nq

ui
rie

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 
cu

st
om

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

st
an

da
rd

s 
ar

e 
ad

he
re

d 
to

. 
  

 P
ar

t E
 –

 C
od

e 
an

d 
P

ro
to

co
ls

 (G
ui

de
 fo

r M
em

be
rs

 U
se

 o
f 

C
ou

nc
il 

R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

     

 
E

66
 

 
A

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

3rd
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 to
 re

ad
: 

 ‘P
re

m
is

es
 fo

r w
ar

d 
su

rg
er

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ar

ra
ng

ed
 b

y 
m

em
be

rs
 b

ut
 C

ou
nc

il 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 p
ay

 
st

an
da

rd
 ra

te
s 

fo
r t

ho
se

 s
ur

ge
rie

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
of

 L
B

B
D

’. 
  

Page 22



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

 P
ar

t E
 –

 C
od

e 
an

d 
P

ro
to

co
ls

 (G
ui

de
 fo

r M
em

be
rs

 U
se

 o
f 

C
ou

nc
il 

R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

 

 
E

68
 

 U
nd

er
 th

e 
ca

te
go

ry
 o

f s
ta

tio
ne

ry
, p

os
ta

ge
, 

ph
ot

oc
op

ie
r a

nd
 o

th
er

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t: 

 ‘Y
ou

 a
re

 a
dv

is
ed

 n
ot

 to
: 

 
• 

U
se

 a
ny

 d
es

ig
na

to
ry

 le
tte

rs
 a

fte
r y

ou
r n

am
e 

in
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 C
ou

nc
il 

cu
st

om
 a

nd
 p

ra
ct

ic
e’

. 
 

 P
ar

t E
 - 

C
od

es
 a

nd
 P

ro
to

co
ls

 (G
ui

de
 fo

r M
em

be
rs

 u
si

ng
 

C
ou

nc
il 

R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

                     

 
E

69
 

                      

 D
el

et
e 

in
 th

e 
2nd

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

he
ad

in
g 

of
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t: 
 ‘If

 y
ou

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r a

 B
lu

e 
B

ad
ge

 a
nd

 a
re

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 

m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 y
ou

r o
w

n 
tra

ns
po

rt,
 y

ou
 m

ay
 a

pp
ly

 fo
r 

sp
ec

ia
l a

ss
is

ta
nc

e’
, a

nd
 in

se
rt

: 
 ‘If

 y
ou

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r a

 B
lu

e 
B

ad
ge

, o
r a

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
un

ab
le

 to
 m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 y

ou
r o

w
n 

tra
ns

po
rt 

du
e 

to
 a

 
m

ed
ic

al
 c

on
di

tio
n 

or
 in

ca
pa

ci
ty

 (s
uc

h 
as

 a
 b

ro
ke

n 
le

g)
, o

r i
n 

an
y 

ot
he

r e
xc

ep
tio

na
l c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 y
ou

 
m

ay
 a

pp
ly

 to
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
w

ho
 in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

Le
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

co
ns

id
er

 s
pe

ci
al

 
as

si
st

an
ce

.  
 R

ew
or

d 
th

e 
4th

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

‘In
 a

dd
iti

on
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e,
 in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
Le

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
ag

re
e 

tra
ns

po
rt 

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r t
ra

ve
l t

o 
an

d 
fro

m
 a

 c
iv

ic
 fu

nc
tio

n 
ar

ra
ng

ed
 b

y 
an

ot
he

r l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

or
 p

ub
lic

 b
od

y,
 o

r 
to

 a
n 

aw
ar

ds
 c

er
em

on
y 

or
 s

im
ila

r’.
 

  

Page 23



C
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

8\
9\

1\
A

I0
00

20
19

8\
R

ep
or

tto
A

ss
em

bl
yC

ou
nc

ilC
on

st
itu

tio
nR

ev
is

ed
ve

rs
io

n8
M

ay
0.

do
c 

 P
ar

t E
- C

od
es

 a
nd

 P
ro

to
co

ls
 

                                

 
E

85
 (n

ew
) 

    

 Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

to
co

l r
e 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

M
em

be
rs

 
  ‘It

 is
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

of
 B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 b
e 

op
en

, h
on

es
t a

nd
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

in
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
m

ed
ia

 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

.  
O

ur
 p

re
ss

 a
nd

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ac

tiv
ity

 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 th
e 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

as
 th

ey
 w

or
k 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 b

ui
ld

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 tr

an
sf

or
m

 li
ve

s.
 

  A
ll 

el
ec

te
d 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il,
 w

ha
te

ve
r p

ol
iti

ca
l 

pa
rty

, h
av

e 
a 

du
ty

 b
ot

h 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

to
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 in
 c

om
m

en
tin

g 
on

 th
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 th
ey

 m
ak

e 
ev

er
y 

ef
fo

rt 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
ve

ry
th

in
g 

th
ey

 s
ay

, w
he

th
er

 
ve

rb
al

ly
 o

r w
rit

te
n 

(fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

in
 le

af
le

ts
), 

is
 fa

ct
ua

lly
 

co
rr

ec
t. 

 A
lth

ou
gh

 M
em

be
rs

 a
re

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 

on
 C

ou
nc

il 
po

lic
ie

s,
 th

ey
 m

us
t n

ot
 k

no
w

in
gl

y 
ex

pl
ai

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

 fa
ct

ua
lly

 in
co

rr
ec

t t
er

m
s.

 
 In

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
 e

xp
la

in
in

g 
C

ou
nc

il 
po

lic
ie

s 
ca

n 
re

su
lt 

in
 

te
ns

io
n 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
e 

th
e 

re
pu

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 w

or
k 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f a

ll 
re

si
de

nt
s 

th
at

 li
ve

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

  Fa
ilu

re
 to

 fo
llo

w
 th

is
 P

ro
to

co
l c

ou
ld

 le
ad

 to
 a

 M
em

be
r 

be
in

g 
in

 b
re

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

od
e 

of
 C

on
du

ct
.  

B
re

ac
he

s 
of

 th
e 

C
od

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 th
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 B

oa
rd

 fo
r E

ng
la

nd
’  

   
   

 
 

 

Page 24



Motion 
 
Barking Hospital Site 
 
To be moved by Councillor Fairbrass 
 
“This Assembly welcomes the Primary Care Trust’s plan to provide extra 
health care services at the Barking Hospital site. 
 
We are pleased that £5m has been allocated towards the estimated £7-8m 
cost of these improvements but we oppose the suggestion that land at the site 
should be sold to fund the shortfall of £2-3m. 
 
We urge the appropriate Authorities, who in the recent past have 
acknowledged that this Borough’s health services have been under funded for 
many years, to finance the shortfall, and in view of our growing population 
retain the land for the future development of the NHS in this Borough.” 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 25



Extract from the Council’s Constitution 
ARTICLE 2 

THE ASSEMBLY 
 
15. Procedure for Motions on issues directly affecting the Borough 
 
15.1 Motions must be delivered to the Chief Executive not later than 4.00pm 

on the Wednesday two weeks before the meeting.   
 
15.2 They will be listed on the agenda in the order in which they are 

received 
 
15.3 Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a 

responsibility or which directly affect the borough. 
 
15.4 Amendments to motions should be presented in writing to the Chief 

Executive not later than 12 noon on the Friday before the meeting.  
Amendments proposed after this time may only be considered with the 
consent of the Chair.  

 
15.5 A Member may alter or withdraw their motion or amendment at any 

time.  
 
15.6 Order/rules of debate:  
 

1 Except with the Chair’s consent, the debate on each motion 
shall last no longer than 10 minutes and no speech shall exceed 
2 minutes. 

 
2 The mover will move the motion and explain its purpose. 

 
3 The seconder will then second the motion. 

 
4 The Chair will then invite other Members to speak on the motion 

and put forward any amendments. 
 

5 Once all Members who wish to speak have done so, or the time 
limit has elapsed, the Chair will allow the mover a right of reply. 

 
6 At the end of the debate, any amendments will be voted on in 

the order in which they were proposed. 
 

7 If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended becomes 
the substantive motion to which any further amendments are 
moved. 

 
8 After an amendment has been carried, the Chair will read out 

the amended motion before accepting any further amendments, 
or if there are none, put it to the vote. 

 

Page 26



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE 
 
Title: The Executive - Recent Business 
 

For Decision 

Summary 
 
This report sets out recommendations made by the Executive at its meeting on 24 April 
2007.   
 
Housing Strategy 2007 - 2010 
 

The Executive received a report detailing the Council’s ambitions for housing in 
Barking and Dagenham, assessing needs, highlighting the key issues, determining 
priorities and outlining the broad direction of travel for housing in the Borough.  The 
strategy is holistic and encompasses all tenures and all residents. 

 
Recommendation / Reason 
 

The Assembly is recommended to agree the Barking and Dagenham Housing 
Strategy for 2007 / 2010. 

 
Contact: 
Amanda Thompson 

 
Democratic Services 
Officer 

 
Tel: 020 8227 3103 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: 
Amanda.Thompson@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report: 
Minutes, agenda and public reports for the Executive meeting held on 24 April 2007. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



   H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
20

07
-1

0 
       

 
 

            

Page 29



  
1 

Fo
re

w
or

d 
 “T

og
et

he
r w

e 
w

ill
 b

ui
ld

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 tr
an

sf
or

m
 li

ve
s.

..”
 

  Th
e 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 s

et
s 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

di
re

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

ho
us

in
g 

ov
er

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
  

Th
is

 s
tra

te
gy

 w
ill 

af
fe

ct
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 o
f o

ur
 b

or
ou

gh
 o

ve
r a

 m
uc

h 
lo

ng
er

 p
er

io
d,

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r a

ll 
is

 a
 v

ita
l p

ar
t 

of
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
 in

 2
02

0.
   

 G
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

 t
he

 c
or

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 o
f 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, 
an

d 
is

 p
ar

t 
of

 m
uc

h 
w

id
er

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 t

he
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 h

ea
lth

, l
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 tr
an

sp
or

t, 
al

l t
he

se
 m

us
t b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 if
 w

e 
ar

e 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
ur

 a
im

s.
 

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 is

 u
nd

er
go

in
g 

a 
tra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 w
ith

 a
m

bi
tio

us
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 v
al

ua
bl

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 fo
r 

re
al

 c
ha

ng
e.

  T
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 is
 a

t t
he

 h
ea

rt 
of

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 p
la

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

, a
nd

 th
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 is

 o
ng

oi
ng

.  
Th

e 
20

12
 O

ly
m

pi
c 

G
am

es
 in

 L
on

do
n 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
fu

rth
er

 c
at

al
ys

t f
or

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
  

  Th
er

e 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 a
he

ad
 in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ne
ed

s.
  

W
e 

se
e 

ou
r 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 a

s 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ch

an
ge

, a
nd

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
us

 to
 tr

ul
y 

bu
ild

 a
n 

ex
em

pl
ar

 th
riv

in
g 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

f t
he

 fu
tu

re
.  

 
  C

ou
nc

ill
or

 C
ha

rle
s 

Fa
irb

ra
ss

, 
Le

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
              

Page 30



  
2 

C
on

te
nt

s 
 

 
P

ag
e 

N
um

be
r 

1.
 In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
1.

1 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
3 

2.
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

C
on

te
xt

 
2.

1 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
rio

rit
ie

s 
4 

 
2.

2 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 W

or
ki

ng
 

10
 

 
2.

3 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
11

 

 
2.

4 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 Im
pa

ct
 

13
 

 
2.

5 
A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
d 

an
d 

M
ar

ke
t 

14
 

 
2.

6 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

21
 

3.
 T

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

3.
1 

P
rio

rit
ie

s 
23

 

 
3.

2 
P

rio
rit

y 
O

ne
: S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oh

es
io

n 
24

 

 
3.

3 
P

rio
rit

y 
Tw

o:
 D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 a

nd
 S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
28

 

 
3.

4 
P

rio
rit

y 
Th

re
e:

 P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

C
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 
32

 

 
3.

5 
P

rio
rit

y 
Fo

ur
: D

es
ig

n,
 E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

37
 

 
3.

6 
P

rio
rit

y 
Fi

ve
: A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

 
39

 

 
3.

7 
P

rio
rit

y 
S

ix
: P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 
41

 

4.
 D

el
iv

er
y 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

4.
1 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
46

 

 
4.

2 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

P
la

n 
20

07
-1

0 
47

 

 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

56
 

 
C

on
ta

ct
s 

Li
st

 
57

 

 

Page 31



  
3 

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
 1.

1 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
 O

ur
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
S

tra
te

gy
 

ha
s 

th
re

e 
br

oa
d 

th
em

es
 

w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

fo
r 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
ou

r 
ai

m
s.

  
W

e 
w

ill 
bu

ild
 m

ix
ed

 a
nd

 b
al

an
ce

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

pr
om

ot
e 

an
d 

su
st

ai
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
 

H
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 
ho

us
in

g 
sh

ou
ld

 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

s 
be

yo
nd

 t
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 D
ec

en
t 

H
om

es
 S

ta
nd

ar
d.

  
A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 m
us

t 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

it 
lo

ca
l 

pe
op

le
.  

O
ur

 s
tra

te
gy

 e
xp

lo
re

s 
th

e 
in

he
re

nt
 s

yn
er

gi
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

es
e 

th
em

es
, a

nd
 

se
ts

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
ho

us
in

g 
te

nu
re

s.
  

Th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
is

 c
rit

ic
al

 if
 w

e 
ar

e 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 tr
ul

y 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

 

 
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
Th

em
es

 
 

C
re

at
in

g 
B

al
an

ce
d 

an
d 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 F

or
 A

ll 
– 

B
ey

on
d 

20
10

 
R

is
in

g 
to

 th
e 

C
ha

lle
ng

e 
of

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
 

 
 

W
e 

ar
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 to

 c
re

at
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 p
la

ce
s 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
ch

oo
se

 to
 li

ve
.  

Th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

tra
ns

po
rt 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
is

 in
te

gr
al

 t
o 

ou
r 

ap
pr

oa
ch

. 
 W

e 
ar

e 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 o
ur

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
tra

te
gy

 w
ill

 b
en

ef
it 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
liv

es
 o

f o
ur

 c
om

m
un

ity
.  

O
ur

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 (
H

R
A

) 
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 2
00

3-
6 

bo
th

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
th

e 
“F

it-
fo

r-
P

ur
po

se
” 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

fro
m

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
O

ffi
ce

 f
or

 L
on

do
n 

(G
O

L)
. 

 I
n 

ou
r 

w
or

k 
to

 m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
vi

si
on

 a
 r

ea
lit

y,
 w

e 
w

ill 
no

w
 b

ui
ld

 f
ur

th
er

 o
n 

th
e 

m
an

y 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
.  

O
ur

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e:
 

 • 
P

ro
gr

es
si

on
 o

f T
ha

m
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 p
la

ns
 

• 
O

ve
r 9

00
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 o

ve
r 3

 y
ea

rs
 

• 
D

es
ig

n 
ex

ce
lle

nc
e 

an
d 

gr
ea

te
r s

us
ta

in
ab

ilit
y 

• 
G

re
at

er
 c

ho
ic

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 h

ou
si

ng
 

• 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

• 
La

un
ch

 o
f C

ho
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 L
et

tin
gs

 
• 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
ut

ur
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 d

ec
en

t h
om

es
 

• 
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 A
re

a 
R

en
ew

al
 

• 
N

ew
 h

om
es

 fo
r S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

cl
ie

nt
s 

• 
E

xt
er

na
l f

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 w

id
er

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

ba
se

 
• 

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
ou

r s
tra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

io
n 

by
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

rig
or

ou
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

.  
W

e 
ha

ve
 u

se
d 

th
is

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
 u

si
ng

 o
ur

 r
es

ou
rc

es
.  

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 fi
rs

t c
on

si
de

rs
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

co
nt

ex
t 

of
 o

ur
 

pl
an

s 
in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 o

ur
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, 
an

d 
ho

w
 w

e 
ca

n 
be

st
 m

ee
t 

th
es

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

ou
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

 T
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

si
x 

cr
iti

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 s

tra
te

gy
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

th
at

 re
fle

ct
 o

ur
 th

re
e 

br
oa

d 
th

em
es

.  
Th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

ar
e:

 
 • 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

oh
es

io
n 

• 
D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 a

nd
 S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

  
• 

Pr
om

ot
in

g 
C

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 

• 
D

es
ig

n,
 E

ne
rg

y 
Ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

 
• 

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
   

• 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Se

ct
or

 H
ou

si
ng

 

Page 32



  
4 

Fu
ll 

an
al

ys
is

 a
nd

 r
at

io
na

le
 fo

r 
th

es
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
is

 s
et

 in
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 s
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

a 
de

ta
ile

d 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

P
la

n 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

de
liv

er
y 

is
 

pr
ov

id
ed

.  
K

ey
 ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 a
re

: 
 • 

50
%

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

n 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
he

re
 fe

as
ib

le
 

• 
A

ch
ie

ve
 D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 T

ar
ge

t f
or

 s
oc

ia
l h

ou
si

ng
 b

y 
20

10
 

• 
N

ew
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
to

 m
ee

t h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

f S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
cl

ie
nt

 g
ro

up
s 

• 
A

do
pt

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 M

ay
or

’s
 ta

rg
et

s 
on

 re
ne

w
ab

le
s 

an
d 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
• 

42
5 

ne
w

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r 
• 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
 A

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

7-
10

 c
an

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 (

LB
B

D
) 

w
eb

si
te

 a
t 

w
w

w
.b

ar
ki

ng
-d

ag
en

ha
m

.g
ov

.u
k.

 
 2.

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 C

on
te

xt
 

 2.
1 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pr

io
rit

ie
s 

 A
 s

ou
nd

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 o

ur
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

co
nt

ex
t i

s 
es

se
nt

ia
l, 

as
 it

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ith
 a

n 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 v

ar
io

us
 is

su
es

 
th

at
 m

us
t b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.  
In

 s
ee

ki
ng

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 o

ur
 a

ge
nd

a 
an

d 
m

ax
im

is
e 

ou
r 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

va
rio

us
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ad
dr

es
s.

  
Th

es
e 

ra
ng

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

, t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 s

ub
-r

eg
io

na
l a

nd
 r

eg
io

na
l l

ev
el

 to
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l s
ca

le
, a

nd
 th

es
e 

al
l h

el
p 

to
 

in
fo

rm
 a

nd
 g

ui
de

 o
ur

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
tra

te
gy

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 

 Lo
ca

l C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ad
op

te
d 

se
ve

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
in

 it
s 

co
m

m
itm

en
t t

o 
se

rv
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.  
Th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 d

el
iv

er
s 

al
l o

f 
th

es
e 

ho
lis

tic
al

ly
, w

ith
 a

 s
tro

ng
 fo

cu
s 

on
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

he
al

th
, h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
an

d 
re

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y.

 
 • 

R
ai

si
ng

 g
en

er
al

 p
rid

e 
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 
• 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

eq
ua

l o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
ce

le
br

at
in

g 
di

ve
rs

ity
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

he
al

th
, h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
• 

M
ak

in
g 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 c

le
an

er
, g

re
en

er
 a

nd
 s

af
er

 
• 

B
et

te
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fo
r a

ll 
• 

R
eg

en
er

at
in

g 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

 

Page 33



  
5 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
fo

r A
ct

io
n 

20
05

-1
0 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

A
ct

io
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
lo

ca
l C

om
m

un
ity

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

V
is

io
n.

  
Th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 b

al
an

ce
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

, w
he

re
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

fiv
e 

m
ai

n 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 b

en
ef

its
, c

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n,
 v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

, h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
its

 
st

af
f. 

 • 
W

or
k 

In
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 D
el

iv
er

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s 

• 
P

ut
 th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 a
t t

he
 H

ea
rt 

of
 o

ur
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 V

al
ue

 F
or

 M
on

ey
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

• 
D

el
iv

er
 H

ig
h 

Q
ua

lit
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
• 

V
al

ue
 a

nd
 In

ve
st

 in
 o

ur
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
 Th

re
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

P
rio

rit
ie

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

cr
os

s-
cu

tti
ng

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s 

fro
m

 2
00

5-
10

.  
Th

es
e 

ar
e:

 
 • 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

cu
st

om
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 –
 p

ut
tin

g 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
at

 th
e 

he
ar

t o
f e

ve
ry

th
in

g 
w

e 
do

 
• 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ar

d 
– 

so
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
be

st
 p

os
si

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 re

sp
on

si
ve

 to
 th

ei
r n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 
re

pr
es

en
t v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 
• 

R
eg

en
er

at
in

g 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
– 

cr
ea

tin
g 

a 
th

riv
in

g 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

w
he

re
 s

ki
lle

d 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

ed
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
ca

n 
liv

e 
an

d 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
rid

e 
 St

ra
te

gi
c 

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 Im

pa
ct

s 
Th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
s 

en
su

re
d 

th
at

 w
e 

m
ee

t 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
ou

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

, 
by

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s.

  
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ta
bl

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

ho
w

 o
ur

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
tra

te
gy

 m
ee

ts
 t

he
se

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
  

Fu
rth

er
 d

et
ai

ls
 a

re
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 s

ec
tio

n 
th

re
e.

 
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
rio

rit
y 

H
ow

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
M

ee
ts

 T
he

 P
rio

rit
y 

R
ai

si
ng

 g
en

er
al

 p
rid

e 
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 
H

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 to

 m
ee

t p
re

se
nt

 n
ee

ds
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 

R
es

id
en

t i
nv

ol
ve

m
en

t i
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

si
gn

 –
 a

w
ar

ds
 h

av
e 

be
en

 w
on

 fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
eq

ua
l o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

an
d 

ce
le

br
at

in
g 

di
ve

rs
ity

 
B

al
an

ce
d 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 m
ix

ed
 te

nu
re

 w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

gr
ea

te
r c

om
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
M

or
e 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

cl
ie

nt
 g

ro
up

s,
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
Fo

ye
r s

ch
em

e 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

 
th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
E

xc
el

le
nt

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill 

im
pr

ov
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
P

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 c
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

ho
us

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 h

ou
si

ng
 

W
or

k 
to

w
ar

ds
 ta

ck
lin

g 
vo

lu
m

e 
cr

im
e,

 A
nt

i-S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 

Page 34



  
6 

N
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 b
ui

lt 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

ou
t c

rim
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
S

ec
ur

ed
 b

y 
D

es
ig

n 
st

an
da

rd
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
he

al
th

, h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

W
el

l d
es

ig
ne

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
he

al
th

ie
r l

ife
st

yl
es

 
N

ew
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 b
ui

lt 
to

 L
ife

tim
e 

H
om

es
 s

ta
nd

ar
d,

 w
ith

 1
0%

 w
he

el
ch

ai
r a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
M

or
e 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

cl
ie

nt
 g

ro
up

s,
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
Fo

ye
r s

ch
em

e 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
Fl

oa
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
op

le
 

M
ak

in
g 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 c

le
an

er
, 

gr
ee

ne
r a

nd
 s

af
er

 
P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
in

 w
el

l t
ho

ug
ht

 o
ut

 m
ix

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
im

pr
ov

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

es
ig

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

S
ec

ur
ed

 b
y 

D
es

ig
n 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
W

or
k 

to
w

ar
ds

 ta
ck

lin
g 

cr
im

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

An
ti-

S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
B

et
te

r e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 fo

r a
ll 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

te
rn

al
 s

pa
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

la
rg

er
 fa

m
ily

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 p

riv
at

e 
sp

ac
e 

Fo
ye

r s
ch

em
e 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 

R
eg

en
er

at
in

g 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f o

ut
m

od
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

es
ta

te
 re

ne
w

al
 s

ch
em

es
 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

ite
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

of
 B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

M
ix

ed
 u

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

W
id

er
 ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

as
pi

ra
tio

na
l h

om
es

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 h

ou
si

ng
 

 Su
b-

R
eg

io
na

l P
rio

rit
ie

s 
Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 s

tro
ng

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
w

id
er

 s
ub

-r
eg

io
n 

w
hi

ls
t h

ou
si

ng
 m

ar
ke

ts
 o

pe
ra

te
 a

cr
os

s 
an

d 
be

yo
nd

 b
or

ou
gh

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s.

  
A

 s
ub

-r
eg

io
na

l 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
ho

us
in

g 
is

 o
ut

lin
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

in
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
: 

bu
ild

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

.  
Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
is

 a
 m

em
be

r o
f t

he
 E

as
t L

on
do

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (E

LH
P)

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 e

ig
ht

 E
as

t L
on

do
n 

bo
ro

ug
hs

.  
Th

e 
E

LH
P

 h
as

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
an

 E
as

t L
on

do
n 

Su
b-

R
eg

io
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
20

05
-1

0 
w

hi
ch

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
io

rit
ie

s:
 

 • 
N

ew
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

up
pl

y 
an

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 
• 

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r R

en
ew

al
 

• 
S

up
po

rte
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 
• 

C
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

M
ob

ilit
y 

• 
Ta

ck
lin

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

• 
Ta

ck
lin

g 
R

ac
ia

l H
ar

as
sm

en
t 

• 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

 Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 a

ls
o 

a 
m

em
be

r 
of

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 L

on
do

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (

TG
LP

), 
w

hi
ch

 a
im

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

. 
   

Page 35



  
7 

R
eg

io
na

l P
rio

rit
ie

s 
B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 o

ne
 o

f t
hi

rty
 th

re
e 

Lo
nd

on
 b

or
ou

gh
s.

  
Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
fe

rs
 g

re
at

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 
ha

s 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 tr

an
sp

or
t l

in
ks

.  
In

 2
00

5 
th

e 
C

ap
ita

l H
om

es
 L

on
do

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

20
05

-1
6 

w
as

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
an

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

re
gi

on
al

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 

 Th
e 

M
ay

or
 o

f L
on

do
n 

de
ve

lo
ps

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

(G
LA

), 
w

hi
ch

 is
 a

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 L
on

do
n 

w
ith

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

, t
ra

ns
po

rt 
an

d 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 In
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 a
n 

an
no

un
ce

m
en

t w
as

 m
ad

e 
by

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t t

ha
t 

th
e 

M
ay

or
’s

 p
ow

er
s 

w
er

e 
to

 b
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
re

as
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

us
in

g.
  

A
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
 w

ill 
no

w
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

ay
or

, a
nd

 th
er

e 
w

ill 
be

 s
om

e 
ch

an
ge

 o
f e

m
ph

as
is

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
ap

ita
l H

om
es

 s
tra

te
gy

.  
Th

e 
ne

w
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

ill 
fo

cu
s 

on
 

se
ve

n 
ke

y 
po

lic
y 

ar
ea

s.
  

Th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

ar
e 

se
t 

ou
t 

be
lo

w
 a

nd
 m

us
t 

be
 t

ak
en

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 b
y 

Lo
nd

on
 b

or
ou

gh
s 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

.  
S

pe
ci

fic
 h

ou
si

ng
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 c

ov
er

ed
 in

 g
re

at
er

 d
et

ai
l i

n 
se

ct
io

n 
th

re
e.

 
 • 

P
ut

tin
g 

pe
op

le
 fi

rs
t 

• 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

m
or

e 
ho

m
es

 
• 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 h

om
es

 in
 th

e 
rig

ht
 p

la
ce

s 
• 

D
es

ig
ni

ng
 p

la
ce

s 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
an

t t
o 

liv
e 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
in

g 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 h

ou
si

ng
 

• 
P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
ch

oi
ce

 a
nd

 m
ob

ilit
y 

• 
Ta

ck
lin

g 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 
 N

at
io

na
l P

rio
rit

ie
s 

Th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t (

D
C

LG
) 

se
ts

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

m
us

t 
de

liv
er

.  
In

 2
00

3 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
: b

ui
ld

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 w

as
 p

ub
lis

he
d,

 m
ar

ki
ng

 a
 s

te
p 

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

w
id

er
 a

sp
ec

t o
f s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
.  

Th
e 

m
ai

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t a
re

 s
um

m
ar

is
ed

 
be

lo
w

. 
 • 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

so
ci

al
 te

na
nt

s 
ha

ve
 a

 d
ec

en
t h

om
e 

by
 2

01
0 

an
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

fo
r v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
pe

op
le

 in
 p

riv
at

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
• 

A
 s

te
p 

ch
an

ge
 in

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
up

pl
y 

to
 ta

ck
le

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

sh
or

ta
ge

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 in

 L
on

do
n 

an
d 

th
e 

S
ou

th
 E

as
t 

• 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f n
ew

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

as
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
fo

rm
 o

f p
la

nn
in

g 
sy

st
em

, a
 n

ew
 re

gi
on

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ol
ic

y,
 a

nd
 s

ub
-re

gi
on

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

su
es

 
 B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 i

s 
si

tu
at

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

, 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

on
e 

of
 f

ou
r 

na
tio

na
l 

G
ro

w
th

 A
re

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 i
n 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
.  

Th
e 

ot
he

r p
ro

po
se

d 
G

ro
w

th
 A

re
as

 a
re

 M
ilt

on
 K

ey
ne

s/
S

ou
th

 M
id

la
nd

s,
 A

sh
fo

rd
 a

nd
 L

on
do

n-
St

an
st

ed
-C

am
br

id
ge

.  
 

 

Page 36



  
8 

In
 2

00
4 

C
re

at
in

g 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 L
on

do
n 

w
as

 p
ub

lis
he

d.
  

Th
is

 fi
ve

 y
ea

r 
pl

an
 e

st
ab

lis
he

s 
ho

w
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

ill
 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 i
n 

Lo
nd

on
. 

 T
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 c
om

m
itm

en
t 

to
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 f
ur

th
er

 w
ith

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

of
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

: H
om

es
 F

or
 A

ll 
an

d 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
: P

eo
pl

e,
 P

la
ce

s 
an

d 
Pr

os
pe

rit
y 

in
 2

00
5.

  T
he

 fo
rm

er
 s

et
s 

ou
t h

ow
 d

ec
en

t h
om

es
 a

nd
 g

re
at

er
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
t a

n 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 le
ve

l f
or

 e
ve

ry
on

e,
 w

hi
ls

t t
he

 la
tte

r f
oc

us
es

 o
n 

cr
ea

tin
g 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
is

h 
to

 li
ve

 a
nd

 w
or

k.
   

 Fr
om

 D
ec

en
t 

H
om

es
 t

o 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

as
 is

su
ed

 in
 J

un
e 

20
06

.  
Th

is
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
pa

pe
r 

so
ug

ht
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 c
er

ta
in

 p
ol

ic
y 

ar
ea

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
so

ur
ci

ng
 t

hr
ou

gh
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

an
d 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

. 
 I

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

th
e 

St
ro

ng
 a

nd
 P

ro
sp

er
ou

s 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 W

hi
te

 P
ap

er
 w

as
 r

el
ea

se
d.

  
Th

is
 in

te
nd

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

gr
ea

te
r f

re
ed

om
s 

an
d 

po
w

er
s.

  
 C

ou
nc

il 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 d
iv

is
io

n 
w

or
ks

 c
lo

se
ly

 o
ve

r a
ll 

fiv
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s.

 
 A

du
lt 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
tro

ng
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
du

lt 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
de

pa
rtm

en
t h

av
e 

be
en

 fo
rg

ed
.  

Th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

t p
ro

m
ot

es
 th

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 

w
el

l-b
ei

ng
 o

f a
du

lts
 a

nd
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e.

  I
t a

ls
o 

co
-o

rd
in

at
es

 w
or

k 
on

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

af
et

y,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n,
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
he

rit
ag

e 
an

d 
lib

ra
rie

s.
  T

he
 A

du
lt 

Tr
us

t w
ill 

ad
op

t s
ev

en
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

ou
tc

om
es

 th
at

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
ag

en
da

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 (
D

oH
) 

‘O
ur

 H
ea

lth
, 

O
ur

 C
ar

e,
 O

ur
 S

ay
’ W

hi
te

 P
ap

er
. 

 T
he

 d
iv

is
io

n 
lia

is
es

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 t
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t (

P
C

T)
 in

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ne
ed

s 
of

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
op

le
.  

W
e 

al
so

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
Th

e 
P

ro
ba

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 in
 

m
ee

tin
g 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ed
 n

ee
ds

, 
an

d 
ou

r 
w

or
k 

in
 t

he
se

 a
re

as
 i

s 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 f
ur

th
er

. 
 A

 d
ra

ft 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

its
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 s

tra
te

gy
.  

Th
is

 a
ls

o 
fe

ed
s 

in
to

 th
e 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 

20
06

. 
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

t i
s 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r s

tra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

ge
d 

0-
19

.  
Th

e 
di

vi
si

on
 

ha
s 

cl
os

e 
lin

ks
 w

ith
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

ac
ce

ss
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 h
as

 
he

lp
ed

 t
o 

in
fo

rm
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
la

n 
20

06
 t

o 
20

09
 t

o 
de

liv
er

 t
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 E
ve

ry
 C

hi
ld

 
M

at
te

rs
 v

is
io

n.
  A

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
fo

r C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

ha
s 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 is

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 s

tra
te

gy
.  

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

in
 th

ei
r 

tra
ns

iti
on

al
 p

ha
se

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

le
av

in
g 

cu
st

od
y 

or
 w

ho
 

ar
e 

at
 ri

sk
 o

f o
ffe

nd
in

g.
  H

ou
si

ng
 a

ls
o 

w
or

ks
 c

lo
se

ly
 w

ith
 th

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 h
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

 is
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r i

n 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

, a
nd

 th
at

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 h
ou

si
ng

 h
as

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

fu
tu

re
 a

tta
in

m
en

t. 
  

Page 37



  
9 

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

br
in

gs
 to

ge
th

er
 a

ll 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

fro
nt

-li
ne

 te
am

s 
an

d 
is

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 lo
ca

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.  
Th

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
t h

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
 d

ra
ft 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

de
liv

er
in

g 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
cu

st
om

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

ith
 D

on
e 

In
 

O
ne

 –
 A

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

.  
 Th

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
w

hi
ch

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

 a
nd

 
fin

an
ce

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
 (

H
R

A
), 

an
d 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
ut

ur
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 t
he

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 D

ec
en

t 
H

om
es

 S
ta

nd
ar

d.
  

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
is

 o
f 

gr
ea

t 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

to
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 a

nd
 f

un
di

ng
 h

as
 s

ec
ur

ed
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
hr

ou
gh

 c
on

ci
er

ge
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 l

ig
ht

in
g.

  
A

 s
tre

et
 w

ar
de

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
ha

s 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

su
pp

or
te

d.
  

Th
e 

di
vi

si
on

 i
nc

lu
de

s 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
dv

ic
e.

  T
he

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l i

nt
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
M

or
e 

C
ho

ic
e 

In
 L

et
tin

gs
 (M

C
IL

) c
ho

ic
e-

ba
se

d 
le

tti
ng

s 
sy

st
em

 in
 

20
05

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 g
re

at
er

 c
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

fa
irn

es
s 

in
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
oc

ia
lly

 r
en

te
d 

ho
us

in
g.

  
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

si
x 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
(C

H
P

s)
.  

Th
ro

ug
h 

a 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 o
f t

en
an

ts
, l

ea
se

ho
ld

er
s,

 fr
ee

ho
ld

er
s 

an
d 

C
ou

nc
illo

rs
, C

H
P

 b
oa

rd
s 

ha
ve

 th
e 

po
w

er
 

to
 m

ak
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

va
rio

us
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

. 
 Th

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
t a

ls
o 

co
-o

rd
in

at
es

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r 

H
ou

si
ng

, c
ov

er
in

g 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e,
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t. 
 A

 fu
ll 

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 is

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

la
te

r t
hi

s 
ye

ar
. 

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Th

e 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

de
pa

rtm
en

t 
w

or
ks

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
C

ou
nc

il 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

, 
ex

te
rn

al
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, a

nd
 is

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
th

e 
so

ci
al

, p
hy

si
ca

l, 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 

 

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 d
iv

is
io

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 in

 th
e 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
de

pa
rtm

en
t, 

an
d 

w
or

ks
 c

lo
se

ly
 w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

po
lic

ie
s 

ar
e 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 i
n 

de
liv

er
in

g 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
V

is
io

n.
  

Th
er

e 
is

 c
lo

se
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
S

pa
tia

l R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
di

vi
si

on
 to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

of
 n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
, a

nd
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 a

nd
 s

ui
ta

bl
y 

lo
ca

te
d.

  W
e 

ar
e 

he
lp

in
g 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
(L

D
F)

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
ev

en
tu

al
ly

 r
ep

la
ce

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t a

do
pt

ed
 U

ni
ta

ry
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

(U
D

P
). 

 T
he

 
bo

ro
ug

h 
is

 n
ow

 i
n 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 c

on
su

lti
ng

 o
n 

its
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 o
pt

io
ns

. 
 O

ur
 d

iv
is

io
n 

ha
s 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
te

am
s 

w
hi

ch
 re

fle
ct

 it
s 

m
ai

n 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
  S

ub
-re

gi
on

al
 w

or
ki

ng
 is

 a
n 

in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

di
vi

si
on

’s
 w

or
k,

 w
ith

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 to
 k

ey
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 
B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 P

ro
po

se
d 

R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 H
ou

si
ng

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

- 
Th

e 
te

am
 e

na
bl

es
 n

ew
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 R
eg

is
te

re
d 

So
ci

al
 

La
nd

lo
rd

s 
(R

S
Ls

). 
 T

he
 t

ea
m

 s
ee

ks
 t

o 
m

ax
im

is
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 t

he
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

’s
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 a
sp

ira
tio

ns
. 

Page 38



  
10

 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
- 

Th
is

 t
ea

m
 w

or
ks

 i
n 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 t

o 
de

liv
er

 t
he

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

. 
 A

re
a 

ba
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 h

el
pi

ng
 t

o 
de

liv
er

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

m
os

t o
f t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
’s

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s.

   
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 - 

Th
e 

fo
cu

s 
of

 th
is

 te
am

 is
 to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 re

se
ar

ch
 in

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

ns
, c

o-
or

di
na

te
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
an

d 
en

su
re

 c
on

fo
rm

ity
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
il 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
. 

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Th
e 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

le
ad

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 t

he
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

, 
an

d 
th

e 
di

vi
si

on
 w

or
ks

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 t
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

in
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 t
he

se
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
.  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 a
nn

ua
l C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n 
se

ts
 o

ut
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
P

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ho
w

 w
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
w

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

em
.  

Th
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
di

ag
ra

m
 s

um
m

ar
is

es
 t

he
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

of
 t

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 w

ith
 t

he
 

ke
y 

bo
ro

ug
h 

st
ra

te
gi

es
.  

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

ST
R

A
TE

G
Y 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n 
 

 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
(L

D
F)

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 K

ey
 C

ou
nc

il 
St

ra
te

gi
es

 
 

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 

 
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

la
n 

20
06

 to
 2

00
9 

 
 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
20

06
 

 
2.

2 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
W

or
ki

ng
 

 A
 h

ol
is

tic
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
l f

or
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
ai

m
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
.  

Th
is

 c
an

 o
nl

y 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

ur
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s.

  
Th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

ha
s 

lo
ng

 b
ee

n 
re

co
gn

is
ed

, 
an

d 
m

an
y 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 g

ai
ne

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

. 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

is
he

s 
to

 s
tre

ng
th

en
 it

s 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s 
fu

rth
er

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 
ne

w
 o

ne
s 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
.  

Th
is

 c
ha

pt
er

 s
um

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

in
 w

hi
ch

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
re

 c
lo

se
ly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
. 

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 L

oc
al

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (L

SP
) 

Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
LS

P
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

di
re

ct
io

n 
at

 a
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

le
ve

l f
or

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 f
or

 lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

in
vo

lv
es

 a
 c

ro
ss

-s
ec

tio
n 

of
   

pu
bl

ic
, p

riv
at

e,
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

.  
Th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 c

on
tri

bu
te

s 
to

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

.  
Th

is
 is

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

by
 t

he
 L

S
P

 a
nd

 r
ei

nf
or

ce
s 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 t

he
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
by

 c
o-

or
di

na
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 T
he

 L
S

P
 a

ls
o 

en
ab

le
s 

an
d 

de
liv

er
in

g 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

Lo
ca

l 
A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

(L
A

A
), 

se
tti

ng
 a

 c
om

m
itm

en
t 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

ve
r 

20
06

-9
.  

H
ou

si
ng

 m
ak

es
 a

 v
ita

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
H

ea
lth

ie
r C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
LA

A
. 

 H
ea

lth
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

Jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t (
P

C
T)

 is
 c

rit
ic

al
 fo

r a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
V

is
io

n.
  T

he
 P

C
T 

co
nt

rib
ut

es
 

to
 th

e 
LS

P
 a

nd
 w

or
ks

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 C
ou

nc
il 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
. 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Page 39



  
11

 

H
ou

si
ng

 p
la

ys
 a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 p

ar
t 

in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
  

Th
is

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ai
m

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 b

et
te

r 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 fo

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 p
eo

pl
e,

 b
y 

he
lp

in
g 

th
em

 to
 li

ve
 m

or
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 a
nd

 k
ee

p 
th

ei
r 

ho
m

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
ho

us
in

g-
re

la
te

d 
su

pp
or

t. 
 

Th
e 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
5-

10
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

its
 v

ar
io

us
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
s.

  
Th

e 
sy

ne
rg

ie
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 
th

e 
va

rio
us

 c
lie

nt
 g

ro
up

s 
ar

e 
ex

pl
or

ed
 in

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il 

in
 la

te
r c

ha
pt

er
s.

 
 W

e 
al

so
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 t
o 

Va
lu

in
g 

Pe
op

le
. 

 T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

at
io

na
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 a

ss
is

te
d 

in
 t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r P

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

20
05

-8
. 

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

(C
D

R
P)

 
Th

e 
C

D
R

P
 w

or
ks

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

af
et

y.
  

H
ou

si
ng

 c
lo

se
ly

 s
up

po
rts

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r 
S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
5-

8 
an

d 
al

so
 c

on
tri

bu
te

s 
to

 t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 D

om
es

tic
 V

io
le

nc
e 

S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

6-
9.

  
Th

er
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

cl
os

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 D

ru
g 

an
d 

A
lc

oh
ol

 A
ct

io
n 

Te
am

 (D
A

A
T)

.  
Th

is
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l D

ru
gs

 S
tra

te
gy

 –
 T

ac
kl

in
g 

D
ru

gs
 to

 B
ui

ld
 a

 B
et

te
r 

B
rit

ai
n 

at
 a

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
.  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 ta

ck
lin

g 
A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 (A

S
B

), 
an

d 
th

e 
A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 S

tra
te

gy
 

20
06

-7
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

is
.  

A
ll 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 b

ui
lt 

to
 d

es
ig

n 
ou

t c
rim

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
m

ee
t t

he
 S

ec
ur

ed
 b

y 
D

es
ig

n 
st

an
da

rd
.  

 
 Su

b-
R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

Th
e 

su
b-

re
gi

on
al

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
se

ct
io

n 
(p

ag
e 

6)
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 s
ub

-re
gi

on
al

 E
LH

P
 a

nd
 T

G
LP

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 F
ur

th
er

 d
et

ai
ls

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t c

ha
pt

er
s.

 
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 s
tro

ng
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 a
s 

a 
de

bt
 fr

ee
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

en
ab

le
d 

it 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 fo
r 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

w
ith

 R
S

Ls
. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 l

oo
ki

ng
 t

o 
m

ax
im

is
e 

ot
he

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 m
ee

t t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
’s

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

.   
In

 s
up

po
rt 

of
 th

is
 a

im
 w

e 
ha

ve
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
an

 
R

S
L 

Fo
ru

m
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 s
ub

-g
ro

up
s 

on
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 n

om
in

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
ss

ue
s.

  
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

ni
ne

 p
re

fe
rr

ed
 R

S
L 

pa
rtn

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

fo
ru

m
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

sh
ar

in
g 

ex
pe

rti
se

, 
po

lic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 
E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

is
 p

iv
ot

al
 in

 in
fo

rm
in

g 
ou

r s
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

ns
, a

nd
 fo

r s
ec

ur
in

g 
ou

r f
ut

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y.

 
 2.

3 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
 Th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

co
nt

ex
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 b

as
el

in
e 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 c
an

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
de

liv
er

y,
 

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ab

lin
g 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 f
un

di
ng

 a
nd

 v
ia

 t
he

 s
ha

rin
g 

of
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n.

  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
m

us
t 

de
ci

de
 i

ts
 h

ou
si

ng
 

st
ra

te
gy

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
fro

m
 i

ts
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 w

hi
ls

t 
m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
ba

la
nc

in
g 

na
tio

na
l, 

re
gi

on
al

, 
su

b-
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 l

oc
al

 n
ee

ds
.  

Page 40



  
12

 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

is
 v

ita
l f

or
 d

ec
id

in
g 

ho
w

 w
e 

sh
ou

ld
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

ou
r 

po
lic

ie
s 

ag
ai

ns
t o

ur
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 r
es

ou
rc

es
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 th
er

ef
or

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

ex
te

ns
iv

el
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

ou
r s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ou

r p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

 s
et

tin
g 

ou
r p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 
 A

 w
id

e 
cr

os
s-

se
le

ct
io

n 
of

 e
xt

er
na

l 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 i
nv

ol
ve

d 
in

 t
he

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
In

iti
al

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

w
ith

 a
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
in

 2
00

5.
  

A
tte

nd
ee

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 b
ro

ad
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

re
la

te
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

, 
in

te
rn

al
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 r

es
id

en
t 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
. 

 A
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 t

he
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

co
nt

ex
t 

an
d 

em
er

gi
ng

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
  T

hi
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

G
O

L,
 re

si
de

nt
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

in
te

rn
al

 o
ffi

ce
rs

.  
A 

H
ou

si
ng

 
S

tra
te

gy
 S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 E

ve
nt

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

pr
ov

id
ed

 f
ur

th
er

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

an
d 

an
 u

pd
at

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ol

ic
y 

si
nc

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n.
  

A
n 

ar
tic

le
 w

as
 a

ls
o 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
C

iti
ze

n 
M

ag
az

in
e 

w
hi

ch
 g

av
e 

al
l r

es
id

en
ts

 a
 c

ha
nc

e 
to

 c
om

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s.
  

Th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
s 

pl
ay

ed
 a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 r

ol
e 

in
 in

flu
en

ci
ng

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 s
tra

te
gy

, a
nd

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
re

cu
rri

ng
 th

em
es

 w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 in

flu
en

tia
l. 

 A
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 h

ow
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 h

as
 c

ha
ng

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
is

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e.

 
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ev

en
t 

K
ey

 is
su

es
 ra

is
ed

 
H

ow
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

in
flu

en
ce

d 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
rig

ht
 ty

pe
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 in
 th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 ra
ng

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

cl
ie

nt
 g

ro
up

s 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 o
n 

he
al

th
 

Th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 ta

ck
le

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
cr

im
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t d

es
ig

n 
by

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

  
N

ee
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

de
ce

nt
 

ho
m

es
 

C
re

at
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

Th
es

e 
is

su
es

 w
er

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

s 
ar

ea
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 f

ur
th

er
 in

 t
he

 
st

ra
te

gy
; 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
oh

es
io

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 a

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 P
rio

rit
y  

  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 
M

ee
tin

g 
S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

cl
ie

nt
 g

ro
up

s 
ne

ed
s 

C
ro

ss
-te

nu
re

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
 re

du
ci

ng
 n

on
-d

ec
en

t h
om

es
 

C
on

si
de

r c
ap

ac
ity

 fo
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 fu

tu
re

 h
om

es
 

E
ns

ur
e 

ou
r p

la
ns

 m
ee

t e
du

ca
tio

na
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

  
 D

el
iv

er
 T

ha
m

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 a

nd
 a

dd
re

ss
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ov
er

 d
en

si
ty

 le
ve

ls
 

 N
ew

 h
om

es
 to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

an
d 

su
ita

bl
y 

si
ze

d 
 E

ns
ur

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
su

es
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
eo

pl
e 

on
 m

id
dl

e 
in

co
m

es
 

R
ev

ie
w

 m
et

ho
d 

of
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 “h

ar
d 

to
 re

ac
h”

 g
ro

up
s 

N
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
cl

ie
nt

 g
ro

up
s 

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

w
ith

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 a
re

as
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

Is
su

e 
of

 c
ap

ac
ity

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 s
et

tin
g 

fu
tu

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 ta

rg
et

s 
N

ew
 h

om
es

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 g
re

at
er

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 w

ith
 m

or
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

sp
ac

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 d
en

si
ty

 p
ol

ic
y 

in
 L

D
F 

to
 re

fle
ct

 L
on

do
n 

P
la

n 
le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
ffi

ci
en

t u
se

 o
f l

an
d 

W
e 

w
ill 

re
vi

ew
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y;
 w

e 
w

ill 
al

so
 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
or

e 
fa

m
ily

 s
iz

ed
 h

om
es

 
A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 is

su
es

; w
e 

w
ill 

se
ek

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 in
co

m
e 

gr
ou

ps
 

W
e 

w
ill 

re
vi

ew
 h

ow
 w

e 
co

ns
ul

t w
ith

 “h
ar

d 
to

 re
ac

h”
 g

ro
up

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 E
ve

nt
 

N
ee

d 
to

 s
tre

ng
th

en
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

lin
ks

, r
es

id
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

as
 a

 s
tra

te
gy

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
S

tre
ng

th
en

in
g 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
of

 S
af

er
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
s 

a 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 P

rio
rit

y 
 

Page 41



  
13

 

Fu
tu

re
 re

so
ur

ci
ng

 o
f t

he
 D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 T

ar
ge

t 
E

ns
ur

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 re
ne

w
al

 
C

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t i
nt

er
na

l s
pa

ce
 

 R
ev

ie
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

 A
dd

re
ss

 tr
an

si
en

ce
 a

nd
 re

la
te

d 
fa

ct
or

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
B

uy
 to

 L
et

, a
nd

 
en

su
re

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
 E

xp
lo

re
 m

or
e 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
 A

dd
re

ss
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

ss
ue

s 
in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
s 

a 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 P

rio
rit

y 
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

as
 a

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 P
rio

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
re

vi
ew

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
 

S
up

er
-F

le
xi

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
D

es
ig

na
tio

n 
of

 C
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
s 

a 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

P
rio

rit
y;

 w
e 

w
ill 

re
vi

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
W

ill
 lo

ok
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
gr

ee
m

en
t r

es
tri

ct
io

ns
 

w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 b

ul
k 

sa
le

s;
 w

e 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

to
 c

re
at

e 
ba

la
nc

ed
 a

nd
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

rig
ht

 s
oc

ia
l i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

as
 a

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 P
rio

rit
y;

 w
e 

w
ill 

ex
pl

or
e 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
so

lu
tio

ns
 fo

r a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
  

D
es

ig
na

tio
n 

of
 D

es
ig

n,
 E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

as
 a

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 P

rio
rit

y 
LS

P
/C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Tr

us
t 

A
dd

re
ss

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

f f
os

te
r c

ar
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
la

rg
er

 h
om

es
 w

ith
 

m
or

e 
be

dr
oo

m
s 

C
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t i

nt
er

na
l s

pa
ce

 

W
e 

w
ill

 s
ee

k 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 la
rg

er
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 a
nd

 e
xp

lo
re

 o
th

er
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

 
 W

e 
w

ill
 re

vi
ew

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f s
pa

ce
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r S

up
er

-F
le

xi
bl

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

C
H

P
 b

oa
rd

s 
N

ee
d 

fo
r f

am
ily

 s
iz

ed
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
C

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t i
nt

er
na

l s
pa

ce
 

W
e 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
or

e 
fa

m
ily

 s
iz

ed
 h

om
es

 
W

e 
w

ill
 re

vi
ew

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f s
pa

ce
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r S

up
er

-F
le

xi
bl

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

V
S

S
P

 
C

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t i
nt

er
na

l s
pa

ce
 

W
e 

w
ill

 re
vi

ew
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

r S
up

er
-F

le
xi

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
 2.

4 
Eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

Im
pa

ct
 

 E
qu

al
iti

es
 a

nd
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 a
re

 c
en

tra
l t

o 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

is
 is

 re
fle

ct
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s.

  G
oo

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

as
 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
in

 m
ai

ns
tre

am
in

g 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
, w

he
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

ex
pl

ic
itl

y 
ad

dr
es

s 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
it 

at
 e

ve
ry

 s
ta

ge
 in

 p
ol

ic
y,

 
pl

an
ni

ng
, s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

. 
 Eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

D
iv

er
si

ty
 Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
re

 a
 k

ey
 to

ol
 in

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 to

 a
ll 

gr
ou

ps
 r

eg
ar

dl
es

s 
of

 
th

ei
r 

ra
ce

, e
th

ni
c 

or
ig

in
, g

en
de

r, 
ag

e,
 d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 s
ex

ua
lit

y,
 fa

ith
/re

lig
io

n 
an

d 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

ar
ea

 th
at

 m
ay

 p
re

ve
nt

 e
qu

al
ity

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
.  

A
n 

Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t h
as

 in
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
st

ra
te

gy
.  

E
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 g

ro
up

s 
w

er
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 th

e 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
, a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

ou
r 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 c

on
su

lti
ng

 
w

ith
 “h

ar
d 

to
 re

ac
h”

 g
ro

up
s.

 
 Th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 a
do

pt
ed

 t
he

 R
ac

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
Sc

he
m

e,
 a

nd
 is

 w
or

ki
ng

 t
ow

ar
ds

 le
ve

l 4
 o

f 
th

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

w
hi

ch
 r

el
at

es
 t

o 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r e
qu

al
ity

 g
ro

up
s.

  I
n 

20
07

 w
e 

w
ill 

un
de

rta
ke

 a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f E

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 Im
pa

ct
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 o
f o

ur
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

, t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 w

e 
in

cl
ud

e 
al

l g
ro

up
s 

in
 o

ur
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 

Page 42



  
14

 

G
iv

en
 th

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 n

ee
ds

 o
f n

ew
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 s

et
tli

ng
 in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
, t

he
re

 re
m

ai
ns

 a
 s

tro
ng

 c
as

e 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

re
le

va
nc

e 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

  A
 B

la
ck

 a
nd

 M
in

or
ity

 E
th

ni
c 

(B
M

E)
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
, w

hi
ch

 a
im

s 
to

 b
rin

g 
ab

ou
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 w

el
l b

ei
ng

 o
f b

la
ck

 a
nd

 m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

.  
In

 2
00

7,
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 L

on
do

n 
ar

e 
un

de
rta

ki
ng

 a
n 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
su

rv
ey

 fo
r 

G
yp

si
es

 a
nd

 
Tr

av
el

le
rs

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
pr

ov
id

e 
us

ef
ul

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r G
yp

si
es

 a
nd

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
.  

 2.
5 

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

d 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 

 Th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

ou
tli

ne
 o

f t
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
 a

nd
 k

ey
 in

di
ca

to
rs

.  
A

 fu
ll 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 S

ur
ve

y 
re

po
rt 

w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
00

5,
 

an
d 

th
is

 w
as

 h
el

pf
ul

 in
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 m
or

e 
re

ce
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
.  

S
om

e 
ex

tra
ct

s 
of

 k
ey

 d
at

a 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
.  

S
ec

tio
n 

th
re

e 
co

nt
ai

ns
 d

et
ai

le
d 

an
al

ys
is

 a
s 

to
 h

ow
 o

ur
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ed

 m
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

in
 m

ee
tin

g 
ou

r h
ou

si
ng

 s
tra

te
gy

 n
ee

ds
 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
   

 B
or

ou
gh

 P
ro

fil
e 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 

Th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 1

63
,9

44
 re

si
de

nt
s 

(C
en

su
s 

20
01

). 
 T

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
is

 s
et

 to
 g

ro
w

 b
y 

30
,0

00
 p

eo
pl

e 
by

 2
01

6 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 

th
e 

(G
LA

) 
20

05
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
P

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 (

th
is

 ta
ke

s 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
nn

ed
 in

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
). 

 T
he

re
 

ar
e 

69
,1

79
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 o

f w
hi

ch
 1

9,
96

6 
ar

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ow
ne

d,
 2

,4
94

 a
re

 R
S

L 
an

d 
46

,7
19

 a
re

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
.  

Th
is

 is
 a

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 I
nv

es
tm

en
t 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(H
IP

) 
in

 2
00

6.
  

Th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 d

ef
in

iti
on

 in
cl

ud
es

 p
riv

at
e 

re
nt

ed
, 

ow
ne

r 
oc

cu
pi

ed
 a

nd
 s

ha
re

d 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

ho
m

es
. 

  
A

ve
ra

ge
 P

ro
pe

rty
 P

ric
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5 
£2

16
,5

88
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
£2

26
,6

23
 

S
ou

rc
e:

 L
an

d 
R

eg
is

try
 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 p

ro
pe

rty
 p

ric
es

 a
re

 a
m

on
gs

t t
he

 lo
w

es
t i

n 
Lo

nd
on

, 
as

 re
co

rd
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

La
nd

 R
eg

is
try

 H
ou

se
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x.
  T

hi
s 

da
ta

 s
ho

w
ed

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l 

av
er

ag
e 

pr
ic

e 
of

 £
22

6,
62

3 
as

 a
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
, 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 
£2

16
,5

88
 a

s 
at

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

05
. 

 T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 p
ro

pe
rty

 p
ric

e 
fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

 
w

as
 re

po
rte

d 
at

 £
30

5,
24

7 
at

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
in

 th
e 

E
ve

ni
ng

 S
ta

nd
ar

d.
 

 Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ha
s 

a 
hi

gh
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

of
 

so
ci

al
 

ho
us

in
g.

  
Th

is
 i

s 
re

fle
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

en
su

s 
20

01
 

w
he

re
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ha

d 
th

e 
4th

 h
ig

he
st

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 t

he
 8

th
 h

ig
he

st
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
R

S
L 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
fo

r L
on

do
n.

 T
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 a
ls

o 
ha

d 
th

e 
9th

 
hi

gh
es

t 
to

ta
l 

of
 

bo
th

 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
R

S
L 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
 f

ro
m

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

H
IP

 
da

ta
 in

 2
00

5.
 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 T

en
ur

e

67
.5

28
.9

3.
6

0.
0

10
.0

20
.0

30
.0

40
.0

50
.0

60
.0

70
.0

80
.0

C
ou

nc
il

R
S

L
Pr

iv
at

e
S

ec
to

r

%

C
ou

nc
il

R
S

L

Pr
iv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 H

ou
si

ng
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

20
06

 

Page 43



  
15

 

In
 2

00
2,

 2
2%

 o
f t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 w

as
 u

nd
er

 1
6,

 w
hi

ch
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 1

8%
 a

nd
 1

9%
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 

an
d 

E
ng

la
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

s.
  

Th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 h
as

 t
he

 s
ec

on
d 

hi
gh

es
t 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
its

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ag

e 
of

 1
8 

in
 L

on
do

n 
at

 1
0.

91
%

 
(C

en
su

s 
20

01
) w

hi
ls

t 6
7%

 o
f l

oo
ke

d 
af

te
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
er

e 
pl

ac
ed

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

in
 2

00
5.

 
 C

en
su

s 
20

01
 d

at
a 

sh
ow

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

30
,3

90
 p

eo
pl

e 
liv

in
g 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ag

ed
 o

ve
r 6

0,
 w

hi
ch

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 1

8.
5%

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
.  

Th
is

 c
om

pa
re

s 
to

 a
 L

on
do

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 1
6.

4%
 a

nd
 th

e 
E

ng
la

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 2
0.

8%
.  

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f o
ld

er
 

pe
op

le
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

is
 s

et
 to

 ri
se

.  
Th

e 
ol

de
r p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 G
re

at
 B

rit
ai

n 
ha

s 
gr

ow
n 

st
ea

di
ly

 in
 th

e 
la

st
 2

0 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

by
 2

03
1 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

ag
e 

of
 8

5 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 7

9%
 (H

ou
si

ng
 L

IN
 F

ac
ts

he
et

 7
, 2

00
4)

. 
 Th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 f
ra

il 
el

de
rly

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 l
oc

al
ly

. 
 T

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 S
ur

ve
y 

20
05

 r
ev

ea
le

d 
th

at
 2

2.
6%

 o
f 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 c

on
ta

in
 o

ld
er

 p
er

so
ns

 o
nl

y 
(6

6.
3%

 o
f t

he
se

 a
re

 in
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

). 
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 e

th
ni

ca
lly

 d
iv

er
se

. T
he

 B
M

E
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 1

4.
8%

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l p

op
ul

at
io

n,
 

w
ith

 a
 h

ig
h 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
in

 t
he

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
re

a,
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 4

5.
62

%
 i

n 
A

bb
ey

 a
nd

 3
1.

73
%

 i
n 

G
as

co
ig

ne
 w

ar
ds

. 
Th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 
S

ur
ve

y 
20

05
 a

ls
o 

re
ve

al
ed

 th
at

 B
la

ck
 a

nd
 A

si
an

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ar
e 

di
sp

ro
po

rti
on

at
el

y 
liv

in
g 

in
 p

riv
at

e 
re

nt
ed

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 

ar
ea

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ov

er
cr

ow
de

d.
 T

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 B
M

E
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 g

ro
w

 to
 a

lm
os

t a
 th

ird
 o

f t
he

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

ne
xt

 tw
en

ty
 y

ea
rs

.  
 In

 te
rm

s 
of

 h
ea

lth
 th

e 
C

en
su

s 
20

01
 s

ho
w

s 
th

at
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ra

nk
s 

1st
 o

ut
 o

f a
ll 

Lo
nd

on
 b

or
ou

gh
s 

in
 th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

ith
 

lim
iti

ng
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 il

ln
es

s,
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 u
np

ai
d 

ca
re

 f
or

 5
0 

or
 m

or
e 

ho
ur

s 
of

 t
he

 w
ee

k.
  

10
.7

%
 o

f 
th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

de
sc

rib
e 

th
ei

r h
ea

lth
 a

s 
‘n

ot
 g

oo
d’

, w
hi

ch
 is

 th
e 

2nd
 h

ig
he

st
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
in

 L
on

do
n.

   
 

 Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 a

ls
o 

ra
nk

ed
 1

st
 in

 L
on

do
n 

in
 th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 n

o 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

C
en

su
s 

20
01

.  
62

.3
%

 o
f t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

er
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 in
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

be
lo

w
 t

he
 L

on
do

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 6
9.

1%
 (

A
nn

ua
l P

op
ul

at
io

n 
S

ur
ve

y 
20

05
). 

 A
 m

ed
ia

n 
in

co
m

e 
of

 ju
st

 o
ve

r 
£2

6,
00

0 
fo

r 
bo

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 fr
om

 2
00

6 
P

ay
ch

ec
k 

da
ta

.  
Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

 fi
gu

re
 o

f 1
1.

5%
 o

f t
he

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ca
te

go
ris

ed
 a

s 
N

ot
 in

 E
du

ca
tio

n,
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

or
 T

ra
in

in
g 

(N
E

E
T)

 a
t 

30
th

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

06
, 

w
hi

ch
 m

et
 t

he
 G

O
L 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 
11

.6
%

. 
 T

hi
s 

co
m

pa
re

s 
to

 a
n 

E
as

t L
on

do
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 8

%
. 

 S
iz

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
N

ee
d 

S
up

pl
y 

TO
TA

L 
S

iz
e 

as
 %

  
of

 to
ta

l n
ee

d 
1 

be
d 

10
15

 
30

0 
71

5 
36

.8
%

 
2 

be
d 

11
68

 
43

9 
72

9 
37

.5
%

 
3 

be
d 

54
8 

21
9 

32
9 

16
.9

%
 

4+
 b

ed
 

18
2 

11
 

17
1 

8.
8%

 
TO

TA
L 

29
13

 
96

9 
19

44
 

10
0%

 
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 S
ur

ve
y 

D
at

a 
20

05
 –

 N
et

 a
nn

ua
l n

ee
d 

fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 b
y 

si
ze

  

 Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 S

ur
ve

y 
20

05
 g

av
e 

a 
br

ea
kd

ow
n 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
d 

by
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

pr
op

er
ty

 
si

ze
s.

 
 

A
 

re
ce

nt
 

an
al

ys
is

 
of

 
C

ou
nc

il 
H

ou
si

ng
 

R
eg

is
te

r 
da

ta
 

in
 

Ju
ne

 
20

06
 w

as
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n.
  

Th
is

 s
ho

w
ed

 a
 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
si

m
ila

r 
pi

ct
ur

e,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 a

lm
os

t 
50

%
 

of
 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 

w
er

e 
si

ng
le

 
pe

op
le

 

Page 44



  
16

 

S
iz

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
N

ee
d 

S
iz

e 
as

 %
  

of
 to

ta
l n

ee
d 

1 
be

d 
40

97
 

50
.2

%
 

2 
be

d 
21

97
 

26
.9

%
 

3 
be

d 
17

48
 

21
.4

%
 

4+
 b

ed
 

12
0 

1.
5%

 
TO

TA
L 

81
62

 
10

0%
 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
eg

is
te

r D
at

a 
20

06
 –

 N
ee

d 
fo

r a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 b

y 
si

ze
 

50
%

 
of

 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 
w

er
e 

si
ng

le
 

pe
op

le
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 S

ur
ve

y 
fig

ur
e 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
35

%
. 

 T
hi

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
, 

as
 H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 S
ur

ve
y 

is
 n

et
 a

nn
ua

l 
ne

ed
 

ba
se

d 
on

 
a 

sa
m

pl
e 

da
ta

. 
 

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
R

eg
is

te
r 

da
ta

 
al

so
 

sh
ow

s 
a 

hi
gh

er
 n

um
be

r r
eq

ui
rin

g 
3+

 b
ed

ro
om

s.
 

 

Page 45



  
17

 

Th
e 

In
de

x 
of

 M
ul

tip
le

 D
ep

riv
at

io
n 

(IM
D

) 2
00

4 
pl

ac
es

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

as
 t

he
 4

2nd
 m

os
t 

de
pr

iv
ed

 d
is

tri
ct

 i
n 

E
ng

la
nd

, 
an

d 
th

e 
el

ev
en

th
 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 in
 L

on
do

n.
  

Th
e 

m
ap

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

R
an

k 
of

 IM
D

 s
co

re
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
   

 Fu
rth

er
 m

ap
s 

sh
ow

 th
e 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
H

R
A

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
, 

an
d 

th
e 

es
ta

te
 r

en
ew

al
 s

ch
em

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 F

ut
ur

es
 

P
ro

je
ct

.  
It 

is
 a

pp
ar

en
t 

ho
w

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 h
ig

h 
de

pr
iv

at
io

n 
re

la
te

 to
 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 h

ig
h 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
ns

 o
f s

oc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

. 
 Th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

N
ee

ds
 

S
ur

ve
y 

20
05

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

7.
0%

 
of

 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 a
s 

ov
er

cr
ow

de
d.

  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ow
n 

ho
us

in
g 

ha
s 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 o

ve
rc

ro
w

de
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
, 

an
d 

th
er

e 
is

 a
ls

o 
a 

ne
ed

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 o

ve
rc

ro
w

di
ng

 in
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
re

nt
ed

 s
ec

to
r. 

  
 17

.2
%

 o
f 

al
l 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 w

er
e 

al
so

 f
ou

nd
 t

o 
ha

ve
 s

pe
ci

al
 n

ee
ds

 
fro

m
 t

he
 s

ur
ve

y,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 a

bo
ve

 t
he

 n
at

io
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f 

11
-1

3%
.  

Th
e 

pr
ed

om
in

an
t 

gr
ou

p 
w

as
 

ph
ys

ic
al

ly
 

di
sa

bl
ed

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
fra

il 
el

de
rly

.  
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 d
is

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 le
ve

l o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
24

%
 o

f 
th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 I
n 

20
04

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

32
4 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 H

IV
 i

n 
B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

, 
77

%
 

of
 

w
ho

m
 

w
er

e 
B

la
ck

 
A

fri
ca

n.
 

 
Th

is
 

fig
ur

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

8%
 o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 a
du

lts
 li

vi
ng

 w
ith

 H
IV

 in
 

N
or

th
 E

as
t 

Lo
nd

on
 (

N
or

th
 E

as
t 

Lo
nd

on
, 

A
nn

ua
l 

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 
R

ep
or

t, 
20

04
). 

 Th
er

e 
ar

e 
90

7 
as

yl
um

 
se

ek
er

s 
an

d 
re

fu
ge

es
 

in
 

B
ar

ki
ng

 
an

d 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 
as

 
at

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
, 

of
 

w
hi

ch
 

21
7 

ar
e 

un
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 a

sy
lu

m
 s

ee
ki

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 T
he

 t
re

nd
 i

nd
ic

at
es

 a
 

sl
ig

ht
 i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 t

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 a
sy

lu
m

 s
ee

ke
rs

 f
am

ilie
s 

an
d 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 n

ee
ds

 fo
r 

th
es

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

ro
un

d 
su

ita
bl

e 
in

-b
or

ou
gh

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 f
or

 f
os

te
rin

g,
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r 
ca

re
 

le
av

er
s.

 
  

 
 

Page 46



  
18

 
 

 

Page 47



  
19

 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

n 
ta

ck
lin

g 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s,

 a
nd

 th
is

 is
 re

fle
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t s
ta

tu
to

ry
 B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 (

B
V

P
Is

). 
 T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
m

ov
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

an
d 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

  
B

ed
 a

nd
 B

re
ak

fa
st

 (
B

&
B

) 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
is

 n
ow

 o
nl

y 
us

ed
 in

 e
m

er
ge

nc
ie

s.
  

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 m
ar

ke
d 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 t
he

 l
en

gt
h 

of
 s

ta
y 

in
 b

ot
h 

B
&

B
 a

nd
 h

os
te

ls
 f

or
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 u

ni
nt

en
tio

na
lly

 h
om

el
es

s 
an

d 
in

 p
rio

rit
y 

ne
ed

 a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 B
V

P
I (

B
V

18
3)

.  
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

B
VP

I 
20

04
-5

 
20

05
-6

 
B

V
18

3 
Le

ng
th

 o
f S

ta
y 

in
 T

em
po

ra
ry

  A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

(a
) B

ed
 a

nd
 B

re
ak

fa
st

 (w
ee

ks
) 

3.
73

 
0.

63
 

(b
) H

os
te

l (
w

ee
ks

) 
5.

49
 

0.
95

 
B

V
20

2 
N

um
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
sl

ee
pi

ng
 ro

ug
h 

on
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

ni
gh

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 

Le
ss

 th
an

 5
 

1 
B

V
20

3 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f f

am
ili

es
 p

la
ce

d 
in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
Q

ua
lif

ie
d 

-3
.1

2%
 

B
V

21
3 

nu
m

be
r o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
ho

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
ho

m
el

es
s,

 w
ho

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

ho
us

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
(s

), 
an

d 
fo

r w
ho

m
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

dv
ic

e 
re

so
lv

ed
 th

ei
r s

itu
at

io
n 

(p
er

 1
00

0 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

) 
N

ew
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
5.

56
 

B
V

21
4 

P
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
s 

st
at

ut
or

ily
 h

om
el

es
s 

w
ho

 w
er

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

s 
st

at
ut

or
ily

 h
om

el
es

s 
by

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
la

st
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

N
ew

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
r 

0%
 

 O
ur

 re
co

rd
 s

ho
w

s 
a 

de
cl

in
e 

in
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s,
 h

ow
ev

er
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l r

is
e 

in
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r h
ou

si
ng

 fr
om

 n
on

-p
rio

rit
y 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 in

 t
he

 la
st

 y
ea

r. 
Th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 h
om

el
es

s 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

an
d 

si
ng

le
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 p

eo
pl

e 
liv

in
g 

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

, w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
25

%
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

  
E

xt
ra

 f
un

di
ng

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ob

ta
in

ed
 f

ro
m

 in
ve

st
 t

o 
sa

ve
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 c

ap
ita

l 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r 
£1

50
,0

00
, 

an
d 

£8
0,

00
0 

D
C

LG
 fu

nd
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

on
tri

bu
te

d 
fo

r t
he

 re
nt

 d
ep

os
it 

sc
he

m
e.

 
 H

ou
si

ng
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 
A

 S
to

ck
 C

on
di

tio
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

w
as

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t f

or
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

st
oc

k 
in

 2
00

4.
  

Th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 s
to

ck
 th

at
 is

 n
on

-d
ec

en
t 

ha
s 

fa
lle

n 
to

 4
6.

7%
 in

 2
00

5-
6.

  P
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 ra

is
e 

th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 li

vi
ng

 
in

 d
ec

en
t h

om
es

.  
 

 SA
P 

(S
ta

nd
ar

d 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t P
ro

ce
du

re
) i

s 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

sy
st

em
 fo

r e
ne

rg
y 

ra
tin

g 
of

 d
w

el
lin

gs
.  

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

S
A

P
 

ra
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 m

ea
su

re
d 

by
 a

 B
V

P
I (

B
V

63
) a

nd
 w

as
 re

co
rd

ed
 a

s 
66

 in
 2

00
5-

6.
  T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 S

A
P

 ra
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r h

ou
si

ng
 is

 5
5.

 
 Th

e 
R

S
L 

Fo
ru

m
 is

 re
qu

es
tin

g 
th

at
 R

S
Ls

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

ei
r p

ro
gr

es
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 d
ec

en
t h

om
es

.  
M

an
y 

R
S

L 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ha
ve

 h
ig

he
r 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

s 
th

ey
 w

er
e 

bu
ilt

 m
or

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
. 

 

Page 48



  
20

 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
 

 

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 S

ur
ve

y 
20

05
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
cl

ea
r n

ee
d 

fo
r 

ne
w

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

 I
t 

al
so

 e
xp

lo
re

d 
th

e 
w

id
er

 p
er

sp
ec

tiv
e 

of
 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
ts

, i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 b
al

an
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

te
nu

re
 a

nd
 p

ro
pe

rty
 s

iz
e.

  
A

 s
na

ps
ho

t 
of

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

d
is

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 t

he
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

su
m

m
ar

y.
  

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

jo
in

tly
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ith
 E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

kn
ow

n 
as

 th
e 

B
ar

ki
ng

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tu

dy
.  

Th
is

 is
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 
w

ith
 t

he
 b

as
is

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
on

 t
he

 m
ix

 a
nd

 t
en

ur
e 

of
 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

.  
Th

e 
st

ud
y 

w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
00

5 
an

d 
an

al
ys

ed
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 s
hi

fts
 i

n 
th

e 
E

as
t 

Lo
nd

on
 e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

ho
w

 
th

es
e 

m
ig

ht
 

af
fe

ct
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
fu

tu
re

 
ho

us
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

  

S
ou

rc
e:

 F
or

dh
am

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
Lt

d.
 H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 S
ur

ve
y 

20
05

 
 A

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 A

cc
es

s 
W

hi
ls

t i
t i

s 
im

pe
ra

tiv
e 

to
 m

ee
t h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
d,

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ha
s 

m
an

y 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 le

ve
ls

 o
f s

oc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

 h
av

e 
be

en
 o

ve
rly

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
in

 t
he

 p
as

t. 
 E

vi
de

nc
e 

fro
m

 t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 S

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 t
he

 B
ar

ki
ng

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tu

dy
 i

nd
ic

at
es

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t n
ee

ds
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 fu
rth

er
 to

 w
id

en
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 m

ar
ke

t p
ric

ed
 h

om
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
  

Th
is

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 c

ho
ic

e.
   

 B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 –
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 A
sp

ira
tio

na
l H

ou
si

ng
 

H
ou

si
ng

 m
ar

ke
t r

en
ew

al
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

s 
a 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

  
O

ur
 s

tra
te

gy
 is

 to
 c

re
at

e 
m

ix
ed

 te
nu

re
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
 a

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

en
su

rin
g 

su
ch

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

.  
N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
re

 th
er

ef
or

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
m

ix
 o

f t
en

ur
e 

op
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 n
ew

 a
sp

ira
tio

na
l h

om
es

 fo
r s

al
e,

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
of

fe
r f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

Page 49



  
21

 

bo
ro

ug
h 

w
ho

 a
re

 in
 m

od
er

at
e 

to
 h

ig
h 

in
co

m
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

 O
ur

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 G
as

co
ig

ne
 E

st
at

e 
an

d 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 R
oa

d/
N

or
th

 
S

tre
et

 s
ite

 w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f n

ew
 m

ix
ed

 te
nu

re
 a

nd
 a

sp
ira

tio
na

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

.  
 2.

6 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 M
ea

su
rin

g 
ou

r 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 i
s 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

fo
r 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 m

ax
im

is
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 O
ur

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 is
 a

ss
es

se
d 

in
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f d
iff

er
en

t w
ay

s.
  

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
H

ou
si

ng
 is

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t (
C

P
A

). 
 A

n 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 h

ou
si

ng
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
fu

nc
tio

n 
to

ok
 p

la
ce

 in
 la

te
 2

00
4 

an
d 

w
as

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 “F
ai

r”
 o

ne
-s

ta
r s

er
vi

ce
 w

ith
 p

ro
m

is
in

g 
pr

os
pe

ct
s 

fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

 A
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

w
as

 d
ra

w
n 

up
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

 T
he

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
si

nc
e 

be
en

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

fu
rth

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 o

ng
oi

ng
.  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
on

 th
e 

Au
di

t C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 2

00
7-

8.
 

 D
ec

is
io

n 
M

ak
in

g 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 m

ai
n 

fin
an

ci
al

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
A

ss
em

bl
y 

w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

 re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 w
ar

ds
 o

f t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

.  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 te

n 
M

em
be

rs
 m

ak
es

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 o

n 
m

aj
or

 is
su

es
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 p

ol
ic

y,
 b

ud
ge

t, 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
, a

nd
 

m
ee

ts
 r

eg
ul

ar
ly

 to
 m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
fu

ll 
A

ss
em

bl
y.

  
Th

e 
LS

P
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
in

pu
t o

n 
cr

os
s-

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

cr
os

s-
ag

en
cy

 
is

su
es

 i
n 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

  
C

H
P

s 
ha

ve
 i

np
ut

 i
nt

o 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

bl
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
n 

ho
w

 s
om

e 
se

cu
rit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

on
 e

st
at

es
. 

 Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 is

 in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

bo
th

 th
e 

C
ap

ita
l S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l m

od
el

lin
g.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
ap

ita
l S

tra
te

gy
 is

 
an

 o
ve

r-a
rc

hi
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

do
cu

m
en

t r
el

at
in

g 
to

 c
ap

ita
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

its
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 h

ow
 th

e 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 r
ed

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
of

 
ca

pi
ta

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

es
 t

o 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
of

 c
or

po
ra

te
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 
 T

he
 M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tra
te

gy
 s

et
s 

th
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
C

ou
nc

il 
fin

an
ce

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
  

It 
is

 a
 r

ol
lin

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

hi
ch

 is
 u

pd
at

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

gu
la

r f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
 O

ur
 s

tro
ng

 p
os

iti
on

 a
s 

a 
de

bt
 f

re
e 

au
th

or
ity

 h
as

 e
na

bl
ed

 u
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 f

or
 r

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t 
an

d 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
its

 R
S

L 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s.
  

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

C
ou

nc
il 

st
oc

k 
ar

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 M

aj
or

 R
ep

ai
rs

 
A

llo
w

an
ce

 (
M

R
A

) 
fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
re

ve
nu

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 A

llo
w

an
ce

.  
Th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

es
 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
(N

A
H

P)
.  

Th
e 

M
ay

or
 o

f L
on

do
n 

w
ill 

ha
ve

 g
re

at
er

 
po

w
er

s 
in

 d
ec

id
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

io
rit

ie
s,

 th
ou

gh
 d

ec
en

t h
om

es
 fu

nd
in

g 
w

ill 
re

m
ai

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

 

Page 50



  
22

 

E
xt

er
na

l 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 f
un

di
ng

 a
re

 b
ec

om
in

g 
m

or
e 

im
po

rta
nt

 a
nd

 b
id

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

b-
re

gi
on

al
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

 N
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 h

av
e 

in
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f i
ns

ta
nc

es
 u

se
d 

C
ou

nc
il 

la
nd

 v
al

ue
s 

to
 s

ub
si

di
se

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
.  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
xp

lo
rin

g 
w

ith
 E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s,

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

ot
he

rs
, t

he
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t o

f a
 L

oc
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 C
om

pa
ny

 
(L

H
C

) a
s 

a 
m

ea
ns

 o
f d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ne

w
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ap

tu
rin

g 
up

lif
t i

n 
la

nd
 v

al
ue

s 
fo

r t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
; t

hi
s 

is
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 fu
rth

er
 in

 
ch

ap
te

r 3
.3

. 
 O

ur
 h

is
to

ric
 a

nd
 p

la
nn

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

. 
 Ta

bl
e:

 H
is

to
ric

 a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
 F

in
an

ce
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ap
ita

l (
£m

) 
20

02
-3

 
20

03
-4

 
20

04
-5

 
20

05
-6

 
20

06
-7

 
20

07
-8

 
20

08
-9

 
20

09
-1

0 
To

ta
l C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e:

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 C
ou

nc
il 

ho
us

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

   
   

 3
1,

68
7,

00
0 

   
   

46
,7

85
,0

00
 

   
   

 2
7,

87
2,

00
0 

32
,0

86
,0

28
 

30
,9

74
,0

00
 

   
   

 3
3,

23
1,

00
0 

29
,6

11
,0

00
  

 3
0,

81
1,

00
0 

 
   

 P
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 

1,
80

0,
00

0 
1,

50
0,

00
0

1,
35

1,
95

0
75

8,
87

9
1,

28
9,

00
0 

1,
40

0,
00

0
To

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 
To

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 
N

A
H

P
 

2,
80

0,
00

0*
 

*(
20

02
-4

 a
s 

2 
ye

ar
 

al
lo

ca
tio

n)
 

20
,4

08
,0

00
**

 
**

(2
00

4-
6 

as
 2

 
ye

ar
 a

llo
ca

tio
n)

 
17

,4
00

,0
00

 
14

,4
44

,4
38

 (p
ar

t 
20

06
-8

 a
llo

ca
tio

n)
 

 T
o 

be
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
   

LA
S

H
G

 
20

,6
00

,0
00

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 R

en
ew

al
 

20
,6

34
 

-
-

-
-

-
- 

- 
To

ta
l C

ap
ita

l 
56

,9
07

,6
34

 
48

,2
85

,0
00

49
,6

31
,9

50
32

,8
44

,9
07

49
,6

63
,0

00
49

,0
75

,4
38

29
,6

11
,0

00
 

30
,8

11
,0

00
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

ev
en

ue
 (£

m
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
ep

ai
rs

/m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
   

   
 1

7,
62

4,
00

0 
   

   
 1

8,
26

1,
00

0 
   

   
 1

8,
55

1,
00

0 
   

   
 2

1,
15

5,
99

6 
   

   
 2

1,
28

6,
00

0 
21

,8
77

,0
00

 
21

,9
86

,3
85

 
22

,0
41

,3
50

.9
6 

M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 G

en
er

al
 

   
   

 1
2,

46
0,

00
0 

   
   

 1
2,

92
4,

00
0 

   
   

 1
4,

51
1,

00
0 

   
   

 1
7,

48
3,

26
8 

   
   

 1
6,

42
2,

00
0 

16
,9

96
,0

00
 

17
,0

80
,9

80
 

17
,1

23
,6

82
,4

5 
   

 S
pe

ci
al

 
   

   
   

5,
98

5,
00

0 
   

   
   

6,
16

1,
00

0 
   

   
   

6,
53

4,
00

0 
   

   
   

6,
69

3,
01

9 
   

   
   

7,
46

4,
00

0 
7,

77
7,

00
0 

7,
81

5,
88

5 
7,

83
5,

42
4.

71
 

D
ire

ct
 re

ve
nu

e 
sp

en
di

ng
 

   
   

   
4,

06
8,

00
0 

   
   

   
3,

17
7,

00
0 

   
   

   
1,

00
0,

00
0 

   
   

   
1,

00
7,

69
9 

   
   

   
   

50
0,

00
0 

- 
- 

- 
R

en
t r

eb
at

es
 

   
   

 3
6,

20
5,

00
0 

   
   

 3
6,

44
7,

00
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
  

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
O

th
er

 
   

   
 1

3,
73

1,
00

0 
   

   
 1

8,
46

2,
00

0 
   

   
 2

7,
17

0,
00

0 
   

   
 2

5,
80

3,
45

0 
   

   
 2

6,
94

3,
00

0 
30

,3
14

,0
00

 
34

,2
54

,8
20

 
38

,7
07

,9
47

 
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

   
   

 9
0,

07
3,

00
0 

   
   

 9
5,

43
2,

00
0 

   
   

 6
7,

76
6,

00
0 

   
   

 7
2,

14
3,

43
2 

   
   

 7
2,

61
5,

00
0 

76
,9

64
,0

00
 

81
,1

38
,0

70
 

85
,7

08
,4

05
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
To

ta
l I

nc
om

e 
   

 (9
2,

69
4,

00
0)

 
   

 (9
3,

83
9,

00
0)

 
   

  (
68

,9
56

,0
00

) 
   

  (
71

,2
75

,4
80

) 
   

   
(7

2,
90

4,
00

0)
 

(7
6,

65
5,

00
0)

 
(8

0,
48

7,
75

0)
 

(8
4,

51
2,

13
8)

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ef

ic
it/

Su
rp

lu
s 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r 

   
   

 (2
,6

21
,0

00
) 

   
   

   
1,

59
3,

00
0 

   
 (1

,1
90

,0
00

) 
   

   
   

   
86

7,
95

2 
   

   
   

(2
89

,0
00

) 
30

9,
00

0 
65

0,
32

0 
1,

19
6,

26
7 

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
ub

si
dy

 –
 R

en
t R

eb
at

es
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

nd
 In

co
m

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
H

R
A

 in
 2

00
4-

05
 

 
 

 
 

 

20
02

-0
3 

– 
20

05
-0

6 
– 

Fi
gu

re
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
cc

ou
nt

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

20
06

-0
7 

– 
fig

ur
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
B

ud
ge

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

20
07

-0
8 

– 
fig

ur
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
B

ud
ge

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
20

07
-0

8 
– 

20
09

-1
0 

– 
di

re
ct

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
ss

um
es

 n
et

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 0
.5

%
 a

nd
 0

.2
5%

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

  O
th

er
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 (D

C
LG

 p
ay

m
en

t) 
as

su
m

es
 1

3%
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

as
 p

er
 2

00
7-

08
.  

In
co

m
e 

as
su

m
es

 5
%

 in
cr

ea
se

. 
20

08
-0

9 
– 

20
09

-1
0 

– 
R

ev
en

ue
 fi

gu
re

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 2

00
7-

08
 b

ud
ge

t w
ith

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
ye

ar
s 

Page 51



  
23

 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

co
re

ca
rd

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 h

as
 c

on
tri

bu
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 it

s 
st

at
ut

or
y 

B
V

P
Is

, a
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

.  
Se

rv
ic

e 
Sc

or
ec

ar
ds

 c
on

ta
in

 th
e 

ke
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 fo

r e
ac

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 c
or

po
ra

te
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 in
di

vi
du

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

  T
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Sc

or
ec

ar
d 

is
 t

he
 d

iv
is

io
n’

s 
an

nu
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

n 
w

hi
ch

 r
ei

nf
or

ce
s 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 t

ar
ge

ts
. 

 T
he

 d
ai

ly
 w

or
k 

of
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 te

am
 m

em
be

rs
 re

fle
ct

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
 p

rio
rit

ie
s,

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
a 

cl
ea

r m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r d
el

iv
er

y.
  

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
20

03
-6

 A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 

Th
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
3-

6 
pl

ay
ed

 a
 c

ru
ci

al
 p

ar
t i

n 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 o

ur
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ba
se

 b
y 

an
al

ys
in

g 
ou

r p
as

t 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

.  
Fu

ll 
an

nu
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

ts
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
, i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 a
nn

ua
l H

R
A

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

ts
.  

 
 Va

lu
e 

Fo
r M

on
ey

 (V
FM

) 
W

e 
se

ek
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ou

r 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
 e

co
no

m
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
et

ho
s.

  
W

e 
ar

e 
un

de
rta

ki
ng

 a
 b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
w

ith
 

se
le

ct
ed

 L
on

do
n 

bo
ro

ug
hs

 to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 o

f V
FM

.  
A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
 w

e 
in

te
nd

 to
 s

ur
ve

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

liv
in

g 
in

 n
ew

 R
S

L 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 to

 
he

lp
 u

s 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

fu
rth

er
 d

at
a 

in
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 V
FM

. 
 R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t p
ol

ic
y.

  
Th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 k
ey

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 is

 
as

se
ss

ed
, a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
lik

el
ih

oo
d 

an
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

f r
is

ks
.  

 C
on

tro
ls

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 a

ss
is

t t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
. 

 3.
 T

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 3.
1 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
 Th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s 

en
ab

le
d 

us
 t

o 
fo

rm
ul

at
e 

ou
r 

br
oa

d 
st

ra
te

gy
 t

he
m

es
 f

ro
m

 w
hi

ch
 s

ix
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

  
Th

es
e 

w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ga
th

er
ed

 in
 s

ec
tio

n 
tw

o,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
co

nt
ex

t a
nd

 in
te

gr
at

io
n,

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
an

d 
ou

r 
pa

st
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
.  

O
ur

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
al

so
 e

m
er

ge
d 

as
 k

ey
 is

su
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
D

el
iv

er
y 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r o
ur

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
w

er
e 

th
en

 a
na

ly
se

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

.  
 

 Th
e 

si
x 

ho
us

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
an

al
ys

ed
 in

 d
et

ai
l i

n 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ch
ap

te
rs

.  
S

ec
tio

n 
Fo

ur
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
P

la
n 

fo
r d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ou

r s
tra

te
gy

. 
   

Page 52



  
24

 

3.
2 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ne

: S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

oh
es

io
n 

 In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

Th
e 

co
nc

ep
t o

f s
us

ta
in

ab
ilit

y 
is

 a
bo

ut
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 th
e 

be
st

 p
os

si
bl

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 in

 u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 b
ot

h 
in

 th
e 

pr
es

en
t a

nd
 fo

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

.  
S

us
ta

in
ab

ilit
y 

is
 a

ls
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 p

hy
si

ca
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

; 
w

e 
ar

e 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 a
 s

en
se

 o
f 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
be

lo
ng

in
g 

w
he

re
 

pe
op

le
 w

ill 
ch

oo
se

 to
 li

ve
 a

nd
 s

ta
y.

 
 W

hy
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

a 
pr

io
rit

y 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 a

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

y 
as

 th
ey

 p
la

y 
a 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l r

ol
e 

in
 m

ee
tin

g 
ou

r C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

in
 re

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
  T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 a

n 
es

se
nt

ia
l p

ar
t o

f a
ny

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

ity
.  

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 c
an

 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
 b

en
ef

its
 b

ey
on

d 
ou

r 
bo

ro
ug

h 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

ra
is

in
g 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 p
er

ce
iv

ed
 lo

ca
tio

na
l d

es
ira

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
th

e 
at

te
nd

an
t 

be
ne

fit
s 

br
ou

gh
t t

hr
ou

gh
 in

w
ar

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
 O

ur
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 t
yp

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ith

 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 tr

an
sp

or
t l

in
ks

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 p
la

ce
.  

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fo
r a

ll 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 tr

an
sp

or
t l

in
ks

 a
nd

 th
e 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l, 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 re

cr
ea

tio
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s.
   

  In
te

rn
at

io
na

l a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l i
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

dy
na

m
ic

s 
ca

n 
im

pa
ct

 n
eg

at
iv

el
y 

on
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 re
la

tio
ns

. R
es

id
en

ts
 c

an
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
hi

gh
 le

ve
ls

 
of

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 le

ad
 t

o 
lo

ca
l t

en
si

on
s 

w
he

re
 r

ec
en

tly
 a

rr
iv

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
as

 c
om

pe
tit

or
s.

 T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 i
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
cr

iti
ca

l 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ha
rm

on
io

us
 a

nd
 i

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 b

et
w

ee
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.  
 Th

e 
ro

le
 o

f 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 i

s 
ce

nt
ra

l 
to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
fo

r 
ne

w
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
A

 c
or

e 
el

em
en

t 
of

 t
hi

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 d

et
ai

ls
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

ta
ke

 p
la

ce
, c

re
at

in
g 

ne
w

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ne
xt

 d
ec

ad
e.

 J
us

t 
as

 im
po

rta
nt

ly
, t

he
 S

tra
te

gy
 h

as
 a

 c
or

e 
fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 w
he

re
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 b
rin

g 
gr

ea
t b

en
ef

its
 fo

r c
om

m
un

ity
 c

oh
es

io
n:

 
 • 

W
e 

ar
e 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
ith

 n
ew

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
 c

en
tre

s 
an

d 
ne

w
 tr

an
sp

or
t p

la
nn

in
g 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

D
oc

kl
an

ds
 

Li
gh

t R
ai

lw
ay

 e
xt

en
si

on
 th

ro
ug

h 
B

ar
ki

ng
 R

iv
er

si
de

 a
nd

 in
to

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 D

oc
k 

• 
E

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
ill 

be
ne

fit
 fr

om
 th

e 
st

im
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

en
tre

pr
en

eu
ria

l a
nd

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

cu
ltu

re
. R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

w
ill 

br
in

g 
m

an
y 

ne
w

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ne
w

 jo
bs

, s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

• 
A

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

re
as

 w
ill 

be
 ta

rg
et

ed
 fo

r 
ar

ea
 r

en
ew

al
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
. F

ro
m

 2
00

7 
on

w
ar

ds
 w

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

fo
cu

s 
up

on
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 re
ne

w
al

 to
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

fo
r t

he
 fi

rs
t t

im
e 

on
 a

n 
ar

ea
 b

as
is

. 

Page 53



  
25

 

• 
W

e 
ar

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

m
uc

h 
of

 o
ur

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k.

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

 s
om

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 t

he
 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 m
ov

e 
in

to
 n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 

• 
W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
D

ec
en

t 
H

om
es

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 T
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 b

rin
gi

ng
 a

nd
 w

ill
 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 b

rin
g 

m
an

y 
be

ne
fit

s 
to

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

 A
na

ly
si

s 
It 

is
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d 
na

tio
na

lly
 t

ha
t 

ho
us

e-
bu

ild
in

g 
ha

s 
fa

ile
d 

to
 k

ee
p 

pa
ce

 w
ith

 t
he

 le
ve

l o
f 

de
m

an
d,

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 im

ba
la

nc
es

 in
 t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

ris
in

g 
pr

op
er

ty
 p

ric
es

. 
 T

hi
s 

is
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

cu
te

 in
 t

he
 S

ou
th

 E
as

t 
an

d 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 in
 L

on
do

n.
  

Th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ha
s 

si
nc

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 t

he
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 B
ar

ke
r 

R
ev

ie
w

, w
hi

ch
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
a 

st
ep

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

up
pl

y 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t. 

 N
at

io
na

l 
ho

us
e-

bu
ild

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s 

ha
ve

 s
in

ce
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

an
d 

ar
e 

us
ed

 w
ith

 d
at

a 
fro

m
 t

he
 2

00
4 

Lo
nd

on
 H

ou
si

ng
 

C
ap

ac
ity

 S
tu

dy
 (

LH
C

S
) 

to
 in

fo
rm

 b
or

ou
gh

 h
ou

se
-b

ui
ld

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 P
la

n.
  

O
ur

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ho

us
e-

bu
ild

in
g 

ta
rg

et
 h

as
 

no
w

 ri
se

n 
to

 1
19

0 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r a
nd

 w
e 

ar
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ou
r L

on
do

n 
P

la
n 

an
d 

LH
C

S
 ta

rg
et

s.
 

 Th
er

e 
is

 a
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

26
,0

00
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 o
f a

ll 
te

nu
re

s 
to

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 b
y 

20
20

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

  
O

ve
r 

1,
40

0 
of

 th
es

e 
ha

ve
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

en
 

de
liv

er
ed

 s
in

ce
 2

00
3-

4.
  

In
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 1
1,

00
0 

ho
m

es
 w

ill 
be

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 a

nd
 6

,0
00

 o
f t

he
se

 w
ill 

be
 s

oc
ia

l r
en

te
d.

  
Th

er
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

a 
st

ro
ng

 
ne

ed
 fo

r m
or

e 
fa

m
ily

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
f a

ll 
te

nu
re

s 
ac

ro
ss

 L
on

do
n,

 a
nd

 th
is

 is
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

cu
te

 in
 th

e 
so

ci
al

 re
nt

ed
 s

ec
to

r 
  K

ey
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Si
te

s 
B

ar
ki

ng
 R

iv
er

si
de

 
B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 (i

nc
. C

ou
nc

il 
es

ta
te

s 
re

ne
w

al
) 

S
ou

th
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
O

th
er

 K
ey

 H
ou

si
ng

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

O
th

er
 C

ou
nc

il 
es

ta
te

s 
re

ne
w

al
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
il 

ow
ne

d 
si

te
s 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f E
as

t L
on

do
n 

ca
m

pu
s 

Ly
m

in
gt

on
 F

ie
ld

s 
(E

P
 o

w
ne

d)
 

N
o.

 o
f U

ni
ts

 P
la

nn
ed

 
 10

,8
00

 
7,

50
0 

(5
,3

00
 n

et
) 

2,
50

0 
 4,

50
0 

85
0 

65
0 

 Th
e 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 i

s 
co

m
pr

is
ed

 o
f 

di
st

in
ct

 a
re

as
. 

 O
ve

r 
10

,0
00

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 f

or
 a

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
t B

ar
ki

ng
 R

iv
er

si
de

, w
hi

ls
t a

t l
ea

st
 2

,5
00

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
r 

la
nd

 a
t S

ou
th

 D
ag

en
ha

m
.  

Th
is

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

in
w

ar
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 a

nd
 w

ill 
se

cu
re

 im
pr

ov
ed

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t. 

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
t S

ou
th

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 w
ill 

lin
k 

in
to

 a
nd

 re
ge

ne
ra

te
 th

e 
w

id
er

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 a

re
a.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 T
ha

m
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 U
ni

ta
ry

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
(U

D
C

), 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 s
pe

ci
al

 p
ow

er
s 

in
 a

ss
is

tin
g 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

co
-o

rd
in

at
io

n 
of

 th
is

 a
m

bi
tio

us
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

 

Page 54



  
26

 

A
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r H
ou

si
ng

 in
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 T
ha

m
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 w
as

 a
 re

po
rt 

pr
od

uc
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

fe
ss

or
 A

nn
e 

P
ow

er
 a

nd
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s 
fro

m
 L

on
do

n 
S

ch
oo

l o
f E

co
no

m
ic

s 
an

d 
P

ol
iti

ca
l S

ci
en

ce
 (L

S
E

). 
 T

hi
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 th

e 
gr

ea
t p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 to
 b

e 
a 

st
un

ni
ng

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
of

 a
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l a
nd

 w
el

l i
nt

eg
ra

te
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
.  

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is
, h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 m
us

t b
ui

ld
 

up
on

 th
e 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.  
Th

is
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

is
 e

xe
m

pl
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r t

he
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
ou

r e
st

at
e 

re
ne

w
al

 s
ch

em
es

. 
 E

xi
st

in
g 

es
ta

te
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 
ha

ve
 t

ak
en

 p
la

ce
 i

n 
Ta

nn
er

 S
tre

et
 a

nd
 S

t. 
A

nn
’s

. 
 T

he
 T

an
ne

r 
S

tre
et

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
as

 a
n 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
in

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 v

al
ue

 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
an

d 
w

as
 

a 
H

ou
si

ng
 

D
es

ig
n 

A
w

ar
ds

 W
in

ne
r i

n 
20

05
. 

 B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 is
 a

lre
ad

y 
un

de
rg

oi
ng

 
an

 
am

bi
tio

us
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e:

 
5,

30
0 

ad
di

tio
na

l n
ew

 h
om

es
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
. 

 A
 B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
ha

s 
be

en
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

a 
B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 i

s 
no

w
 in

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

Fo
rm

er
 

es
ta

te
 

on
 

Ta
nn

er
 

S
tre

et
 

un
de

rg
oi

ng
 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 

N
ew

 T
an

ne
r S

tre
et

 G
at

ew
ay

 o
n 

si
te

 o
f f

or
m

er
 e

st
at

e 

 N
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

at
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
en

si
ty

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

en
su

re
 th

at
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

 m
et

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
m

or
e 

pr
od

uc
tiv

e 
us

e 
of

 s
ca

rc
e 

la
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 w

ith
ou

t c
om

pr
om

is
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

r q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
.  

H
ig

he
r d

en
si

ty
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill 
be

 re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
si

te
s 

an
d 

si
te

s 
w

ith
 g

oo
d 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y.

  P
ub

lic
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
w

ill 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
as

 th
is

 is
 a

 c
ru

ci
al

 fa
ct

or
 in

 c
re

at
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.  

 Th
e 

G
LA

 s
et

s 
ou

t p
la

nn
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

 b
or

ou
gh

s 
in

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 P

la
n,

 w
hi

ch
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

a 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 5

0%
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

 b
or

ou
gh

s.
  

W
e 

w
ill 

se
ek

 t
o 

ap
pl

y 
th

is
 w

he
re

 f
in

an
ci

al
ly

 v
ia

bl
e,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 t
hi

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 a

lw
ay

s 
be

 a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

du
e 

to
 t

hr
ee

 
ex

ce
pt

io
na

l 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s.

  
Th

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

hi
gh

 l
ev

el
s 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

, 
pr

oh
ib

iti
ve

ly
 l

ow
 l

an
d 

va
lu

es
, 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

be
ne

fit
s.

  
Th

es
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

al
l r

eq
ui

re
 g

re
at

er
 fl

ex
ib

ili
ty

.  
It 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
ho

w
n 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 c

or
re

la
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

 a
n 

ov
er

ly
 h

ig
h 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
n 

of
 s

oc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 d
ep

riv
at

io
n.

  A
ll 

si
te

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 1

0 
un

its
 o

r m
or

e 
m

us
t p

ro
vi

de
 a

t l
ea

st
 

35
%

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
.  

Th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ill 
he

lp
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
ba

la
nc

ed
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
.  

 
 

Page 55



  
27

 

W
e 

ai
m

 t
o 

m
ov

e 
fro

m
 s

in
gl

e 
te

nu
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

es
ta

te
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

or
e 

ch
oi

ce
 i

n 
m

ix
ed

 t
en

ur
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
s 

se
en

 i
n 

B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

.  
A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

‘p
ep

pe
r p

ot
te

d’
 w

ith
in

 s
ch

em
es

 a
nd

 n
ot

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
in

 o
ne

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 m
ix

ed
 

in
co

m
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.  
Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
is

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
w

ar
ds

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
 a

gr
ee

d 
po

lic
y 

on
 ‘p

ep
pe

r 
po

tti
ng

’, 
as

 r
ec

en
t r

es
ea

rc
h 

in
to

 m
ix

ed
 

in
co

m
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 h
as

 s
ho

w
n 

th
em

 to
 b

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 re

si
de

nt
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

ls
. 

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

oh
es

io
n 

Th
e 

w
id

er
 i

m
pa

ct
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
on

 o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
e 

w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 i
s 

a 
pa

ra
m

ou
nt

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

.  
H

ou
si

ng
 w

or
ks

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 p
la

nn
in

g 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 in

te
re

st
s 

ar
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

de
d,

 th
ro

ug
h 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 th

e 
LD

F 
an

d 
on

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. 
 T

he
 L

D
F 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

to
 d

at
e 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
sc

he
m

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 o
n 

br
ow

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s 

w
ith

in
 o

r 
cl

os
e 

to
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt 

lin
ks

, 
an

d 
w

he
re

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 l
an

d 
us

es
 a

re
 

co
m

pa
tib

le
. 

 R
es

id
en

t 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
ed

. 
 M

ix
ed

 u
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill 
be

 
so

ug
ht

 a
t k

ey
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

he
n 

fe
as

ib
le

.  
M

ix
ed

 u
se

 o
pt

io
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 L

in
to

ns
 a

nd
 L

on
do

n 
R

oa
d/

N
or

th
 S

tre
et

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 e

va
lu

at
ed

, 
an

d 
w

ill 
w

or
k 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
vi

ab
ilit

y 
of

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 a
t D

ag
en

ha
m

 H
ea

th
w

ay
.  

 
 W

e 
w

ill 
re

vi
ew

 “t
ra

ns
ie

nc
e”

 a
nd

 re
la

te
d 

fa
ct

or
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f  
“B

uy
 T

o 
Le

t” 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

on
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 (f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 in

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f  

B
uy

 T
o 

Le
t w

e 
w

ill 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 u

se
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
gr

ee
m

en
t r

es
tri

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 b
ul

k 
sa

le
s 

w
he

re
 B

uy
 T

o 
Le

t h
as

 p
ro

ve
n 

a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 u
po

n 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n)
.  

W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
sk

ill
s 

an
d 

jo
b-

re
ad

in
es

s 
of

 lo
ca

l 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
o 

th
at

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
be

tte
r 

pl
ac

ed
 t

o 
ca

pi
ta

lis
e 

on
 t

he
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 l

oc
al

 a
nd

 r
eg

io
na

l 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n.
 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 th
e 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

oh
es

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
ne

w
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 o

ur
 n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. I
n 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
w

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 E
D

A
W

 &
 B

rit
ta

n 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

a 
“S

oc
ia

l I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

N
ee

ds
 S

ur
ve

y”
 f

or
 t

he
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
gr

ow
th

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

06
 a

nd
 

20
27

. T
he

 r
ep

or
t a

na
ly

se
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
es

 d
et

ai
ls

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 s

oc
ia

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. W
e 

ha
ve

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

co
nc

lu
si

on
s 

in
to

 o
ur

 f
ut

ur
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

ar
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

oc
ia

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
   

 • 
A

cu
te

, p
rim

ar
y,

 in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 a
nd

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
• 

C
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
lib

ra
rie

s 
an

d 
yo

ut
h 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
• 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

ea
rly

 y
ea

rs
, p

rim
ar

y,
 s

ec
on

da
ry

, h
ig

he
r a

nd
 fu

rth
er

 e
du

ca
tio

n)
 

• 
Le

is
ur

e,
 re

cr
ea

tio
n 

an
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
/g

re
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

• 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
es

se
nt

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
po

lic
e,

 fi
re

 a
nd

 a
m

bu
la

nc
e 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
 

Page 56



  
28

 

Fu
rth

er
m

or
e,

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 t

w
el

ve
 m

on
th

s 
w

e 
w

ill 
fu

rth
er

 i
nv

es
tig

at
e 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 f

ac
to

rs
 i

n 
th

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n.
 W

e 
w

ill 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
oh

es
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

fo
cu

s 
up

on
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 k

ey
 a

re
as

 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
 • 

M
ix

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 m

ix
ed

 te
nu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
• 

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

  
• 

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f “
B

uy
 T

o 
Le

t” 
• 

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f c
ho

ic
e 

ba
se

d 
le

tti
ng

s 
 3.

3 
Pr

io
rit

y 
Tw

o:
 D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 a

nd
 S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
 D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 

 In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
fo

ur
 b

as
ic

 c
rit

er
ia

 w
hi

ch
 m

us
t b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 in

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 S
ta

nd
ar

d.
  T

he
 in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 t
o 

go
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
ba

si
c 

D
ec

en
t 

H
om

es
 S

ta
nd

ar
d,

 a
nd

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

w
id

er
 r

es
id

en
ts

’ 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 l
iv

ea
bi

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 P

lu
s 

S
ta

nd
ar

d.
  

Li
ve

ab
ilit

y 
is

 a
bo

ut
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
w

id
er

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 is

su
es

 to
 c

re
at

e 
pl

ac
es

 w
he

re
 

pe
op

le
 c

ho
os

e 
to

 li
ve

 a
nd

 w
or

k.
   

 B
as

ic
 D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

1.
 It

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

tu
to

ry
 m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 

2.
 It

 is
 in

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 s
ta

te
 o

f r
ep

ai
r 

3.
 It

 h
as

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 m

od
er

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 
4.

 It
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 d
eg

re
e 

of
 th

er
m

al
 c

om
fo

rt 
 W

hy
 it

 is
 a

 p
rio

rit
y 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

m
us

t m
ee

t t
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 T
ar

ge
t, 

w
he

re
 a

ll 
so

ci
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

by
 2

01
0.

  
Th

e 
D

ec
en

t 
H

om
es

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
is

 a
ls

o 
an

 i
m

po
rta

nt
 a

sp
ec

t 
of

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

. 
 T

he
 w

id
er

 l
iv

ea
bi

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill

 r
ai

se
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y.

  
Th

e 
ai

m
 i

s 
to

 a
ls

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
a 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 i

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
, i

n 
th

at
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
cr

os
s 

te
nu

re
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

ar
ea

s.
  

Th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

th
e 

D
ec

en
t 

H
om

es
 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
an

d 
se

cu
re

 
w

id
er

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

w
er

e 
is

su
es

 
ra

is
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s,

 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

ut
lin

ed
 in

 th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
de

liv
er

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

ie
s.

 
  

Page 57



  
29

 

A
na

ly
si

s 
an

d 
O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

 
A

 S
to

ck
 O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

 w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 s

ig
ne

d 
of

f b
y 

G
O

L 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

05
.  

A
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 o

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

as
se

ss
ed

, b
ef

or
e 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

n 
in

no
va

tiv
e 

so
lu

tio
n 

fo
r 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

  
A

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

O
pt

io
ns

 
A

pp
ra

is
al

 is
 g

iv
en

 in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ta
bl

e.
  T

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 F

ut
ur

es
 P

ro
je

ct
 is

 n
ow

 in
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

ph
as

e.
 

 O
pt

io
ns

 A
pp

ra
is

al
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 F

in
di

ng
s 

O
pt

io
n 

A
dv

an
ta

ge
s 

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

es
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
A

rm
's

 L
en

gt
h 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(A
LM

O
) 

It 
co

ul
d 

ha
rn

es
s 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
su

pp
or

t 
fro

m
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t f

or
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k.
 

 It 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 
fo

r 
te

na
nt

s 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
 

in
 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
 It 

co
ul

d 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 l
ea

d 
to

 t
he

 D
ec

en
cy

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
be

in
g 

m
et

. 
 It 

w
ou

ld
 a

llo
w

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 r

et
ai

n 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k 

an
d 

th
e 

te
na

nt
s 

to
 

re
ta

in
 

th
ei

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
te

na
nc

y 
ag

re
em

en
ts

. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t i
s 

re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 
th

at
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
he

 d
ec

en
t 

ho
m

es
 t

ar
ge

t. 
 

H
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ca
n 

al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
is

 w
ith

 
its

 c
ur

re
nt

 re
so

ur
ce

s.
  I

t w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
le

ve
l 

of
 s

up
po

rt 
ne

ed
ed

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

to
 t

he
 

le
ve

l t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 a
sp

ira
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
te

na
nt

s.
 

 In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

se
cu

re
 t

he
 p

er
m

is
si

on
 t

o 
bo

rr
ow

 t
he

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

fu
nd

in
g,

 
th

e 
ne

w
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

m
us

t 
ac

hi
ev

e 
a 

2 
st

ar
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

ra
tin

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

In
sp

ec
to

ra
te

. 
 T

he
 n

ew
 A

LM
O

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
up

 t
o 

2 
ye

ar
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

hi
s 

st
an

da
rd

, 
an

d 
if 

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 

m
ee

t 
th

is
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

fu
rth

er
 

bo
rro

w
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
w

ith
he

ld
 u

nt
il 

it 
do

es
. 

 Th
e 

se
tti

ng
 u

p 
co

st
s 

of
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
£5

00
,0

00
 

m
ay

 b
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 ju

st
ify

 if
 n

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

un
di

ng
 is

 
re

ce
iv

ed
. 

 Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
ut

ur
es

 a
nd

 F
ul

l I
nd

us
try

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

ar
e 

un
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

. 

Si
nc

e 
an

 
AL

M
O

 
ca

nn
ot

 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

fu
nd

in
g 

ov
er

 a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 t

ha
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 s
ta

nd
ar

d,
 it

s 
be

ne
fit

s 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d.

  
Th

e 
on

ly
 r

ea
l a

dv
an

ta
ge

 it
 

of
fe

rs
 i

s 
th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 t
o 

ha
ve

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 t

en
an

t 
em

po
w

er
m

en
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

of
 

th
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Bo
ar

d.
 

 
H

ow
ev

er
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
th

is
 

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
is

 n
ot

 a
ttr

ac
tiv

e 
en

ou
gh

 to
 o

ut
w

ei
gh

 th
e 

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

s.
 

 
Th

er
ef

or
e 

an
 

AL
M

O
 

do
es

 
no

t 
se

em
 t

o 
be

 a
 r

ea
lis

tic
 w

ay
 f

or
w

ar
d 

fo
r 

Ba
rk

in
g 

&
 

D
ag

en
ha

m
. 

La
rg

e 
Sc

al
e 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Tr

an
sf

er
 (L

SV
T)

 / 
(S

to
ck

 T
ra

ns
fe

r)
 

 

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
ut

ur
es

 a
nd

 F
ul

l I
nd

us
try

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

. 
 Th

er
e 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y.

 
 Te

na
nt

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

pl
ay

 a
 m

or
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ro
le

 in
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

. 
 

Th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
ha

ve
 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
ha

s 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 i
n 

th
e 

re
gi

on
 o

f 
£4

4m
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

th
at

 t
he

 
ne

w
 

la
nd

lo
rd

 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
br

in
g 

th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 
of

 
th

e 
st

oc
k 

up
 

to
 

th
e 

Fu
ll 

In
du

st
ry

 
St

an
da

rd
. 

 W
hi

ls
t 

th
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 

co
ve

re
d 

vi
a 

a 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 b
id

 fo
r 

G
ap

 fu
nd

in
g 

fro
m

 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ec
ei

pt
 fo

rm
 th

e 
sa

le
 o

f t
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
to

ck
. 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
its

 o
w

n 
se

tti
ng

 u
p 

co
st

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

 i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

tra
ns

fe
r 

an
d 

to
 

de
al

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 

of
 

di
se

co
no

m
ie

s 
of

 
sc

al
e 

in
 

ce
nt

ra
l 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
t o

ve
r £

2 
m

ill
io

n 
pe

r y
ea

r. 

S
to

ck
 tr

an
sf

er
 is

 o
nl

y 
a 

re
al

is
tic

 o
pt

io
n 

if 
it 

ha
s 

th
e 

su
pp

or
t 

of
 t

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 l

ea
se

ho
ld

er
s.

  
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
op

tio
ns

 s
tu

dy
 in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 t
he

 t
en

an
ts

 
ar

e 
st

ro
ng

ly
 o

pp
os

ed
 t

o 
w

ho
le

sa
le

 s
to

ck
 t

ra
ns

fe
r 

an
d 

ha
ve

 f
ur

th
er

 i
nd

ic
at

ed
 t

he
ir 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 f

or
 a

 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

hi
ch

 r
et

ai
ns

 t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

hi
ls

t 
de

liv
er

in
g 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
ut

ur
es

 in
ve

st
m

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
d.

  T
hi

s 
le

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 a
 p

re
fe

re
nc

e 
fo

r a
 m

ix
ed

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 

w
ho

le
sa

le
 s

ol
ut

io
n 

– 
se

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
ct

io
ns

. 
 

Page 58



  
30

 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Fi
na

nc
e 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
(P

FI
) 

 

In
 p

rin
ci

pl
e,

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

su
pp

or
t 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 

en
ab

le
 th

e 
m

an
ag

in
g 

ag
en

t t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 s

to
ck

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 s
co

pe
 o

f 
th

e 
P

FI
 

sc
he

m
e.

 
 Th

us
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

ad
va

nt
ag

es
 o

f 
a 

PF
I 

op
tio

n 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

in
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 

st
oc

k 
w

hi
ls

t 
al

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 

re
ta

in
 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
of

 t
he

 s
to

ck
 a

nd
 t

he
 t

en
an

ts
 t

o 
re

ta
in

 
th

ei
r e

xi
st

in
g 

te
na

nc
y 

ag
re

em
en

ts
. 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
FI

 s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 r
el

at
iv

el
y 

sm
al

l i
n 

sc
al

e 
an

d 
ha

ve
 s

o 
fa

r b
ee

n 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t n

ee
ds

 a
re

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
hi

gh
.  

H
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

m
ul

ti 
st

or
ey

 b
lo

ck
s 

of
 f

la
ts

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ar

ea
s 

m
ee

t t
he

se
 c

rit
er

ia
. 

 

It 
co

ul
d 

at
tra

ct
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
 It 

co
ul

d 
fo

rm
 a

 k
ey

 e
le

m
en

t 
of

 a
 m

ix
ed

 o
pt

io
ns

 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

M
ix

ed
 S

ol
ut

io
n 

• 
R

et
ai

n 
ho

us
es

 a
nd

 lo
w

 r
is

e 
fla

ts
 o

ut
si

de
 e

st
at

e 
re

ne
w

al
 a

re
as

 
• 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 e

st
at

e 
re

ne
w

al
 o

f 3
,0

00
 fl

at
s 

• 
P

FI
 fo

r 2
0 

to
w

er
 b

lo
ck

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
re

ne
w

al
 a

re
as

 
• 

Ad
dr

es
se

d 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
• 

Lo
ok

s 
be

yo
nd

 b
ric

ks
 a

nd
 m

or
ta

r 
• 

O
pt

im
is

ed
 u

se
 o

f a
va

ila
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

• 
R

is
ks

 o
f s

ec
ur

in
g 

P
FI

 fu
nd

in
g 

Th
e 

m
ix

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
: 

• 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 

en
ab

le
 

th
e 

st
oc

k 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 
in

 
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
to

 b
e 

br
ou

gh
t 

up
 t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

Fu
tu

re
s 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
• 

m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f s

to
ck

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
• 

de
al

 w
ith

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
m

os
t 

de
pr

iv
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

le
as

t p
op

ul
ar

 s
to

ck
. 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 w
ith

 th
e 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
th

at
 a

 m
ix

ed
 s

tra
te

gy
 is

 th
e 

m
os

t 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 o
pt

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
.   

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 u

nd
er

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 w

e 
w

ill 
re

po
rt 

on
 c

on
cl

us
io

ns
 in

 a
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 U

pd
at

e 
in

 2
00

8.
 

 M
ix

ed
 S

ol
ut

io
n 

A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 e
st

at
e 

re
ne

w
al

 s
ch

em
es

 w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ar

ou
nd

 3
,0

00
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 fo
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 T

he
re

 w
as

 s
tro

ng
 r

es
id

en
t 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

se
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

, 
an

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
lo

ne
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y.

  T
he

se
 e

st
at

e 
re

ne
w

al
 s

ch
em

es
 a

re
 p

la
yi

ng
 a

n 
es

se
nt

ia
l p

ar
t i

n 
se

cu
rin

g 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 
an

d 
w

ill 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

up
pl

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 u
se

 o
f l

an
d.

  A
 n

ew
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
sc

he
m

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 

pr
op

os
ed

 fo
r 

C
ad

iz
 C

ou
rt,

 w
hi

ls
t p

la
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

Li
nt

on
s 

an
d 

Lo
nd

on
 R

oa
d/

N
or

th
 S

tre
et

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

.  
A

 lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

G
as

co
ig

ne
 e

st
at

e 
is

 e
nv

is
ag

ed
, a

nd
 re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 e
as

te
rn

 e
nd

 o
f T

ha
m

es
 V

ie
w

 w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 e

xt
ra

 3
00

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 to

 in
te

gr
at

e 
w

ith
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

t B
ar

ki
ng

 R
iv

er
si

de
.  

E
st

at
e 

re
ne

w
al

 p
la

ns
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r t

he
 G

or
es

br
oo

k 
vi

lla
ge

 e
st

at
e.

 
 W

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 a

 b
id

 f
or

 R
ou

nd
 F

iv
e 

of
 t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 P

riv
at

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
In

iti
at

iv
e 

(P
FI

) 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
ar

ou
nd

 1
,4

00
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
in

 tw
en

ty
 to

w
er

 b
lo

ck
s.

  W
e 

ha
ve

 s
in

ce
 le

ar
ne

d 
th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
se

rv
e 

lis
t f

or
 fu

nd
in

g.
  O

ur
 fu

nd
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

th
es

e 
sc

he
m

es
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 re

ap
pr

ai
se

d.
 

 A
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r t
he

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
st

oc
k 

of
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
16

,0
00

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
.  

O
ur

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r t
he

se
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

. 

Page 59



  
31

 

Th
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 d
ia

gr
am

 s
ho

w
s 

ho
w

 f
ut

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 

es
ta

te
 r

en
ew

al
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 L

H
C

 c
ou

ld
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

. 
 T

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

is
 

se
t 

to
 

be
 

m
er

ge
d 

w
ith

 
E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s,

 
to

 
cr

ea
te

 
a 

ne
w

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n,
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
E

ng
la

nd
. 

 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
pa

rtn
er

 
E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
’s

 e
st

at
e 

re
ne

w
al

 
sc

he
m

es
, 

th
ou

gh
 

C
ad

iz
 

C
ou

rt 
is

 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
se

pa
ra

te
ly

.  
E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 in
vo

lv
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

LH
C

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
el

em
en

t 
of

 B
ar

ki
ng

 R
iv

er
si

de
. 

 T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
s 

fu
rth

er
 a

na
ly

si
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

is
 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
 re

vi
ew

. A
 fu

ll 
op

tio
ns

 a
pp

ra
is

al
 w

ill 
be

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 f
or

 i
nc

lu
si

on
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
U

pd
at

e 
20

08
. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ro

po
se

d 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 fo
r d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 e

st
at

e 
re

ne
w

al
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 L

H
C

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

 In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

W
hi

ls
t 

ph
ys

ic
al

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 c

an
 i

nc
re

as
e 

liv
ea

bi
lit

y 
a 

sa
fe

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
he

re
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ill

 
ch

oo
se

 to
 li

ve
.  

 
 W

hy
 it

 is
 a

 P
rio

rit
y 

Th
is

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 is
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r A
ct

 (1
99

8)
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
en

su
re

 s
af

er
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.  
A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
 th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 c

re
at

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
fe

el
 

sa
fe

 w
as

 e
m

ph
as

is
ed

 s
tro

ng
ly

 a
s 

a 
pr

io
rit

y 
fro

m
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

 A
na

ly
si

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ill 

be
 s

ig
ni

ng
 u

p 
to

 t
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 R
es

pe
ct

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 d
ea

l 
w

ith
 A

S
B

. 
 T

he
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 D
om

es
tic

 V
io

le
nc

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 is

 a
 v

ita
l p

ar
t o

f e
ns

ur
in

g 
sa

fe
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
, a

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 h

as
 a

 s
tro

ng
 ro

le
 

in
 d

el
iv

er
y.

  W
e 

w
ill 

su
pp

or
t v

ic
tim

s 
of

 d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
by

 e
na

bl
in

g 
th

em
 to

 re
m

ai
n 

in
 th

ei
r h

om
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

sa
nc

tu
ar

y 
sc

he
m

es
, a

nd
 b

y 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 r

ef
ug

e 
sp

ac
es

. 
 D

et
ai

le
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

fo
r 

st
af

f 
in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 r

ef
er

ra
l r

ou
te

s 
an

d 
cu

st
om

er
 c

ar
e,

 a
nd

 a
ll 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
to

 re
ce

iv
e 

a 
ha

lf 
da

y 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tra

in
in

g.
 

 
Jo

in
t V

en
tu

re
 C

om
pa

ny
 

 

R
S

L
R

S
L

R
S

L
H

ou
se

bu
ild

er

Lo
ca

l H
ou

si
ng

 C
om

pa
ny

  
(C

ou
nc

il 
+ 

R
SL

 P
ar

tn
er

s)
 

H
ou

se
bu

ild
er

 B
ar

ki
ng

 R
iv

er
si

de
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
la

nd
 ( 

es
ta

te
 re

ne
w

al
 s

ch
em

es
 ) 

 

 lo
ng

 
le

as
e 

 
lo

ng
 

le
as

e 

12
5 

Ye
ar

 L
ea

se
s 

R
es

ou
rc

es
/e

xp
er

tis
e 

of
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 E
ng

la
nd

 
an

d 
C

ou
nc

il 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l a

nd
 b

on
d 

in
ve

st
or

s 

Page 60



  
32

 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t f

un
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

.  
M

uc
h 

ha
s 

al
re

ad
y 

be
en

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 s

ec
ur

ity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.  

Th
e 

C
D

R
P

 a
re

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
 e

nh
an

ce
 s

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 c
rim

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l w

or
k 

in
 th

e 
G

as
co

ig
ne

 e
st

at
e.

  S
ev

er
al

 C
ou

nc
il 

hi
gh

-ri
se

 b
lo

ck
s 

ha
ve

 c
on

ci
er

ge
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
lig

ht
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.  

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
on

 v
oi

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 a
ls

o 
im

pr
ov

ed
.  

Th
e 

S
tre

et
 W

ar
de

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
ha

s 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

hi
gh

ly
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 
 T

he
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
al

l c
om

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 w

or
k 

to
w

ar
ds

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 T
ar

ge
t f

or
 th

e 
re

ta
in

ed
 C

ou
nc

il 
st

oc
k.

 
 3.

4 
Pr

io
rit

y 
Th

re
e:

 P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

C
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
W

e 
w

ill 
se

ek
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
th

at
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 h
ea

lth
ie

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ch
oi

ce
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

.  
Th

is
 in

cl
ud

es
 o

ur
 o

ng
oi

ng
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
es

ta
bl

is
he

s 
ho

w
 w

e 
w

ill 
de

ve
lo

p 
ou

r 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

in
 re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 th

ei
r n

ee
ds

.  
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

gr
ou

ps
 th

at
 m

ay
, b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

ir 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

r v
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y,
 h

av
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ed
 fo

rm
s 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
r 

re
qu

ire
 s

up
po

rt 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 li
ve

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 in
 th

ei
r 

ex
is

tin
g 

ho
m

es
. T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
ch

an
gi

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
co

nt
ex

t 
th

at
 h

as
 m

ov
ed

 a
w

ay
 f

ro
m

 in
st

itu
tio

na
l p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 r

es
id

en
tia

l h
om

es
, 

to
w

ar
ds

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ith

in
 th

ei
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.  
Th

e 
fo

cu
s 

is
 o

n 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n.

  T
he

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 h

ea
lth

ie
r l

ife
st

yl
es

 
is

 a
ls

o 
hi

gh
ly

 im
po

rta
nt

. 
 W

hy
 it

 is
 a

 p
rio

rit
y 

Th
e 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 c
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 w
ill 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 p
er

so
na

l 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y,

 a
nd

 w
e 

w
is

h 
to

 a
vo

id
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 
cu

ltu
re

 o
f 

de
pe

nd
en

cy
. 

 W
e 

w
ill 

se
ek

 s
up

po
rt 

pe
op

le
 i

n 
th

e 
ch

oi
ce

s 
th

ey
 m

ak
e 

in
 f

in
di

ng
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s.

  
C

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 i

s 
al

so
 a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 L

on
do

n 
pr

io
rit

y,
 a

nd
 t

he
 M

ay
or

’s
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

s 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

of
 s

pe
ci

fic
 g

ro
up

s.
  

C
ho

ic
e 

of
 te

nu
re

 w
ill 

he
lp

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

m
or

e 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 h
ou

si
ng

 m
ar

ke
t, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
in

 tu
rn

 b
en

ef
it 

Lo
nd

on
’s

 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
pe

op
le

.  
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

se
ve

ra
l a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
se

ek
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fir
st

 h
om

e.
  

Th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 
ho

us
in

g 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

re
at

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 fo

r 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

.  
S

ev
er

al
 o

f t
he

 is
su

es
 in

 th
is

 c
ha

pt
er

 a
ro

se
 fr

om
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ra
is

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
 A

na
ly

si
s 

C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 a

nd
 M

ob
ili

ty
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 re
sp

on
de

d 
to

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 d
riv

e 
fo

r g
re

at
er

 c
ho

ic
e 

in
 le

tti
ng

s:
 n

ew
, a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 s
oc

ia
lly

 re
nt

ed
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 a
re

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
 

th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 M

C
IL

 c
ho

ic
e-

ba
se

d 
le

tti
ng

s 
sy

st
em

.  
M

C
IL

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 fa
ire

r a
nd

 m
or

e 
tra

ns
pa

re
nt

 s
ys

te
m

 o
f a

llo
ca

tin
g 

ho
us

in
g.

   
 Th

e 
M

ay
or

 o
f 

Lo
nd

on
 is

 in
te

nd
in

g 
to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
a 

pa
n-

Lo
nd

on
 c

ho
ic

e-
ba

se
d 

le
tti

ng
s 

sy
st

em
. 

 S
uc

h 
an

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

ch
oi

ce
, a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
re

gi
on

al
 e

co
no

m
ic

 b
en

ef
its

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

m
or

e 
ba

la
nc

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 m

ar
ke

t f
or

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l. 

 A
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

re
gi

st
er

 w
ill 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

is
 p

ro
po

sa
l a

s 
ho

us
in

g 
ch

oi
ce

s 
fo

r d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 m
or

e 
lim

ite
d.

 

Page 61



  
33

 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Pe

op
le

 
Th

e 
S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

G
ra

nt
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 fo
r a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 o
ur

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 a

im
ed

 a
t s

up
po

rti
ng

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
op

le
.  

It 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f h

ou
si

ng
 re

la
te

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s,
 th

at
 o

ffe
r c

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 fo
r 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 t
he

 b
as

ic
 li

fe
 s

ki
lls

 n
ee

de
d 

fo
r 

a 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
lif

es
ty

le
. 

 T
he

 S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

dd
re

ss
es

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

al
l 

cl
ie

nt
 g

ro
up

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

, 
w

om
en

 e
sc

ap
in

g 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e,

 h
om

el
es

s 
pe

op
le

, 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e,
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 B
M

E
 g

ro
up

s.
  T

he
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

co
ve

r t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 • 
To

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
th

e 
re

-p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

of
 s

he
lte

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

 
• 

E
xt

ra
ca

re
 s

he
lte

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r f

ra
il 

el
de

rly
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 d
em

en
tia

 
• 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ho

m
e 

fro
m

 h
os

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

• 
R

ec
on

fig
ur

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 h
om

el
es

s 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
ith

 c
om

pl
ex

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 n

ee
ds

, 
dr

ug
 a

nd
 a

lc
oh

ol
 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
an

d 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

• 
To

 e
xp

lo
re

 h
ow

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 H

IV
/A

ID
S

 th
ro

ug
h 

cr
os

s 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

or
ki

ng
 

• 
To

 d
ev

el
op

 s
up

po
rte

d 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
et

te
r a

cc
es

s 
to

 jo
bs

 a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

   
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
ris

in
g 

le
ve

ls
 o

f c
om

pl
ex

 n
ee

ds
 o

fte
n 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e,

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f o

ffe
nd

in
g.

  T
hi

s 
em

ph
as

is
ed

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
bu

ild
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s,

 D
ru

g 
A

ct
io

n 
Te

am
s,

 T
he

 P
ro

ba
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
, Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
 a

nd
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
.  

A
s 

th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
gr

ow
s,

 t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

ad
ul

ts
 i

s 
10

%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 d
ec

ad
e.

  
Th

e 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 a
n 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r m

or
e 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

in
 th

ei
r h

om
es

.  
 

Page 62



  
34

 

It 
is

 v
ita

l t
ha

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

an
d 

ch
an

gi
ng

 
de

m
og

ra
ph

y.
 

 
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 e

ar
ly

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

ha
s 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 a

 d
ec

lin
e 

in
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 is

 a
 g

ro
w

in
g 

co
nc

er
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 le

ve
l 

of
 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
am

on
gs

t 
no

n-
pr

io
rit

y 
gr

ou
ps

, 
in

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

.  
R

es
po

nd
in

g 
to

 th
is

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 1
16

 u
ni

t f
oy

er
 

sc
he

m
e 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

   
  

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
in

g 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 b
ec

om
e 

ho
m

el
es

s.
  

It 
is

 i
nc

re
as

in
gl

y 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 t
ha

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 

ho
m

el
es

s 
pe

op
le

 s
ho

ul
d 

fo
cu

s 
on

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, a
nd

 th
is

 re
qu

ire
s 

an
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
ho

us
in

g,
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 
ad

op
te

d 
a 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

an
d 

w
ill

 
st

re
ng

th
en

 
ex

is
tin

g 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

an
d 

en
su

re
 s

ub
-r

eg
io

na
l w

or
ki

ng
. 

 T
hi

s 
w

ill 
en

ab
le

 t
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 
ne

tw
or

ks
 fo

r 
pr

ev
en

tin
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
an

d 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t t

ar
ge

t o
n 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

by
 5

0%
 fo

r 2
01

0.
 

 

 
P

ro
po

se
d 

Fo
ye

r D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

O
ur

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
3-

8 
w

ill 
be

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r. 

 T
hi

s 
w

ill 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

ith
 a

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
re

du
ci

ng
 it

s 
le

ve
ls

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t t
ar

ge
t. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 g

ra
nt

 fo
r h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 

re
nt

 d
ep

os
it 

sc
he

m
e 

an
d 

w
ill 

ex
te

nd
 o

ur
 s

up
po

rt 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
fa

m
ili

es
 in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 s
pe

ci
fic

 n
ee

ds
 s

uc
h 

as
 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s,
 o

ffe
nd

er
s,

 d
ru

gs
 a

nd
 a

lc
oh

ol
 p

ro
bl

em
s.

 In
cr

ea
si

ng
 t

he
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 m
ov

e-
on

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

is
 a

ls
o 

es
se

nt
ia

l i
n 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

en
su

re
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

cr
os

s 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

, w
ith

in
 th

e 
E

as
t L

on
do

n 
su

b-
re

gi
on

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l u

ni
ts

 fo
r m

ov
e-

on
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n.
 

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 t
o 

bu
ild

in
g 

la
rg

er
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 f

or
 f

am
ilie

s,
 a

nd
 w

ill 
fo

cu
s 

on
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 t
ra

ns
iti

on
 f

ro
m

 c
ar

e 
to

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t l
iv

in
g 

is
 h

an
dl

ed
 b

et
te

r b
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
m

or
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

up
po

rt 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 A
 n

um
be

r o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 s

ys
te

m
, a

nd
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 c
om

pl
ex

 n
ee

ds
 o

r d
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

in
g 

ad
ul

th
oo

d.
  

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
 d

at
a 

in
 2

00
7 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

e 
ne

ed
 f

or
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

 s
uc

h 
as

 a
ut

is
m

, s
pe

ci
fic

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

fo
rm

s 
of

 n
ee

ds
.  

Th
e 

da
ta

 c
ap

tu
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 s
ys

te
m

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
27

3 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

 w
ho

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 s

om
e 

fo
rm

 o
f s

up
po

rte
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

to
 li

ve
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 a

s 
ad

ul
ts

.  
Th

is
 a

ls
o 

ap
pl

ie
s 

to
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 a
re

 lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r w

ho
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

ha
ve

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
im

pa
irm

en
t. 

 T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
tra

ns
iti

on
 t

o 
ad

ul
th

oo
d.

  
M

os
t 

of
 

Page 63



  
35

 

th
es

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 p

la
ce

d 
ou

t 
of

 b
or

ou
gh

, 
si

nc
e 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 la

ck
 o

f 
su

ita
bl

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
. 

 W
e 

ar
e 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 f

or
 f

os
te

r 
ca

re
rs

 in
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
, 

an
d 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 n

ew
 la

rg
er

 s
iz

ed
 f

am
ily

 h
om

es
 w

ill 
he

lp
 u

s 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
. 

 Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
le

av
in

g 
ca

re
 fa

ce
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

ba
rri

er
s 

to
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
es

.  
E

xi
st

in
g 

lo
ca

l k
no

w
le

dg
e 

re
ve

al
ed

 th
e 

ne
ed

 f
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 u

ni
ts

 o
f 

su
pp

or
te

d 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
, 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 t

ho
se

 a
pp

ro
ac

hi
ng

 a
du

lth
oo

d.
  

H
ou

si
ng

 w
ith

 s
up

po
rt 

is
 

in
te

gr
al

 i
n 

en
su

rin
g 

a 
sm

oo
th

 t
ra

ns
iti

on
 t

o 
ad

ul
t 

lif
e 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

, 
he

nc
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 f
or

 u
s 

to
 i

nc
re

as
e 

th
e 

su
pp

ly
 o

f 
su

pp
or

te
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
lo

ne
 te

en
ag

e 
pa

re
nt

s,
 y

ou
ng

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
an

d 
ca

re
 le

av
er

s.
  

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

fo
cu

s 
on

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 o

ut
co

m
e 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

su
pp

or
te

d 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
ta

ck
lin

g 
th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 fa
ce

d 
by

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 li
vi

ng
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
, a

nd
 in

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

is
, w

e 
w

ill
 in

ve
st

 in
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 th
at

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

pr
os

pe
ct

 o
f g

ai
ni

ng
 m

ea
ni

ng
fu

l 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t. 
 T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

11
6 

un
it 

Fo
ye

r s
ch

em
e 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 a
nd

 th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

lla
bo

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r 

an
d 

E
as

t 
P

ot
en

tia
l. 

 T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

ar
gu

es
 f

or
 e

na
bl

in
g 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
sk

ills
, t

he
re

by
 c

re
at

in
g 

an
 e

na
bl

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 th

em
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 s

oc
ie

ty
.  

O
ur

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
ha

s 
al

so
 p

la
ye

d 
an

 im
po

rta
nt

 ro
le

 in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 F

oy
er

. 
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

nd
 s

oc
io

-e
co

no
m

ic
 m

ak
e 

up
 o

f o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

’s
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

.  
A

s 
po

pu
la

tio
ns

 a
ge

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

em
en

tia
 w

ill 
gr

ow
, a

s 
th

e 
in

ci
de

nc
e 

of
 d

em
en

tia
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

w
ith

 a
ge

 a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r 

th
e 

ov
er

 8
5 

ag
e 

gr
ou

p.
  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
us

t t
he

re
fo

re
 c

on
si

de
r 

op
tio

ns
 

th
at

 a
re

 m
or

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 r

es
id

en
ts

’ n
ee

ds
.  

Th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f o

ld
er

 p
er

so
n 

on
ly

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

liv
e 

in
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

.  
Th

er
ef

or
e 

ou
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 a

nd
 s

to
ck

 o
pt

io
ns

 a
pp

ra
is

al
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 o
f o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 c
ap

ab
le

 o
f i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 

liv
in

g 
an

d 
w

ho
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 h

om
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p.
  

 Th
e 

R
S

L 
H

an
ov

er
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r 

re
nt

 w
hi

ch
 c

an
 o

ffe
r 

an
 a

ttr
ac

tiv
e,

 c
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
ca

re
. 

 T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

is
 r

el
ev

an
t 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

or
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ed
 a

m
en

iti
es

 a
nd

 g
re

at
er

 s
up

po
rt,

 a
nd

 o
ffe

rs
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
ar

e 
pa

ck
ag

es
 fo

r r
es

id
en

ts
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 re

qu
iri

ng
 s

up
po

rt.
  E

xt
ra

 C
ar

e 
ca

n 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
id

ea
l b

as
e 

fo
r i

nt
er

m
ed

ia
te

 c
ar

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

  I
t i

s 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 s
til

l v
al

ue
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t l
iv

in
g 

an
d 

w
ho

 w
an

t a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
w

ith
in

 th
ei

r h
om

es
.  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 

H
an

ov
er

 is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
52

 u
ni

ts
 o

f 
E

xt
ra

 C
ar

e 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
re

nt
 a

nd
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 3

0 
un

its
 o

f 
ge

ne
ra

l n
ee

ds
 h

ou
si

ng
 f

or
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e.

  
A

lo
ng

si
de

 th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

e 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r c

at
er

in
g 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

in
 o

ur
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
  

 In
 a

 b
or

ou
gh

 w
ith

 g
ro

w
in

g 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 d

iv
er

si
ty

, 
th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
ee

d 
to

 i
de

nt
ify

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

B
M

E
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

by
 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

in
g 

cu
ltu

ra
lly

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  T

he
re

 is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 th
e 

tra
di

tio
na

l s
he

lte
re

d 
ho

us
in

g 
m

od
el

 is
 n

ot
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

to
 

re
sp

on
d 

to
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
qu

iri
ng

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t 

su
pp

or
t, 

as
 t

he
re

 a
re

 f
un

da
m

en
ta

l 
de

si
gn

 p
ro

bl
em

s.
  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 

Page 64



  
36

 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f o
ur

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sh

el
te

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

re
-p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

sh
el

te
re

d 
ho

us
in

g 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
 

  Th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
sh

el
te

re
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
 i

n 
liv

in
g 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

fo
cu

s 
on

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
es

ig
n,

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 ty
pe

s 
an

d 
te

nu
re

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
on

 
an

ti-
so

ci
al

 b
eh

av
io

ur
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
fe

ar
 o

f c
rim

e.
  

O
ur

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 w
ill 

al
so

 a
dd

re
ss

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ne

ed
s 

of
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ol

de
r p

eo
pl

e 
re

qu
iri

ng
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t l

iv
in

g 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, s

uc
h 

as
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 h
om

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

. 
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ow

ne
r 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 is

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
at

 a
n 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 le

ve
l. 

 D
is

ab
le

d 
Pe

op
le

 
O

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
w

ar
ds

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

d 
is

 t
he

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

la
rg

er
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n.
  

Th
e 

de
m

og
ra

ph
y 

of
 t

he
 l

oc
al

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 o

f t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r m

aj
or

 a
da

pt
at

io
ns

.  
Th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 n

ee
d 

fo
r e

xt
en

si
on

s 
to

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 fa

lls
 w

ith
in

 d
is

ab
le

d 
gr

ou
ps

 c
om

pr
is

in
g 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 c
om

pl
ex

 n
ee

ds
. 

 W
e 

w
ill 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

ab
ilit

y 
of

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 to
 li

ve
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 th

ro
ug

h 
ca

re
fu

l d
es

ig
n 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
, i

n 
su

ch
 a

 w
ay

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r a
ll 

gr
ou

ps
.  

In
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
A

ct
 2

00
5,

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 a

do
pt

ed
 th

e 
S

oc
ia

l M
od

el
 o

f D
is

ab
ilit

y.
  W

e 
w

ill
 

im
pl

em
en

t t
hi

s 
m

od
el

 in
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

es
ig

ns
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y,

 b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 th

at
 

pr
om

ot
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. 
 Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

hi
ch

 p
ro

m
ot

es
 c

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 l

ea
rn

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

is
 a

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
y 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

  
A

 p
ro

je
ct

 g
ro

up
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
t u

p 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

ne
ed

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 l
ea

rn
in

g 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

in
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
. 

 T
he

 r
ev

ie
w

 w
ill

 f
oc

us
 o

n 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ba

se
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t V

al
ui

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
ag

en
da

.  
 In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 H

ou
si

ng
 

Th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 P

la
n 

re
co

m
m

en
ds

 th
at

 th
e 

50
%

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 ta

rg
et

 is
 b

ro
ke

n 
do

w
n 

as
 fo

llo
w

s.
  F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
th

is
 b

re
ak

do
w

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

si
on

al
ly

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

LD
F.

  
Th

er
e 

w
ill 

ag
ai

n 
be

 s
om

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

in
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 th
es

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
ag

ai
n,

 w
he

re
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

du
e 

to
 h

ig
h 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 le

ve
ls

, l
ow

 la
nd

 v
al

ue
s 

an
d 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

be
ne

fit
s.

 
 70

 %
 S

oc
ia

l R
en

te
d,

 
30

 %
 In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 H

ou
si

ng
 /L

ow
 C

os
t H

om
e 

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

(L
C

H
O

)  
 

Page 65



  
37

 

W
e 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

ch
oi

ce
 o

f 
te

nu
re

 a
nd

 i
nd

ep
en

de
nc

e 
by

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 i

nt
er

m
ed

ia
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

, 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
im

ed
 a

t 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 o
n 

m
od

er
at

e 
in

co
m

es
 (

de
fin

ed
 a

s 
ab

ov
e 

£1
6,

40
0 

an
d 

be
lo

w
 £

49
,0

00
). 

 R
ec

en
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 s
ha

re
d 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
ha

ve
 

ev
id

en
ce

d 
hi

gh
 ta

ke
 u

p 
fro

m
 C

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
eg

is
te

r 
w

hi
ls

t a
 r

ec
en

t s
ur

ve
y 

of
 b

or
ou

gh
 te

na
nt

s 
of

 h
ig

h 
ris

e 
bl

oc
ks

 s
ho

w
ed

 th
at

 3
0%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 w
an

te
d 

th
is

 te
nu

re
.  

K
ey

w
or

ke
rs

 h
av

e 
be

ne
fit

ed
 fr

om
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
sh

ar
ed

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
or

 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

at
 in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 r

en
t. 

 W
e 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 o
pt

io
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 r
en

t, 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
ch

oi
ce

 a
nd

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
. 

 Fu
tu

re
 i

nt
er

m
ed

ia
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
ve

ra
ge

 in
co

m
e 

of
 £

26
,0

00
.  

W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 lo
ok

in
g 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 
fo

r 
la

rg
er

 
fa

m
ilie

s.
 

 
In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
on

 
hi

gh
er

 
in

co
m

es
 

th
an

 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
av

er
ag

e 
w

ill 
al

so
 

be
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

 
Fu

rth
er

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 
th

es
e 

ho
us

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 w
eb

si
te

.  
A

 H
ou

si
ng

 
O

pt
io

ns
 D

ay
 in

 2
00

5 
al

so
 h

el
pe

d 
to

 r
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 
th

es
e 

ch
oi

ce
s.

 
 

Th
er

e 
is

 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 

ev
id

en
ce

 
of

 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r i
nt

er
m

ed
ia

te
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

 

 

 
H

ou
si

ng
 O

pt
io

ns
 D

ay
 2

00
5 

3.
5 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Fo
ur

: D
es

ig
n,

 E
ne

rg
y 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
E

xc
el

le
nc

e 
in

 d
es

ig
n 

w
ill 

pr
om

ot
e 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
in

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
. 

 I
m

pr
ov

ed
 d

es
ig

n 
w

ill 
al

so
 h

el
p 

to
 c

om
ba

t 
cl

im
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
im

pr
ov

ed
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y.

  R
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 w

ill
 s

ec
ur

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 b

en
ef

its
 fo

r t
he

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
, i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 o

n 
a 

gl
ob

al
 le

ve
l. 

 En
er

gy
 E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

 W
hy

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
a 

pr
io

rit
y 

C
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 is

 t
he

 b
ig

ge
st

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
fa

ci
ng

 u
s 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

m
us

t 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 t

ac
kl

in
g 

it.
  

W
ith

 w
ar

m
er

 w
in

te
rs

 a
nd

 h
ot

te
r, 

dr
ie

r 
su

m
m

er
s,

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 w

ill 
im

pa
ct

 u
po

n 
Lo

nd
on

 w
ith

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 e

ffe
ct

. H
ou

si
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 
ne

ar
ly

 h
al

f o
f L

on
do

n’
s 

ca
rb

on
 d

io
xi

de
 

em
is

si
on

s,
 m

os
t o

f w
hi

ch
 is

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
en

er
gy

 w
hi

ch
 is

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

he
at

in
g 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 w
at

er
. N

ew
 h

om
es

 in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 b

ui
lt 

in
 a

 w
ay

 th
at

 e
ns

ur
es

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 le
ve

l o
f e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. A

 k
ey

 is
su

e 
fo

r t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k 

m
uc

h 
of

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

bu
ilt

 o
r a

da
pt

ed
 to

 m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 u
po

n 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
w

ay
 h

om
es

 a
re

 d
es

ig
ne

d,
 b

ui
lt,

 a
da

pt
ed

 a
nd

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 c

ar
bo

n 
em

is
si

on
s,

 m
in

im
is

es
 w

as
te

 a
nd

 u
se

s 

Page 66



  
38

 

w
at

er
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 o

ur
 h

om
es

 in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 a

re
 fi

t t
o 

fa
ce

 a
 fu

tu
re

 o
f i

ne
vi

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

.  
 A

na
ly

si
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 is
 a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 a

re
a 

of
 d

el
iv

er
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 e
ne

rg
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 –
 D

el
iv

er
in

g 
a 

lo
w

 c
ar

bo
n 

bo
ro

ug
h 

– 
A

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
.  

O
ur

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
th

e 
B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

5-
20

.  
O

ur
 b

or
ou

gh
 e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
w

as
te

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 m

irr
or

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 E

ne
rg

y 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 L

on
do

n 
W

as
te

 S
tra

te
gy

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

   
 N

ew
 h

om
es

 m
us

t 
m

ee
t 

bu
ild

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 w

hi
ch

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

 r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

in
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l t

er
m

s.
  

H
ow

ev
er

 t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

ex
is

tin
g 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 L

on
do

n 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

st
oc

k 
in

 o
ur

 b
or

ou
gh

), 
ha

s 
no

t 
be

en
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 o
r 

re
sp

on
d 

to
 a

 
ch

an
gi

ng
 c

lim
at

e.
  

H
ou

si
ng

 m
us

t 
re

du
ce

 c
ar

bo
n 

em
is

si
on

s,
 i

nc
re

as
e 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
us

e,
 m

in
im

is
e 

w
as

te
 a

nd
 u

se
 w

at
er

 m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

.  
Th

e 
M

ay
or

 o
f L

on
do

n 
ha

s 
a 

ne
w

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

ut
y 

to
 ta

ck
le

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, t

o 
co

m
pl

em
en

t h
is

 e
xi

st
in

g 
du

ty
 to

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
  

 Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 s

tra
te

gy
 o

n 
en

er
gy

, 
by

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 p

os
si

bl
e 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
st

an
da

rd
 is

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fo

r h
om

es
 in

 a
ll 

te
nu

re
s.

  W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
to

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t t

ar
ge

t t
o 

el
im

in
at

e 
fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
 b

y 
20

16
 a

nd
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 

no
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

dw
el

lin
g 

w
ith

 a
 S

A
P

 r
at

in
g 

of
 le

ss
 t

ha
n 

30
 b

y 
20

10
. 

 W
e 

w
ill

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
so

la
r 

w
at

er
 h

ea
tin

g 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

re
ne

w
ab

le
s 

to
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 a
nd

 e
nd

ea
vo

ur
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
hi

ch
 g

oe
s 

w
el

l b
ey

on
d 

m
in

im
um

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 im
pr

ov
es

 e
ne

rg
y 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. 

 W
e 

w
ill

 a
im

 t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 t
ar

ge
t 

fo
r 

su
pp

ly
in

g 
10

%
 o

f 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
so

ur
ce

s 
by

 2
01

0 
 E

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 h

om
es

 w
ill 

re
du

ce
 e

ne
rg

y 
de

m
an

d 
an

d 
co

st
s 

fo
r r

es
id

en
ts

.  
Th

e 
M

ay
or

 o
f L

on
do

n 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 s

ee
 a

 m
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 z

er
o 

ca
rb

on
 e

m
is

si
on

s,
 a

nd
 a

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 a

 3
0%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
is

 s
et

 f
or

 2
02

5.
  

Th
e 

LD
F 

w
ill 

al
so

 h
el

p 
to

 in
fo

rm
 f

ut
ur

e 
en

er
gy

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

po
lic

ie
s 

fo
r 

on
 s

ite
 r

en
ew

ab
le

s.
  

Th
er

e 
is

 a
ls

o 
a 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

20
%

 c
ar

bo
n 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 b

y 
20

10
, w

ith
 a

 3
2%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
on

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ho
us

in
g 

si
te

s.
  

B
et

te
r 

ho
us

in
g 

de
si

gn
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

hi
s,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
f 

al
l t

en
ur

es
.  

D
ec

en
t h

om
es

 w
or

ks
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 fo

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
ho

us
in

g.
  

A
 B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 E

ne
rg

y 
A

ct
io

n 
A

re
a 

ha
s 

be
en

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
  

Th
is

 a
im

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

ca
rb

on
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
fro

m
 b

y 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 b
y 

on
e 

th
ird

, 
w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

fro
m

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 b

ui
lt 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
ild

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.  

C
om

bi
ne

d 
H

ea
t a

nd
 P

ow
er

 (
C

H
P

) 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 fo
r 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

, a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ill 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 h

ea
tin

g 
in

 a
ll 

of
 th

es
e.

 
     

Page 67



  
39

 

D
es

ig
n 

 W
hy

 it
 is

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
W

e 
w

ill 
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
ll 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 a

re
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 p
os

si
bl

e 
qu

al
ity

.  
P

rin
ci

pl
es

 fo
r 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 b

y 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 P
la

n,
 im

po
rta

nt
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 t

ha
t 

al
l n

ew
 h

om
es

 a
re

 b
ui

lt 
to

 L
ife

tim
e 

H
om

es
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

an
d 

10
%

 m
us

t 
be

 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g.

  T
he

 L
ife

tim
e 

H
om

es
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

w
ill 

be
ne

fit
 a

ll 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
, a

nd
 w

ill 
al

so
 e

na
bl

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
liv

in
g 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
lif

e 
ea

si
er

 f
or

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s.

  
Th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
al

so
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 k

ee
p 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s 

in
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

es
ig

n.
 

 A
na

ly
si

s 
W

e 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 s
tri

ve
 fo

r 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t p
os

si
bl

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

 u
po

n 
th

e 
in

no
va

tio
n 

an
d 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 th

at
 o

ur
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
re

ce
iv

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

w
ar

ds
.  

W
e 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 1

00
%

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 a

ll 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 s

tra
te

gy
. 

 A
n 

U
rb

an
 D

es
ig

n 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
oc

um
en

t 
(U

D
F 

S
P

D
) 

is
 b

ei
ng

 p
re

pa
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 L
D

F 
an

d 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.  
Th

e 
U

D
F 

ai
m

s 
to

 r
ei

nf
or

ce
 lo

ca
l i

de
nt

ity
 w

ith
 a

 s
en

se
 o

f 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

tra
ns

fo
rm

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

in
to

 a
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 M

od
er

n 
M

et
ho

ds
 o

f 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(M
M

C
) 

in
 f

ut
ur

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. 

 M
M

C
 h

as
 s

ev
er

al
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, f

as
te

r h
ou

si
ng

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
hi

gh
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f d

es
ig

n.
  O

ff-
S

ite
 M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 (O

S
M

) i
s 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
M

M
C

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

, a
nd

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 g

iv
en

 to
 th

e 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 O

ff-
S

ite
 M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 (

S
O

S
M

) 
m

od
el

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
B

ar
ki

ng
 R

iv
er

si
de

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 Fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
sp

ac
e 

fro
m

 o
ur

 c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 w
e 

w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
ur

 s
pa

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

, a
nd

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 S
up

er
-F

le
xi

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 w
hi

ch
 is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 fa

m
ily

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
or

 li
fe

st
yl

e 
ch

an
ge

s.
  

S
ev

er
al

 a
w

ar
ds

 h
av

e 
be

en
 g

iv
en

 fo
r 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
de

si
gn

s 
of

 n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ch
em

es
, a

nd
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f n
ew

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 h

av
e 

m
et

 th
e 

‘G
oo

d’
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r E

co
H

om
es

 in
 

20
04

-5
.  

A
ll 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 th

at
 a

re
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 E
co

H
om

es
 ‘V

er
y 

G
oo

d’
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

si
nc

e 
20

05
-6

. 
 3.

6 
Pr

io
rit

y 
Fi

ve
: A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

 
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
W

hi
ls

t 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 i
nv

ol
ve

d 
in

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

, 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 v
al

ua
bl

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
th

at
 w

e 
m

us
t 

ha
rn

es
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

fo
r o

ur
 c

om
m

un
ity

.  
 

Page 68



  
40

 

W
hy

 it
 is

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
Th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r t
he

 fu
tu

re
 is

 e
ss

en
tia

l i
n 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
.  

Th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 

ha
s 

w
id

er
 i

m
pa

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 i
s 

a 
cr

iti
ca

l 
fa

ct
or

 i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 l
oc

al
 p

ro
sp

er
ity

 a
nd

 s
ta

bi
lit

y.
 H

ou
se

 p
ric

es
 e

xc
ee

d 
av

er
ag

e 
in

co
m

es
 a

nd
 c

on
se

qu
en

tly
 th

e 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r s
oc

ia
l r

en
te

d 
ho

us
in

g 
ou

ts
tri

ps
 s

up
pl

y.
  I

t i
s 

al
so

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
o 

co
ns

id
er

 n
ew

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 

fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 to

 m
ee

t o
ur

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

d.
  O

ur
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

is
 to

 ta
rg

et
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
t t

ho
se

 m
os

t i
n 

ne
ed

. 
 A

na
ly

si
s 

A
 ta

rg
et

 o
f 4

25
 n

ew
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 p

er
 y

ea
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
t. 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f o
ve

r 9
00

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 o
ve

r t
he

 
pr

ev
io

us
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

tra
te

gy
 ti

m
es

ca
le

.  
O

ur
 p

ro
po

se
d 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ta
rg

et
 is

 a
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 in

cr
ea

se
 fr

om
 th

e 
20

03
-6

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 a
nn

ua
l 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 3
90

 n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

. 
 Pl

an
 to

 A
dd

re
ss

 S
ho

rt
fa

lls
 

1.
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

N
ew

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

om
es

 –
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

ne
w

 s
oc

ia
lly

 re
nt

ed
 h

om
es

. 
2.

 O
th

er
 T

en
ur

e 
O

pt
io

ns
 –

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
ch

oi
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

ne
w

 in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

. 
3.

 P
riv

at
e 

Se
ct

or
 E

m
pt

y 
H

om
es

 –
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 e

m
pt

y 
ho

m
es

 a
re

 b
ro

ug
ht

 b
ac

k 
in

to
 u

se
. 

4.
 D

en
si

ty
 –

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ai
m

 to
 u

se
 la

nd
 re

so
ur

ce
fu

lly
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 d
en

si
ty

 p
ol

ic
y 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
in

 c
ha

pt
er

 3
.2

. 
5.

 M
an

ag
in

g 
Vo

id
s 

– 
W

or
k 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
vo

id
 tu

rn
ar

ou
nd

 o
f C

ou
nc

il 
st

oc
k,

 a
nd

 v
oi

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
f R

SL
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
is

 m
on

ito
re

d.
 

 Th
er

e 
is

 a
 N

A
H

P
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 £

17
.8

 m
ill

io
n 

fo
r 2

00
6-

8 
fo

r a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

, t
ho

ug
h 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 s

ee
ki

ng
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 d
el

iv
er

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
ot

he
r r

es
ou

rc
es

.  
Th

e 
LH

C
 is

 b
ei

ng
 a

ss
es

se
d 

an
d 

w
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 k
ee

n 
to

 p
ur

su
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

pu
rs

ui
ng

 t
he

 p
os

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

ne
w

 l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ow
ne

d 
an

d 
m

an
ag

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 t

hr
ou

gh
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 a

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 

de
ve

lo
pe

r. 
 H

ow
ev

er
 th

is
 re

qu
ire

s 
co

m
pl

ex
 fu

nd
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 th
or

ou
gh

ly
 b

ef
or

e 
an

y 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e.
 

 A
 n

um
be

r o
f s

el
f-b

ui
ld

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 w

er
e 

bu
ilt

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 T

an
ne

r S
tre

et
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

an
d 

w
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 e

xp
lo

re
 th

e 
po

ss
ib

ilit
y 

of
 s

el
f-b

ui
ld

 in
 fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
.  

O
th

er
 in

no
va

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
.  

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

 w
ill

 
va

ry
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 t
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

ite
 f

ac
to

rs
. 

 A
 ‘

C
om

m
un

ity
 B

on
us

’ 
sc

he
m

e 
w

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

at
 S

t. 
A

nn
’s

, 
w

he
re

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
ta

in
ed

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 e
qu

ity
, 

an
d 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 s
im

ila
r 

sc
he

m
es

 w
ill 

be
 s

co
pe

d.
  

W
e 

w
ill 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

la
rg

er
 f

am
ily

 s
iz

ed
 in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 

ho
us

in
g 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. 
     

Page 69



  
41

 

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 (e
vi

de
nc

e 
on

 p
ag

e 
15

) a
nd

 
th

e 
ev

id
en

t 
st

ro
ng

 
ne

ed
 

fo
r 

m
or

e 
fa

m
ily

 
si

ze
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n,

 ta
rg

et
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
se

t f
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
iz

e 
m

ix
 (

se
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 ta
bl

e)
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 b
as

ed
 th

es
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

on
 a

ll 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

cu
rr

en
t 

pi
ct

ur
e 

of
 

de
m

an
d,

 a
nd

 t
he

y 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 L

D
F 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
de

riv
ed

 fr
om

 re
si

de
nt

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n.

 

 
LB

B
D

 D
w

el
lin

g 
S

iz
e 

M
ix

 
N

o.
 o

f B
ed

ro
om

s 
Ta

rg
et

 
1 

30
%

 
2 

20
%

 
3 

35
%

 
4+

 
15

%
 

 

 Th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 fo
st

er
 c

ar
er

s 
ar

e 
is

su
es

 th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 s
ou

gh
t t

o 
ad

dr
es

s,
 a

nd
 w

e 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 g
iv

e 
th

em
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
la

rg
er

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 b

y 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
ot

he
r i

ni
tia

tiv
es

.  
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 ta
ck

le
 o

ve
rc

ro
w

di
ng

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
  T

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 is

 s
ee

ki
ng

 to
 re

du
ce

 o
ve

rc
ro

w
di

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

fu
nd

in
g 

ex
te

ns
io

ns
 to

 C
ou

nc
il 

ho
us

es
, a

nd
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 r

es
ea

rc
h 

in
to

 u
nd

er
 o

cc
up

at
io

n 
an

d 
ov

er
cr

ow
di

ng
 to

 h
el

p 
to

 a
lle

vi
at

e 
pr

es
su

re
 o

n 
su

pp
ly

.  
Fu

tu
re

 r
es

ea
rc

h 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

ho
w

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
ov

er
cr

ow
di

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l t
en

ur
es

.  
S

ub
-r

eg
io

na
l f

un
di

ng
 w

as
 a

cq
ui

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

E
LH

P
 in

 2
00

5-
6 

fo
r s

ix
 C

ou
nc

il 
ho

m
es

 to
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

 g
iv

e 
la

rg
er

 s
iz

ed
 fa

m
ily

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

 
 3.

7 
Pr

io
rit

y 
Si

x:
 P

riv
at

e 
Se

ct
or

 H
ou

si
ng

 
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
P

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 ta

ki
ng

 o
n 

gr
ea

te
r 

pr
om

in
en

ce
 w

ith
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
.  

O
ur

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

of
 in

te
rv

en
in

g 
in

 p
oo

r-
co

nd
iti

on
 h

ou
si

ng
, 

ta
ck

lin
g 

ba
d 

la
nd

lo
rd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

un
la

w
fu

l e
vi

ct
io

ns
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

 t
o 

 
br

in
g 

va
ca

nt
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 b
ac

k 
in

to
 u

se
, e

ns
ur

e 
de

ce
nc

y 
an

d 
fo

st
er

 a
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

ou
r s

ta
ff 

an
d 

th
e 

se
ct

or
. 

 W
hy

 it
 is

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
W

ith
 6

8%
 o

f B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
’s

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
to

ck
 b

ei
ng

 in
 p

riv
at

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p,

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ha
s 

ha
d 

to
 fo

rm
ul

at
e 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 ta

ck
le

 
po

or
 c

on
di

tio
ns

, 
im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 i
ne

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
na

bl
e 

ar
ea

 r
en

ew
al

 f
or

 t
he

 4
6,

71
9 

dw
el

lin
gs

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
. 

 A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

73
%

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 w

as
 b

ui
lt 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
th

e 
S

ec
on

d 
W

or
ld

 W
ar

, 
of

 w
hi

ch
 a

lm
os

t 
ha

lf 
is

 d
ee

m
ed

 n
ot

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 

de
ce

nc
y.

  C
om

po
un

di
ng

 th
es

e 
is

su
es

 is
 th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 th

e 
se

ct
or

 is
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

by
 s

om
e 

of
 o

ur
 m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
 Th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 th

is
 s

to
ck

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
en

ha
nc

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
to

 m
ak

e 
gr

ea
te

r u
se

 o
f t

he
 p

riv
at

e 
re

nt
ed

 s
ec

to
r t

o 
al

le
vi

at
e 

th
e 

pr
es

su
re

s 
of

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r 
lo

w
-in

co
m

e 
an

d 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s.
  

Th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 P

la
n,

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 th

e 
M

ay
or

’s
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
P

ap
er

 a
ll 

re
in

fo
rc

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 m
ak

e 
be

tte
r 

us
e 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
s.

  D
es

pi
te

 th
e 

fa
ct

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 h

as
 s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
lo

w
es

t h
ou

se
 p

ric
es

 in
 L

on
do

n,
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
se

e 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
sh

ar
pe

st
 ri

si
ng

 p
ro

pe
rty

 v
al

ue
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l. 
 A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
La

nd
 R

eg
is

try
, t

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ro
pe

rty
 p

ric
e 

in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 

Page 70



  
42

 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
w

as
 £

22
6,

62
3 

an
d 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

re
nt

 fo
r a

 h
ou

se
 o

r m
ai

so
ne

tte
 w

as
 e

st
im

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

G
LA

 in
 2

00
5 

to
 

be
 £

17
8.

70
 p

er
 w

ee
k.

  
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
in

co
m

e 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 £

26
,0

00
 p

er
 y

ea
r, 

m
ak

in
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 a
 r

ea
l i

ss
ue

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

he
th

er
 

th
ey

 a
re

 p
ur

ch
as

in
g 

or
 re

nt
in

g 
pr

iv
at

el
y.

  
 In

 r
ef

le
ct

io
n 

of
 th

es
e 

fa
ct

s,
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 r

en
ew

in
g 

its
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
tra

te
gy

 to
 m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

is
 s

ec
to

r 
in

 
cr

ea
tin

g 
m

or
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

.  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
do

es
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

th
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 ta
ck

le
 th

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

in
 th

is
 s

ec
to

r b
y 

its
el

f. 
O

ur
 s

tra
te

gy
 is

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

to
 w

or
k 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 p

riv
at

e 
la

nd
lo

rd
s 

an
d 

R
S

Ls
 a

nd
 to

 ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

is
e 

th
e 

w
or

st
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

.  
Th

is
 ti

es
 in

 w
ith

 o
ur

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

po
w

er
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

os
e 

ho
m

es
 p

ro
vi

de
 fi

t a
nd

 d
ec

en
t p

ro
pe

rti
es

 to
 li

ve
 in

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 m
ak

in
g 

su
re

 th
at

 
70

%
 o

f t
he

 m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 m

ee
t t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

by
 2

01
0.

  
Th

e 
w

id
er

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f t

hi
s 

ar
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 o

ur
 c

om
m

itm
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
by

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 in

 o
ld

er
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

ei
r 

ca
rb

on
 o

ut
pu

t. 
 

Th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r a

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 re

ne
w

al
 w

as
 a

ls
o 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

fo
r t

he
 s

tra
te

gy
. 

 A
na

ly
si

s 
C

re
at

in
g 

Po
si

tiv
e 

R
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Se
ct

or
 

W
e 

be
lie

ve
 th

at
 if

 w
e 

st
re

ng
th

en
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

an
d 

en
ab

le
 th

em
 fu

rth
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

in
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 w
e 

ca
n 

ob
ta

in
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 u

se
 o

f p
riv

at
e 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
in

 o
ur

 e
ffo

rts
 to

 c
re

at
e 

sa
fe

r, 
st

ro
ng

er
 a

nd
 p

ro
sp

er
ou

s 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

ec
en

t h
om

es
. 

 Th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r o

rig
in

al
 e

ffo
rts

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

la
nd

lo
rd

 a
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
sc

he
m

e,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 m

ov
ed

 a
 s

ta
ge

 fu
rth

er
 a

nd
 jo

in
ed

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 

La
nd

lo
rd

s 
A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

S
ch

em
e 

(L
LA

S
). 

 T
hi

s 
ha

s 
en

ab
le

d 
10

2 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 la
nd

lo
rd

s 
in

 t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

, 
to

 b
e 

eq
ui

pp
ed

 w
ith

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 q

ua
lit

y 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r t
en

an
ts

 w
hi

ls
t m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 p
ro

fit
ab

le
 b

us
in

es
s 

w
ith

 li
ttl

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r o
ur

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
ir 

pr
op

er
tie

s.
  

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 g

oo
d 

la
nd

lo
rd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

th
e 

m
os

t u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y,

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 d

ec
en

cy
 w

e 
ex

pe
ct

, w
e 

in
te

nd
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 a

cc
re

di
te

d 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r. 

 W
e 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

ex
pl

or
e 

of
fe

rin
g 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
 t

o 
th

os
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
w

ho
 d

o 
so

. 
 W

e 
w

ill
 o

ffe
r 

di
sc

ou
nt

ed
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

fe
es

 fo
r a

cc
re

di
te

d 
la

nd
lo

rd
s 

w
ho

 m
an

ag
e 

H
M

O
s 

an
d 

w
ill 

ex
pl

or
e 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
ilit

y 
of

 in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 
in

to
 o

ur
 M

C
IL

 p
or

tfo
lio

. A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 re

se
ar

ch
 b

ei
ng

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
LL

A
S

 w
e 

w
ill 

al
so

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f p

riv
at

e 
te

na
nt

 a
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n.
 

 Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 a

ls
o 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

La
nd

lo
rd

s’
 F

or
um

 s
o 

th
at

 w
e 

ca
n 

id
en

tif
y 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

is
su

es
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

 a
nd

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

re
nt

ed
 s

ec
to

r. 
 T

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
as

 s
ta

te
d 

th
at

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 a

 la
nd

lo
rd

s’
 fo

ru
m

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
an

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 

ra
tin

g.
  I

t i
s 

ou
r a

im
 fo

r t
he

 fo
ru

m
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
la

nd
lo

rd
-le

d 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
he

re
 w

e 
ca

n 
ad

vi
se

 o
n 

re
le

va
nt

 g
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
ts

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

go
od

 q
ua

lit
y 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

an
d 

w
he

re
 l

an
dl

or
ds

 c
an

 a
ss

is
t 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 s

et
tin

g 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 f
or

 t
he

 s
ec

to
r. 

 T
he

 f
or

um
 a

ls
o 

of
f e

rs
 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
a 

pl
at

fo
rm

 to
 d

is
cu

ss
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 le
tti

ng
s 

an
d 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

.  
W

e 
w

ill 
co

up
le

 th
is

 b
y 

ho
ld

in
g 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 
La

nd
lo

rd
s 

D
ay

 in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 a
nd

 p
os

si
bl

y 
a 

P
riv

at
e 

Te
na

nt
s 

D
ay

 if
 w

e 
ca

n 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

th
e 

ne
ed

. 

Page 71



  
43

 

Th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fo

llo
w

s 
th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 in
pu

t o
f l

ea
se

ho
ld

er
s 

w
ho

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

C
H

P
 b

oa
rd

s 
in

 d
ec

id
in

g 
w

ha
t t

he
 

co
un

ci
l’s

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 t
ow

ar
ds

 l
ea

se
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
lig

ht
in

g 
re

pa
ir 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

  
B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 h
as

 3
,0

55
 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 a
nd

 th
ey

 h
ol

d 
an

 a
nn

ua
l f

or
um

 to
 d

is
cu

ss
 h

ow
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l m
ee

ts
 th

ei
r 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

.  
W

e 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 c
on

su
lt 

w
ith

 le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

fo
ru

m
 a

nd
 C

H
P

 b
oa

rd
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

co
st

s 
an

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
al

 a
re

as
 o

f 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

an
d 

es
ta

te
s 

up
 to

 th
e 

de
ce

nt
 h

om
es

 s
ta

nd
ar

d.
 

 M
an

y 
of

 th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 fa
ce

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
, a

re
 s

ha
re

d 
ac

ro
ss

 L
on

do
n 

an
d 

fin
an

ce
s 

fo
r p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 re
ne

w
al

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 

m
ov

ed
 t

o 
a 

su
b-

re
gi

on
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.
  

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 in

te
nd

 t
o 

ut
ilis

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
as

 a
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 in

 t
he

 E
as

t 
Lo

nd
on

 R
en

ew
al

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (

E
LR

P
) 

to
 b

rin
g 

em
pt

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ba
ck

 i
nt

o 
us

e,
 s

up
po

rt 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

de
ce

nt
 h

om
es

 
st

an
da

rd
. A

lo
ng

si
de

 H
av

er
in

g,
 R

ed
br

id
ge

, W
al

th
am

 F
or

es
t, 

H
ac

kn
ey

, N
ew

ha
m

, T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

do
n,

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 is

 
se

ek
in

g 
to

 fi
nd

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
su

b-
re

gi
on

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 h

ou
si

ng
 re

ne
w

al
. 

 W
e 

w
ill 

al
so

 in
ve

st
 in

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 s
ta

ff 
to

 a
ss

is
t u

s 
in

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 o

ur
 le

ga
l d

ut
ie

s 
of

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
de

ce
nc

y,
 b

rin
gi

ng
 v

ac
an

t p
ro

pe
rti

es
 b

ac
k 

in
to

 
us

e,
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 li
ce

ns
ab

le
 H

M
O

s 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t w
or

k.
  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
is

, t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
at

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

su
es

 
ra

ng
e 

fro
m

 e
m

pt
y 

ho
m

es
, 

ne
w

-b
ui

ld
, 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t, 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

, 
pr

iv
at

e 
le

as
in

g 
an

d 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

th
is

 c
ut

s 
ac

ro
ss

 a
 

m
ul

tit
ud

e 
of

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

.  
W

e 
pr

op
os

e 
to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
co

-o
rd

in
at

e,
 a

ss
es

s 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 jo
in

t-
up

 w
or

ki
ng

 i
n 

th
is

 f
ie

ld
. 

 T
hi

s 
gr

ou
p 

w
ill 

al
so

 b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 c
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

ar
e 

re
gu

la
rly

 b
rie

fe
d 

on
 t

he
 s

ec
to

r 
an

d 
to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
ei

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r o
ur

 w
or

k 
in

 m
ee

tin
g 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 
 A

ss
is

tin
g 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ew
al

 a
nd

 M
ak

in
g 

H
om

es
 D

ec
en

t 
In

 c
re

at
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
an

d 
sa

fe
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 re

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
de

pr
iv

ed
 a

re
as

, t
he

re
 is

 a
n 

on
us

 u
po

n 
us

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 o
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
ce

nc
y 

of
 th

ei
r h

om
es

.  
Th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t r
eq

ui
re

s 
th

at
 7

0%
 o

f p
riv

at
el

y 
ow

ne
d 

ho
m

es
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

by
 

pe
op

le
 d

ee
m

ed
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
de

ce
nt

 b
y 

20
10

 a
nd

 7
5%

 b
y 

20
20

.  
V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 th

os
e 

in
 

w
hi

ch
 o

ne
 o

r m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 in
 re

ce
ip

t o
f a

n 
in

co
m

e-
re

la
te

d 
or

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 b

en
ef

it.
  T

he
 2

00
2 

S
to

ck
 C

on
di

tio
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

su
gg

es
te

d 
th

at
 4

5%
 o

f 
pr

iv
at

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
er

e 
no

n-
de

ce
nt

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

£2
20

m
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
rin

g 
th

os
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

st
an

da
rd

.  
A

 
ne

w
 S

to
ck

 C
on

di
tio

n 
S

ur
ve

y 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
 2

00
7-

8.
 

 Th
e 

sa
m

e 
su

rv
ey

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 t

ha
t 

5%
 o

f 
pr

iv
at

e 
st

oc
k 

w
as

 u
nf

it 
an

d 
lik

el
y 

to
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

an
da

to
ry

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ne
w

 H
ou

si
ng

 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

R
at

in
g 

S
ys

te
m

 (
H

H
S

R
S

) 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
th

e 
fit

ne
ss

 s
ta

nd
ar

d.
  

O
ur

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t t
ea

m
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
dw

el
lin

gs
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
af

e 
an

d 
he

al
th

y 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 o
cc

up
an

ts
 a

nd
 v

is
ito

rs
 a

nd
 b

e 
fre

e 
of

 a
vo

id
ab

le
 h

az
ar

ds
.  

W
e 

ar
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
re

m
ed

yi
ng

 C
at

eg
or

y 
1 

ha
za

rd
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

la
nd

lo
rd

 a
ct

io
n 

or
 w

or
ks

 in
 d

ef
au

lt 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
.  

W
e 

ar
e 

so
on

 to
 p

ub
lis

h 
ou

r g
ui

da
nc

e 
po

lic
y 

on
 th

e 
H

H
S

R
S

 s
ys

te
m

. 
 

Page 72



  
44

 

P
ar

t 
of

 o
ur

 s
ub

-re
gi

on
al

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
vo

lv
es

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

de
ce

nt
 h

om
es

 s
ta

nd
ar

d.
  

3,
75

5 
ow

ne
r 

oc
cu

pi
er

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 v
is

ite
d 

in
 

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 t
he

ir 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
he

th
er

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
en

tit
le

d 
to

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

up
po

rt 
to

 r
em

ed
y 

an
y 

de
fe

ct
s.

  T
hi

s 
is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 W

ar
m

 Z
on

e 
sc

he
m

e,
 w

hi
ch

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

th
at

 m
ay

 q
ua

lif
y.

  I
n 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

E
LR

P
, 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

w
ill 

be
 p

ilo
tin

g 
an

 E
as

t 
Lo

nd
on

 F
in

an
ci

al
 A

dv
oc

ac
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 W
ar

m
 Z

on
e,

 D
A

B
D

 U
K

 a
nd

 a
 c

ha
rit

ab
le

 g
ro

up
 

ca
lle

d 
Fa

ir 
M

on
ey

 t
o 

tra
in

 a
nd

 a
cc

re
di

t 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

dv
oc

at
es

 c
om

pe
te

nt
 t

o 
ad

vi
se

 o
n 

al
l o

f 
th

e 
op

tio
ns

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 c
lie

nt
s 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

od
uc

ts
.  

Th
is

 m
ea

ns
 c

lie
nt

s 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 ra

ng
e 

of
 s

ch
em

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 th

em
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

de
ce

nc
y 

of
 th

ei
r h

om
e 

w
ith

ou
t f

ea
rs

 o
f m

is
-s

el
lin

g 
an

d 
un

et
hi

ca
l a

dv
ic

e.
 

 A
t p

re
se

nt
 w

e 
al

so
 h

el
p 

fu
nd

 H
an

ov
er

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

w
ith

 £
20

0,
00

0 
to

 r
un

 o
ur

 H
om

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

(H
IA

) 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

th
e 

H
ou

se
P

ro
ud

 e
qu

ity
 r

el
ea

se
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
D

is
ab

le
d 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
G

ra
nt

 (
D

FG
) 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

al
lo

w
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 a

pp
ly

 fo
r a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

da
pt

at
io

ns
 s

o 
th

ey
 c

an
 re

m
ai

n 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 li
ve

.  
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

a 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 

A
ge

 C
on

ce
rn

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 h
om

e 
se

cu
rit

y 
gr

an
ts

.  
 Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
is

 s
tre

am
lin

in
g 

th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 fo

r g
ra

nt
s 

so
 a

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
it 

ea
si

er
 fo

r h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
fe

w
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 g

et
 w

or
ks

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
ei

r 
ho

m
es

. 
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 i
s 

pu
bl

is
hi

ng
 i

ts
 r

ev
is

ed
 P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
G

ui
de

 
de

m
on

st
ra

tin
g 

w
ha

t l
ev

el
s 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

up
po

rt 
w

ill 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
of

 h
om

e 
ow

ne
rs

, w
hi

ls
t t

ho
se

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

la
rg

e 
su

m
 o

f e
qu

ity
 in

 th
ei

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

ire
ct

ed
 to

 o
th

er
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

.  
Th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
gr

an
ts

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
ill 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

th
e 

ta
ke

-u
p 

of
 e

qu
ity

 r
el

ea
se

 s
ch

em
es

, 
w

hi
ch

 a
llo

w
s 

ow
ne

r 
oc

cu
pi

er
s 

to
 t

ak
e 

ou
t 

a 
lo

an
 a

nd
 b

or
ro

w
 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 e

qu
ity

 in
 th

ei
r h

om
es

 to
 fi

na
nc

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

 A
s 

in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
po

ck
et

s 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 fu
nd

in
g,

 b
ec

om
e 

pa
rt 

of
 a

 H
om

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Zo

ne
. 

 T
he

se
 z

on
es

 b
id

 t
o 

ta
ck

le
 o

w
ne

r 
oc

cu
pi

er
 h

ou
si

ng
 e

st
at

es
 w

hi
ch

 n
ot

 o
nl

y 
re

qu
ire

 p
hy

si
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 
re

ne
w

al
 b

ut
 a

ls
o 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

hi
gh

 l
ev

el
s 

of
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r, 

ar
e 

ec
on

om
ic

al
ly

 d
ep

re
ss

ed
 o

r 
ar

e 
m

aj
or

 e
ye

so
re

s.
  

U
nd

er
 t

he
se

 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

pa
rti

cu
la

r a
re

as
 w

ill 
be

 ta
rg

et
ed

 b
y 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 W

ar
m

 Z
on

e 
st

af
f t

o 
di

re
ct

 re
si

de
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

rig
ht

 a
ve

nu
es

 o
f a

ss
is

ta
nc

e.
 In

 
so

m
e 

in
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

 i
t 

is
 f

in
an

ci
al

ly
 v

ia
bl

e,
 c

er
ta

in
 f

la
ts

 a
bo

ve
 s

ho
pp

in
g 

pa
ra

de
s 

w
ill 

be
 t

ar
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

re
tu

rn
 t

o 
us

e 
or

 r
ep

ai
r 

an
d 

re
no

va
tio

n.
  

 C
re

at
in

g 
A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
om

es
 b

y 
M

ak
in

g 
B

et
te

r U
se

 o
f E

xi
st

in
g 

St
oc

k 
Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
is

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

be
st

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 p

riv
at

e 
re

nt
ed

 s
ec

to
r t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r t

he
 h

om
el

es
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
on

 lo
w

 a
nd

 a
sp

ira
tio

na
l i

nc
om

es
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
of

fe
rin

g 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 w
is

h 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
w

ne
rs

 a
 c

ha
nc

e 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

ho
m

es
 in

 th
e 

op
en

 
m

ar
ke

t. 
 W

ith
 p

ro
pe

rty
 p

ric
es

 a
s 

st
ro

ng
 a

s 
th

ey
 a

re
, 

fo
r 

m
an

y 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
, 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

ca
n 

st
ill 

m
ak

e 
a 

ho
us

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 d

iff
ic

ul
t. 

 

Page 73



  
45

 

P
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 is

 n
ot

 ju
st

 a
bo

ut
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

ne
w

 o
ne

s,
 b

ut
 a

bo
ut

 m
ak

in
g 

be
tte

r 
us

e 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
st

oc
k.

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 

ha
s 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
49

9 
va

ca
nt

 p
riv

at
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
sp

re
ad

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

no
th

er
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

in
 a

n 
ar

ea
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 h
ig

h 
ho

us
in

g 
de

m
an

d.
  T

o 
re

ite
ra

te
 th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 th

is
 s

ec
to

r w
e 

ar
e 

so
on

 to
 p

ub
lis

h 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 P

ol
ic

y 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 
ou

r 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
se

t o
ut

 th
e 

m
an

ne
r 

in
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

us
e 

ou
r 

po
w

er
s 

of
 c

om
pu

ls
or

y 
pu

rc
ha

se
, e

nf
or

ce
d 

sa
le

s 
an

d 
E

m
pt

y 
D

w
el

lin
g 

M
an

ag
em

en
t O

rd
er

s.
  A

dv
ic

e 
on

 o
ur

 e
m

pt
y 

pr
op

er
ty

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

gr
an

ts
 a

nd
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t p

ow
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
se

t o
ut

 in
 

ou
r n

ew
 E

m
pt

y 
P

ro
pe

rty
 P

ac
ks

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
gi

ve
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 la
nd

lo
rd

s.
 

 W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
ur

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

te
am

 w
e 

ar
e 

co
lla

tin
g 

a 
da

ta
ba

se
 s

ys
te

m
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

al
l t

ho
se

 h
om

es
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 v

ac
an

t f
or

 6
 m

on
th

s 
or

 
m

or
e 

an
d 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
rie

fin
gs

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r w
hi

ch
 re

m
ai

n 
so

.  
A

lo
ng

si
de

 re
si

de
nt

s 
be

in
g 

ab
le

 to
 re

po
rt 

em
pt

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

to
 

us
 d

ire
ct

 o
r t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
E

m
pt

y 
H

om
es

 A
ge

nc
y 

ho
tli

ne
, c

ou
nc

il 
of

fic
er

s 
w

ill
 w

rit
e 

to
 o

r v
is

it 
la

nd
lo

rd
s 

to
 a

dv
is

e 
on

 h
ow

 b
es

t t
o 

m
ak

e 
th

ei
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 fi
t f

or
 u

se
 a

ga
in

.  
P

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 re
qu

ire
s 

us
 to

 w
or

k 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
E

LR
P

 to
 b

id
 fo

r g
ra

nt
s 

to
 b

rin
g 

va
ca

nt
 h

om
es

 b
ac

k 
in

to
 u

se
 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
su

b-
re

gi
on

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 p

le
dg

ed
 to

 b
rin

gi
ng

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f v

ac
an

t p
ro

pe
rti

es
 in

to
 u

se
 a

ga
in

, i
nc

re
as

in
g 

ye
ar

 o
n 

ye
ar

.  
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 o
ur

 G
ua

ra
nt

ee
d 

R
en

t D
ep

os
it 

S
ch

em
e,

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
w

e 
do

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 b

ac
k 

in
to

 o
cc

up
an

cy
, w

ill 
jo

in
 o

ur
 p

or
tfo

lio
 o

f 
ho

m
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 le
as

ed
 o

r l
an

dl
or

d 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d.

  T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ct

 a
s 

an
 in

ce
nt

iv
e 

fo
r t

he
 la

nd
lo

rd
 to

 k
ee

p 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

 u
se

 
an

d 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 s
et

 a
si

de
 £

80
,0

00
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
th

is
 p

la
n.

  
B

y 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 f

re
sh

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 o

ur
 P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r 
Le

as
in

g 
an

d 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

te
am

s 
w

e 
in

te
nd

 to
 d

at
ab

as
e 

al
l o

f o
ur

 P
S

L 
la

nd
lo

rd
s 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
th

em
 to

 jo
in

 o
ur

 F
or

um
 a

nd
 a

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

sc
he

m
e.

 
 Th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ct
 2

00
4 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
th

e 
m

an
da

to
ry

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
re

gi
m

e 
of

 H
ou

se
s 

in
 M

ul
tip

le
 O

cc
up

at
io

n 
(H

M
O

s)
 a

nd
 a

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 u

s 
to

 
sa

tis
fy

 o
ur

se
lv

es
 th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

do
 fi

t t
he

 H
H

S
R

S
 c

rit
er

ia
.  

B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
’s

 s
ys

te
m

 r
ep

la
ce

s 
th

e 
no

tif
ic

at
io

n 
sc

he
m

e 
an

d 
ex

is
tin

g 
H

M
O

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 p

as
sp

or
te

d 
in

to
 li

ce
ns

in
g.

  
W

e 
ha

ve
 r

ec
en

tly
 s

et
 o

ut
 o

ur
 f

ee
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

ha
ve

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
16

6 
H

M
O

s.
  

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

tra
in

in
g 

st
af

f 
to

 i
de

nt
ify

 f
ur

th
er

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 l
ic

en
si

ng
. 

 O
ur

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

H
M

O
 G

ui
da

nc
e 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

sh
or

tly
 s

et
tin

g 
ou

t o
ur

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
 a

nd
 w

ill 
al

so
 in

st
ru

ct
 o

n 
ou

r e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t r
eg

im
e 

ar
ou

nd
 re

la
te

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
rd

er
s.

  
 B

y 
ex

am
in

in
g 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
W

es
t 

Lo
nd

on
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 w
ill 

co
ns

id
er

 t
he

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f 

w
or

ki
ng

 s
ub

-re
gi

on
al

ly
 t

o 
st

an
da

rd
is

e 
fe

es
, 

lic
en

ce
 t

er
m

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

it 
an

 e
as

ie
r 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
hi

ch
 b

ec
om

es
 le

ss
 c

on
fu

si
ng

 f
or

 la
nd

lo
rd

s 
w

ho
 in

ve
st

 
ac

ro
ss

 b
or

ou
gh

s.
  

W
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 H

M
O

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

va
lu

ab
le

 s
ou

rc
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 f
or

 l
ow

-c
om

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 a
nd

 s
in

gl
e 

pe
rs

on
s 

an
d 

on
ce

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 o

n 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
ll 

m
an

da
to

ry
 H

M
O

s,
 t

he
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill 
ex

am
in

e 
th

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

os
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
an

d 
its

 fu
nd

in
g 

im
pa

ct
. 

 R
ed

uc
in

g 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
an

d 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 E
ne

rg
y 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
Th

e 
H

ou
se

 C
on

di
tio

n 
S

ur
ve

y 
su

gg
es

ts
 th

at
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
S

A
P

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ra

tin
g 

of
 p

riv
at

e 
st

oc
k 

in
 B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 5

5.
 

W
hi

ls
t 

th
is

 le
ve

l i
s 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

, 
it 

is
 b

el
ow

 t
he

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 7

0,
 s

et
 b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
to

 m
ee

ts
 it

s 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
.  

Page 74



  
46

 

M
uc

h 
of

 B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
’s

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

iv
at

e 
st

oc
k 

ha
s 

re
ac

he
d 

a 
lif

e 
sp

an
 w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t s

o 
as

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 l
ev

el
s 

of
 d

ec
en

cy
, 

en
su

re
 i

ns
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

ar
m

th
 a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 i
ts

 h
as

 o
n 

th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

 W
e 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 W

ar
m

 Z
on

e 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
os

e 
in

 n
ee

d 
of

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

m
ak

e 
th

ei
r h

om
es

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nt

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

dv
is

in
g 

be
ne

fit
 r

ec
ip

ie
nt

s 
of

 d
is

co
un

ts
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t f

un
de

d 
W

ar
m

 F
ro

nt
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
th

e 
W

ar
m

 H
om

es
 s

ch
em

e 
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
en

er
gy

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
.  

W
he

re
 p

la
us

ib
le

 w
e 

m
ay

 o
ffe

r 
th

em
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
un

de
r 

ou
r 

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

G
ui

de
.  

Th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

is
 

al
so

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

so
m

e 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
so

la
r 

pa
ne

l g
ra

nt
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 m
or

e 
us

e 
an

d 
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 o
n 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f 
en

er
gy

. 
 W

e 
ar

e 
m

in
df

ul
 o

f 
th

e 
ov

er
ar

ch
in

g 
am

bi
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
H

om
e 

E
ne

rg
y 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

ct
 1

99
6 

(H
E

C
A

) 
w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
a 

30
%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 
do

m
es

tic
 e

ne
rg

y 
us

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 c

ou
rs

e 
of

 t
en

 y
ea

rs
. 

Th
e 

20
05

 H
E

C
A

 r
ep

or
t 

su
gg

es
te

d 
w

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 s

av
in

gs
 o

f 
11

.6
%

. 
 T

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
to

 b
e 

m
in

df
ul

 o
f t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f e
ne

rg
y 

th
ey

 u
se

 a
nd

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 it

 h
as

 o
n 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, t

he
 te

am
 w

ill 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l s
ch

oo
ls

 to
 

ge
t p

up
ils

 to
 b

ec
om

e 
E

ne
rg

y 
A

m
ba

ss
ad

or
s 

so
 th

at
 th

ey
 c

an
 c

on
du

ct
 e

ne
rg

y 
au

di
ts

 in
 th

ei
r 

ho
m

es
.  

Th
is

 w
ill 

nu
rtu

re
 a

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

ho
m

e 
ow

ne
r a

nd
 p

up
il 

ab
ou

t t
he

 n
ee

d 
to

 re
du

ce
 e

ne
rg

y 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
an

d 
po

ss
ib

ly
 id

en
tif

y 
w

he
re

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n.
  

 4.
 D

el
iv

er
y 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

 4.
1 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

 Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

ed
 o

n 
a 

qu
ar

te
rly

 b
as

is
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

.  
P

ro
gr

es
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

at
 

re
gu

la
r 

in
te

rv
al

s 
to

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Le

ad
 M

em
be

r. 
 I

t 
is

 o
ur

 in
te

nt
io

n 
to

 r
ep

or
t 

on
 a

 q
ua

rte
rly

 b
as

is
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 A

du
lt 

Tr
us

t 
B

oa
rd

 w
ho

 w
ill

 m
on

ito
r 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 t

he
 s

tra
te

gy
. 

 T
he

 b
oa

rd
 in

cl
ud

es
 M

em
be

r, 
st

at
ut

or
y 

pa
rtn

er
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
P

C
T,

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r 
pa

rtn
er

s 
an

d 
C

ou
nc

il 
of

fic
er

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.
  W

e 
w

ill 
al

so
 re

po
rt 

on
 a

 tw
ic

e 
ye

ar
ly

 b
as

is
 to

 th
e 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
B

oa
rd

.  
A

n 
an

nu
al

 re
po

rt 
on

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
’s

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
. 

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ill 

be
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s:

 
 A

 C
ul

tu
re

 o
f P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

gu
la

r m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 

A
 C

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

En
su

rin
g 

Ex
ce

lle
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
el

iv
er

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 c
us

to
m

er
 c

ar
e 

is
su

es
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

to
 h

el
p 

in
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

O
ng

oi
ng

 S
ta

ff 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 d

el
iv

er
y 

    

Page 75



  
47

 

4.
2 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Pl

an
 2

00
7-

10
 

  SU
ST

A
IN

A
B

LE
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S 

A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

O
H

ES
IO

N
 

  
  

  
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
Ta

rg
et

/A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

ne
d 

M
ile

st
on

es
 

Le
ad

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

7/
8 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
8/

9 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

9/
10

 

1.
1 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
ba

la
nc

ed
 a

nd
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 

D
el

iv
er

 n
um

be
r a

nd
 ty

pe
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

un
its

 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f E

as
t L

on
do

n 
ca

m
pu

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ta

rt 
on

 s
ite

 2
00

8-
9 

O
liv

ia
 D

on
ov

an
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

Ly
m

in
gt

on
 F

ie
ld

s 
st

ar
t o

n 
si

te
 b

y 
20

08
/9

 
O

liv
ia

 D
on

ov
an

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
E

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 p
ep

pe
r 

po
tti

ng
 w

he
re

 a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
on

 h
al

f 
ye

ar
ly

 b
as

is
 d

ur
in

g 
20

07
-1

0 
Ti

m
 L

ew
is

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
R

ev
ie

w
 p

ub
lic

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 

an
d 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
fo

r r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
E

as
te

rn
 E

nd
 o

f T
ha

m
es

 V
ie

w
 d

ur
in

g 
20

07
-1

0 
K

en
 J

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
  

G
as

co
ig

ne
 e

st
at

es
ta

rt 
on

 s
ite

 d
ur

in
g 

20
07

 
K

en
 J

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
S

ee
k 

to
 re

st
ric

t B
uy

 to
 L

et
 th

ro
ug

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 o
n 

bu
lk

 s
al

e 
Is

su
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 o

n 
bu

lk
 s

al
e 

du
rin

g 
20

07
-1

0 

K
en

 
Jo

ne
s/

Je
re

m
y 

G
rin

t 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

P
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 G

LA
 re

se
ar

ch
 d

ur
in

g 
20

07
-8

 
A

nd
re

w
 

S
iv

es
s/

O
liv

ia
 

D
on

ov
an

 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

  
D

ev
el

op
 a

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
 

(L
H

C
) 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
Lo

ca
l H

ou
si

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
 

(L
H

C
) b

y 
20

07
-8

 
A

nd
re

w
 S

iv
es

s 
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

an
d 

£1
50

,0
00

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e,

 E
ng

lis
h 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e,
 E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

1.
2 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ho
us

in
g 

su
pp

ly
 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 o

n 
B

ar
ki

ng
 

R
iv

er
si

de
 

E
ns

ur
e 

ne
w

 s
ch

em
es

 re
ce

iv
e 

on
go

in
g 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n,

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

pp
ra

is
al

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

tra
ns

po
rt 

du
rin

g 
20

07
-1

0 

Je
re

m
y 

G
rin

t 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
P

ro
gr

es
s 

w
or

k 
on

 S
ou

th
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
W

es
t e

ns
ur

in
g 

lin
ka

ge
 to

 w
id

er
 a

re
a 

O
ng

oi
ng

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

to
 a

im
 fo

r a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

ix
 o

f t
en

ur
e 

du
rin

g 
20

07
-1

0 

Je
re

m
y 

G
rin

t 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

1.
3 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
ho

us
in

g 
en

ab
le

s 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

 
sh

op
pi

ng
 a

re
as

 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
at

 B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 
an

d 
C

hu
rc

h 
E

lm
 s

ite
 a

t D
ag

en
ha

m
 

H
ea

th
w

ay
 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

du
rin

g 
20

07
-1

0 
Je

re
m

y 
G

rin
t 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

    

Page 76



  
48

 

D
EC

EN
T 

H
O

M
ES

 A
N

D
 S

A
FE

R
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S 

  
  

  
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
Ta

rg
et

/A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

ne
d 

M
ile

st
on

es
 

Le
ad

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

7/
8 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
8/

9 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

9/
10

 

2.
1 

M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r l

oc
al

 
au

th
or

ity
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 

A
ch

ie
ve

 1
00

%
 D

ec
en

t H
om

es
 fo

r l
oc

al
 

au
th

or
ity

 s
to

ck
 b

y 
20

10
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
es

ta
te

 re
ne

w
al

 s
ch

em
es

 
at

 C
ad

iz
 C

ou
rt,

 a
nd

 s
ch

em
es

 in
 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
fo

r E
as

te
rn

 E
nd

 
Th

am
es

 V
ie

w
, G

or
es

br
oo

k,
 

G
as

co
ig

ne
, L

in
to

ns
, L

on
do

n 
R

oa
d/

N
or

th
 S

tre
et

 b
y 

20
10

 

K
en

 J
on

es
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

D
el

iv
er

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

C
ou

nc
il's

 re
ta

in
ed

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 a

nd
 

re
fre

sh
 fu

nd
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 b
y 

20
10

 

Ji
m

 R
ip

le
y 

£3
3.

2 
m

ill
io

n 
£2

9.
6 

m
ill

io
n 

£3
0.

8 
m

ill
io

n 

  
D

ev
el

op
 a

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
 

(L
H

C
) 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
Lo

ca
l H

ou
si

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
 

(L
H

C
) f

or
 B

ar
ki

ng
 R

iv
er

si
de

 b
y 

20
07

/8
 

A
nd

re
w

 S
iv

es
s 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

an
d 

£1
50

,0
00

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e,

 E
ng

lis
h 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e,
 E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

2.
2 

M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 s

oc
ia

l 
la

nd
lo

rd
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 

A
ch

ie
ve

 D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r a
ll 

R
S

L 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

by
 2

01
0 

M
on

ito
r t

hr
ou

gh
 R

S
L 

Fo
ru

m
 2

01
0 

K
en

 J
on

es
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

2.
3 

Im
pr

ov
e 

sa
fe

ty
 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

Im
pl

em
en

t A
nt

i S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

 (A
S

B
) 

S
tra

te
gy

 
S

ig
n 

up
 to

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t R
es

pe
ct

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
07

 
G

ly
ni

s 
R

og
er

s/
Ji

m
 

R
ip

le
y 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

  
  

R
es

id
en

t I
nd

uc
tio

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

R
es

pe
ct

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

G
ly

ni
s 

R
og

er
s/

Ji
m

 
R

ip
le

y 

£1
0,

00
0 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

  
  

S
ur

ve
y 

10
0%

 o
f c

om
pl

ai
na

nt
s,

 
de

ve
lo

p 
&

 im
pl

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 b
y 

20
07

-8
, f

ur
th

er
 a

nn
ua

l s
ur

ve
ys

 u
nt

il 
20

10
 

G
ly

ni
s 

R
og

er
s/

Ji
m

 
R

ip
le

y 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

Id
en

tif
y 

&
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

G
ro

up
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 d

iv
er

si
on

ar
y 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 e
.g

. 
pa

in
tin

g 
an

d 
de

co
ra

tin
g 

tra
in

in
g 

sc
he

m
e 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
an

d 
U

rb
an

 A
rt 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

20
07

-1
0 

G
ly

ni
s 

R
og

er
s/

Ji
m

 
R

ip
le

y 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

an
d 

£7
8,

00
0 

LP
S

A
 m

on
ey

 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

p 
sc

he
m

e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
E

ns
ur

e 
10

0%
 o

f n
ew

 h
om

es
 d

es
ig

n 
ou

t 
cr

im
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

'S
ec

ur
ed

 b
y 

D
es

ig
n'

 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

A
ch

ie
ve

 ta
rg

et
s 

on
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

20
07

-1
0 

K
en

 J
on

es
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

Page 77



  
49

 

  
E

xp
an

d 
re

m
ot

e 
co

nc
ie

rg
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ba
se

d 
at

 B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
H

al
l t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 
pi

lo
t p

ro
je

ct
 o

f 7
 h

ig
h 

ris
e 

bl
oc

ks
 

D
el

iv
er

 a
 fu

lly
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 s
ys

te
m

 fo
r 

M
ill

ar
d 

Te
rra

ce
, H

ig
hv

ie
w

 H
ou

se
, 

Th
ax

te
d 

H
ou

se
, O

ld
m

ea
d 

H
ou

se
, 

B
ar

tle
tt’

s 
H

ou
se

, M
er

se
a 

an
d 

C
ol

ne
 

H
ou

se
s 

du
rin

g 
20

07
-1

0 

Ji
m

 R
ip

le
y 

£9
50

,3
51

 
£9

95
,7

82
 

£9
10

,5
24

 

2.
4 

W
or

k 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
th

e 
D

om
es

tic
 

V
io

le
nc

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 

To
 s

up
po

rt 
vi

ct
im

s 
of

 d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
to

 re
m

ai
n 

in
 th

ei
r h

om
es

 b
y 

se
tti

ng
 u

p 
sa

nc
tu

ar
y 

sc
he

m
es

 

80
 p

er
 y

ea
r d

ur
in

g 
20

07
-1

0 
G

ly
ni

s 
R

og
er

s/
Jo

an
ne

 
S

m
ith

 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
D

ev
el

op
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 re
fu

ge
 s

pa
ce

s 
fo

r 
w

om
en

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
es

ca
pi

ng
 d

om
es

tic
 

vi
ol

en
ce

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 9

 u
ni

ts
 b

y 
20

08
-9

 
O

liv
ia

 D
on

ov
an

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
E

st
ab

lis
h 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 in

 
de

ta
il 

- i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

fe
rr

al
 ro

ut
es

 to
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

cu
st

om
er

 c
ar

e 
is

 in
 

pl
ac

e 

O
ng

oi
ng

 u
nt

il 
20

08
-9

 
Ji

m
 R

ip
le

y 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
N

/A
 

  
A

ll 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ta
ff 

to
 re

ce
iv

e 
1/

2 
da

y 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tra

in
in

g 
O

ng
oi

ng
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 - 

2 
se

ss
io

ns
 p

er
 

ye
ar

 fr
om

 2
00

7-
10

 
G

ly
ni

s 
R

og
er

s/
Ji

m
 

R
ip

le
y 

£6
00

 
£6

00
 

£6
00

 

2.
5 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
an

 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 la

nd
lo

rd
 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 
an

d 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

di
vi

si
on

 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 
M

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

P
la

nn
ed

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f l
eg

ac
y 

IC
T 

sy
st

em
s 

by
 2

01
0 

Ji
m

 R
ip

le
y 

£4
 m

ill
io

n 
ov

er
 2

00
7-

10
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

ca
se

 fi
na

lis
at

io
n 

* 

* 
S

ee
 2

00
7-

8 
* 

S
ee

 2
00

7-
8 

  
R

ed
uc

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f v

oi
ds

 a
nd

 re
du

ce
 

re
le

t t
im

es
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
vo

id
s 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 1
%

 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 h
el

d 
fo

r d
is

po
sa

l) 
du

rin
g 

20
07

-1
0 

Ji
m

 R
ip

le
y 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

A
ch

ie
ve

 2
5 

da
ys

 tu
rn

ar
ou

nd
 ti

m
e 

du
rin

g 
20

07
-1

0 
  

  
  

  

  
B

V
74

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
of

 te
na

nt
s 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
H

ou
si

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

ei
r l

an
dl

or
d 

20
07

-8
: a

) 8
1%

 b
) 8

1%
 c

) 8
1%

  
Ji

m
 R

ip
le

y 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
  

20
08

-9
: a

) 8
3%

 b
) 8

3%
 c

) 8
3%

 
  

  
  

  
  

B
V

75
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

of
 te

na
nt

s 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

H
ou

si
ng

 w
ith

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
on

 
H

ou
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
ei

r 
la

nd
lo

rd
 

20
07

-8
: a

) 6
8%

 b
) 7

2%
 c

) 6
8%

  
Ji

m
 R

ip
le

y 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
  

20
08

-9
: a

) 7
0%

 b
) 7

4%
 c

) 7
0%

 
  

  
  

  

Page 78



  
50

 

  
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t p

ol
ic

y-
pr

oo
fe

d 
M

en
u 

of
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t t
ha

t o
ffe

rs
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 c
ho

ic
es

 fo
r p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
fle

ct
s 

lo
ca

l d
em

og
ra

ph
y 

50
0 

re
si

de
nt

s 
on

 re
gi

st
er

 in
 2

00
7-

8,
 

10
00

 re
si

de
nt

s 
on

 re
gi

st
er

 in
 2

00
8-

9,
 R

ev
ie

w
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
M

en
u 

in
 2

00
9-

10
 

Ji
m

 R
ip

le
y 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
To

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
fo

rm
al

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
th

at
 a

re
 s

ha
pe

d 
by

 te
na

nt
s 

E
nh

an
ce

d 
R

es
id

en
ts

 U
ni

ty
 W

ee
k 

in
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
w

ith
 te

na
nt

s 
ta

ki
ng

 
th

e 
le

ad
 ro

le
, U

pg
ra

de
d 

R
es

id
en

ts
 

U
ni

ty
 W

ee
k 

w
ith

 te
na

nt
s 

ta
ki

ng
 th

e 
le

ad
 ro

le
 in

 2
00

8-
10

 

Ji
m

 R
ip

le
y 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  PR
O

M
O

TI
N

G
 C

H
O

IC
E 

A
N

D
 IN

D
EP

EN
D

EN
C

E 
  

  
  

  
  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

Ta
rg

et
/A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
ne

d 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
Le

ad
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
7/

8 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

8/
9 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
9/

10
 

3.
1 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 

ch
oi

ce
 a

nd
 ty

pe
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 

11
6 

un
its

 o
f F

oy
er

 s
ch

em
e 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
ge

d 
16

-2
4 

S
ta

rt 
on

 s
ite

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

07
 

Je
nn

ie
 C

oo
m

bs
 

£2
.4

 m
ill

io
n 

rin
g 

fe
nc

ed
 

la
nd

 re
ce

ip
t a

nd
 o

ffi
ce

r 
tim

e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
9 

  
  

  
  

  
D

ev
el

op
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 u
ni

ts
 o

f E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

sc
he

m
e 

fo
r o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

52
 n

ew
 E

xt
ra

 C
ar

e 
un

its
 b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

7 
O

liv
ia

 D
on

ov
an

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
  

O
ng

oi
ng

 re
vi

ew
 o

f C
ou

nc
il's

 
sh

el
te

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

un
til

 2
01

0 
Ji

m
 R

ip
le

y 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
  

D
ev

el
op

 e
co

-fr
ie

nd
ly

 b
un

ga
lo

w
s 

fo
r 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

du
rin

g 
20

07
-1

0 
O

liv
ia

 D
on

ov
an

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
A

t l
ea

st
 1

5%
 in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 h

ou
si

ng
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 fo

r l
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

 £
26

,0
00

 
an

d 
15

%
 s

ha
re

d 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

at
 L

on
do

n 
P

la
n 

m
ax

im
um

 in
co

m
e 

le
ve

l 

C
ad

iz
 C

ou
rt 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
8 

O
liv

ia
 D

on
ov

an
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

3.
2 

R
ev

ie
w

 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 

50
%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
by

 
20

10
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 u

ni
ts

 o
f 

su
pp

or
te

d 
ho

us
in

g 
by

 2
01

0 
Ji

m
 R

ip
le

y,
 

O
liv

ia
 D

on
ov

an
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

3.
3 

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

E
qu

al
iti

es
 a

nd
 

D
iv

er
si

ty
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 C
or

po
ra

te
 E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 
D

iv
er

si
ty

 P
la

n 
20

05
-8

 
R

ev
ie

w
 E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 

Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

f a
ll 

th
e 

D
iv

is
io

n'
s 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 b

y 
20

07
 

K
en

 J
on

es
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 im

pa
ct

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f 2

00
7-

10
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
tra

te
gy

 

A
ll 

E
qu

al
iti

es
 a

nd
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 Im
pa

ct
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
S

pr
in

g 
20

08
 

K
en

 J
on

es
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

Page 79



  
51

 

D
ES

IG
N

, E
N

ER
G

Y 
EF

FI
C

IE
N

C
Y 

A
N

D
 C

LI
M

A
TE

 C
H

A
N

G
E 

  
  

  
  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

Ta
rg

et
/A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
ne

d 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
Le

ad
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
7/

8 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

8/
9 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
9/

10
 

4.
1 

E
ns

ur
e 

ne
w

 
ho

m
es

 a
re

 
ex

ce
lle

nt
ly

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 

10
0%

 o
f a

ll 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

t L
ife

tim
e 

H
om

es
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

A
ch

ie
ve

 ta
rg

et
s 

on
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
Ti

m
 L

ew
is

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
10

%
 o

f h
om

es
 to

 b
e 

w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 

R
ev

ie
w

 h
al

f-y
ea

rly
 

Ti
m

 L
ew

is
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
N

ew
 h

om
es

 to
 m

ee
t a

t l
ea

st
 E

co
H

om
es

 
'V

er
y 

G
oo

d'
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 h
al

f-y
ea

rly
 

K
en

 J
on

es
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
E

ns
ur

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
sp

ac
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
on

 a
ll 

ne
w

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 
A

gr
ee

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t p
ol

ic
y 

on
 

sp
ac

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

O
liv

ia
 D

on
ov

an
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
C

on
si

de
r S

up
er

-F
le

xi
bl

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 / 

D
es

ig
n 

fo
r M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 h

om
es

 
R

ev
ie

w
 h

al
f-y

ea
rly

 
Je

re
m

y 
G

rin
t 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
Im

pl
em

en
t c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 o

n 
10

0%
 o

f n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

A
pp

ly
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 o

n 
al

l 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
O

liv
ia

 D
on

ov
an

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

4.
2 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 o
f 

al
l B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

D
ag

en
ha

m
’s

 h
ou

si
ng

 
to

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

po
ss

ib
le

 le
ve

l a
nd

 
en

su
re

 h
ig

he
st

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r a

ll 
ne

w
 

bu
ild

 h
ou

si
ng

 

A
do

pt
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
M

ay
or

 o
f L

on
do

n 
an

d 
lo

ca
l t

ar
ge

ts
 o

n 
re

ne
w

ab
le

s 
an

d 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

W
or

k 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 1
0%

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
su

pp
ly

in
g 

el
ec

tri
ci

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

fro
m

 re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
20

%
 c

ar
bo

n 
re

du
ct

io
n 

on
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 b
y 

20
10

 

Je
re

m
y 

G
rin

t 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
  

S
up

po
rt 

th
e 

M
ay

or
 o

f L
on

do
n'

s 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r n
o 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 d
w

el
lin

g 
w

ith
 a

 S
A

P
 ra

tin
g 

of
 le

ss
 th

an
 3

0 
by

 2
01

0 
an

d 
le

ss
 

th
an

 4
0 

by
 2

01
7 

P
au

l 
Fo

rd
yc

e/
R

ob
 

W
ill

ia
m

s 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

S
up

po
rt 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t's

 ta
rg

et
 to

 
el

im
in

at
e 

fu
el

 p
ov

er
ty

 b
y 

20
16

 a
nd

 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 m
ee

t t
hi

s 
ta

rg
et

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 

P
au

l 
Fo

rd
yc

e/
R

ob
 

W
ill

ia
m

s 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
W

or
k 

w
ith

 R
S

L 
pa

rtn
er

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

en
er

gy
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

go
 b

ey
on

d 
m

in
im

um
 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 R

S
L 

pa
rtn

er
s 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

ca
rb

on
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f h
om

es
 

un
de

r p
ro

po
se

d 
ne

w
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 

of
 e

ne
rg

y 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r n

ew
 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 

O
liv

ia
 D

on
ov

an
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

D
ev

el
op

 fl
ag

sh
ip

 lo
w

 c
ar

bo
n 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 w

or
k 

to
 

re
du

ce
 c

ar
bo

n 
em

is
si

on
s 

O
liv

ia
 D

on
ov

an
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

Page 80



  
52

 

A
FF

O
R

D
A

B
LE

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 
  

  
  

  
  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

Ta
rg

et
/A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
ne

d 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
Le

ad
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
7/

8 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

8/
9 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
9/

10
 

5.
1 

In
cr

ea
se

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
42

5 
ne

w
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

  
Q

ua
rte

rly
 u

pd
at

es
 d

ur
in

g 
20

07
-1

0 
A

nd
re

w
 S

iv
es

s 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

5.
2 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
w

 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 fu
nd

in
g 

P
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f h
om

es
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

so
ur

ce
s 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
s 

to
 c

ro
ss

 s
ub

si
di

se
 n

ew
 

so
ci

al
 re

nt
ed

 h
om

es
 o

n 
la

nd
 

di
sp

os
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ite

s 
to

 2
01

0 

A
nd

re
w

 S
iv

es
s 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e,

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
f C

ou
nc

il 
la

nd
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e,

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
f C

ou
nc

il 
la

nd
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e,

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
f C

ou
nc

il 
la

nd
 

  
M

ax
im

is
e 

an
d 

se
cu

re
 n

ew
 p

ub
lic

 a
nd

 
pr

iv
at

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 o

f 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
bi

ds
 to

 2
01

0 
A

nd
re

w
 S

iv
es

s 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

5.
3 

E
ns

ur
e 

ho
us

in
g 

is
 

at
 a

n 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 le
ve

l 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r k
ey

w
or

ke
rs

, c
o-

op
er

at
iv

es
, l

iv
e/

w
or

k 
an

d 
se

lf 
bu

ild
 

R
ev

ie
w

 tw
ic

e 
a 

ye
ar

 2
00

7-
8 

A
nd

re
w

 S
iv

es
s 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
P

ro
m

ot
e 

E
ng

lis
h 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
Fi

rs
t T

im
e 

B
uy

er
s'

 In
iti

at
iv

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 tw

ic
e 

a 
ye

ar
 2

00
7-

8 
A

nd
re

w
 S

iv
es

s 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

5.
4 

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 s

ui
ta

bl
y 

si
ze

d 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

30
%

 o
f n

ew
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 to

 b
e 

1 
be

dr
oo

m
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f s
in

gl
e 

pe
op

le
 

R
ev

ie
w

 h
al

f-y
ea

rly
 d

ur
in

g 
20

07
-1

0 
K

en
 J

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

  
20

%
 o

f n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 to
 b

e 
2 

be
dr

oo
m

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f c

ou
pl

es
 

  
  

  
  

  

  
35

%
 o

f n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 to
 b

e 
3 

be
dr

oo
m

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f f

am
ili

es
 

  
  

  
  

  

  
15

%
 o

f n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 to
 b

e 
4+

 
be

dr
oo

m
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f l
ar

ge
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 

  
  

  
  

  

  
La

rg
er

 h
ou

se
s 

fo
r f

os
te

r c
ar

er
s 

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
on

 
ov

er
cr

ow
di

ng
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

-o
cc

up
at

io
n 

  
  

  
  

  

5.
5 

E
ns

ur
e 

V
al

ue
 F

or
 

M
on

ey
 a

nd
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

10
0%

 o
f n

ew
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
on

 w
eb

si
te

 
P

ub
lis

h 
de

ta
ils

 o
f a

ll 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 o
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

 
du

rin
g 

20
07

-1
0 

K
en

 J
on

es
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
D

et
er

m
in

e 
%

 o
f s

at
is

fie
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 
ne

w
 R

S
L 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
C

on
du

ct
 s

ur
ve

y,
 a

na
ly

se
 d

at
a 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

nn
ua

lly
 u

nt
il 

20
10

 
K

en
 J

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 

          

Page 81



  
53

 

PR
IV

A
TE

 S
EC

TO
R

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 
  

  
  

  
  

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

Ta
rg

et
/A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
ne

d 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
Le

ad
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
7/

8 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

8/
9 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 2

00
9/

10
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 fu
rth

er
 la

nd
lo

rd
s 

ar
e 

ac
cr

ed
ite

d 
to

 th
e 

LL
A

S
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

5 
ne

w
 la

nd
lo

rd
s 

jo
in

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r u
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

20
07

-2
01

0 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

O
ffe

r d
is

co
un

te
d 

lic
en

ce
 fe

es
 fo

r 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

H
M

O
 la

nd
lo

rd
s 

O
n-

go
in

g 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
H

M
O

 
la

nd
lo

rd
s 

w
ho

 a
pp

ly
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 
Jo

an
ne

 S
m

ith
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 L
an

dl
or

d'
s 

Fo
ru

m
 

To
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 a
ut

um
n 

20
07

 
Jo

an
ne

 S
m

ith
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

H
ol

d 
an

 a
nn

ua
l L

an
dl

or
ds

 D
ay

 
To

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 a

ut
um

n 
20

07
 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  
E

xp
lo

re
 p

riv
at

e 
te

na
nt

 a
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
Li

nk
 in

 w
ith

 re
se

ar
ch

 b
y 

LL
A

S
 to

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 2
00

7 
Jo

an
ne

 S
m

ith
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

H
ol

d 
an

 a
nn

ua
l L

ea
se

ho
ld

er
s 

D
ay

 
To

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 a

ut
um

n 
20

07
 

R
ic

ha
rd

 K
ob

er
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

U
til

is
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r d

ec
en

t h
om

es
, v

ac
an

t 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

an
d 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

E
LR

P
 

O
n-

go
in

g 
bi

dd
in

g 
fo

r f
un

d 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

to
 m

ee
t s

ub
-r

eg
io

na
l o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
Jo

an
ne

 S
m

ith
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

an
d 

E
LR

P
 

fu
nd

in
g 

w
ith

 s
up

po
rt 

fro
m

 H
an

ov
er

 a
nd

 
W

ar
m

 Z
on

e 

  
  

R
ec

ru
it 

ne
w

 s
ta

ff 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

ac
ro

ss
-th

e-
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
To

 re
cr

ui
t 2

 n
ew

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t s
ta

ff 
in

 2
00

7 
Jo

an
ne

 S
m

ith
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

6.
1 

C
re

at
in

g 
po

si
tiv

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
se

ct
or

 

C
re

at
e 

di
re

ct
io

n,
 in

te
re

st
 a

nd
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
of

 th
e 

se
ct

or
 in

te
rn

al
ly

 
S

et
-u

p 
in

te
r-

de
pa

rtm
en

ta
l P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 to
 

ev
ol

ve
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 jo
in

t 
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

Ja
m

es
 

G
od

da
rd

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

  
P

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
to

ck
 c

on
di

tio
n 

su
rv

ey
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 s

ur
ve

y 
in

 2
00

7-
8 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
£5

0,
00

0 
  

  

6.
2 

A
ss

is
tin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
re

ne
w

al
 a

nd
 m

ak
in

g 
ho

m
es

 d
ec

en
t 

70
%

 o
f h

om
es

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
by

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 in

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 to

 b
e 

de
ce

nt
 b

y 
20

10
 a

nd
 7

5%
 b

y 
20

20
 

Id
en

tif
y 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 q
ua

lif
y 

fo
r f

in
an

ci
al

 
su

pp
or

t o
r c

an
 b

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 
pr

od
uc

ts
 to

 fi
na

nc
e 

de
ce

nc
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
om

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t A
ge

nc
y,

 
W

ar
m

 Z
on

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r s

ch
em

es
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
n 

on
-g

oi
ng

 s
ur

ve
y 

sy
st

em
 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
an

d 
E

LR
P

 
fu

nd
in

g 
w

ith
 s

up
po

rt 
fro

m
 H

an
ov

er
 a

nd
 

W
ar

m
 Z

on
e 

  
  

  
E

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
D

FG
  

86
 D

FG
s 

in
 2

00
7-

8 
D

er
ek

 C
or

by
 

H
an

ov
er

 le
ad

s 
  

  
  

P
ro

m
ot

e 
ho

m
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

gr
an

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
A

ge
 C

on
ce

rn
 

O
ng

oi
ng

  
D

er
ek

 C
or

by
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e,

 s
up

po
rt 

fro
m

 A
ge

 C
on

ce
rn

 
  

  

  
S

tre
am

lin
e 

an
d 

re
vi

se
 h

om
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
pr

od
uc

e 
ne

w
 

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
G

ui
de

 

To
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

7 
D

er
ek

 C
or

by
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

Page 82



  
54

 

  
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 H

H
S

R
S

 s
ys

te
m

 a
nd

 
ta

ck
le

 C
at

eg
or

y 
1 

ha
za

rd
s 

as
 p

rio
rit

y 
O

n-
go

in
g 

st
af

f t
ra

in
in

g 
in

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

ho
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 re
qu

ire
 m

an
da

to
ry

 
H

H
S

R
S

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t; 
 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

  
  

O
n-

go
in

g 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
  h

om
es

 
w

hi
ch

 re
qu

ire
 m

an
da

to
ry

 H
H

S
R

S
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

  
  

O
n-

go
in

g 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 C

at
eg

or
y 

1 
ha

za
rd

s 
an

d 
re

m
ed

y 
th

em
 th

ro
ug

h 
la

nd
lo

rd
 a

ct
io

n 
of

 w
or

ks
 in

 d
ef

au
lt 

 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

  
  

P
ub

lis
h 

H
H

S
R

S
 p

ol
ic

y 
by

 J
un

e 
20

07
 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

  
E

ns
ur

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
dv

ic
e 

on
 p

ro
du

ct
s 

to
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
on

 fu
nd

in
g 

ho
m

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

E
LR

P
, p

ilo
t a

n 
E

as
t 

Lo
nd

on
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
dv

oc
ac

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 

to
 tr

ai
n 

an
d 

ac
cr

ed
it 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
to

 a
dv

is
e 

cl
ie

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
op

tio
ns

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r f
un

di
ng

 h
om

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
00

7 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
an

d 
E

LR
P

 
su

pp
or

t. 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 D

A
B

D
 U

K
 

an
d 

Fa
irM

on
ey

 

  
  

  
S

up
po

rt 
ar

ea
 re

ne
w

al
  

O
n-

go
in

g 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

re
as

 
de

em
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

be
co

m
e 

H
IZ

s 

D
er

ek
 C

or
by

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

  
  

O
n-

go
in

g 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 fl

at
s 

ab
ov

e 
sh

op
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 fo
r r

et
ur

n 
to

 u
se

 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f e
m

pt
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

E
LR

P
 fu

nd
in

g,
 b

rin
g 

5 
em

pt
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
ba

ck
 in

to
 u

se
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

  
P

ub
lis

h 
ou

r E
m

pt
y 

P
ro

pe
rty

 
S

tra
te

gy
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

ou
r e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

an
d 

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

po
w

er
s 

by
 J

un
e 

20
07

 

Ja
m

es
 

G
od

da
rd

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

  
Id

en
tif

y 
em

pt
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
 v

ac
an

t f
or

 
6 

m
on

th
s 

or
 m

or
e,

 b
y 

cr
ea

tin
g 

a 
ne

w
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
da

ta
ba

se
 fo

r 
m

on
th

ly
 in

te
rr

og
at

io
n 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
07

 

R
ob

er
t G

le
dh

ill
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

R
eg

ul
at

e 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

H
M

O
s 

O
n-

go
in

g 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 H

M
O

s 
re

qu
iri

ng
 m

an
da

to
ry

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
Jo

an
ne

 S
m

ith
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

  
P

ub
lis

h 
H

M
O

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r p
ub

lic
 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

by
 J

un
e 

20
07

 
Jo

an
ne

 S
m

ith
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

6.
3 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

m
es

 b
y 

m
ak

in
g 

be
tte

r u
se

 o
f s

to
ck

 

  
O

n-
go

in
g 

re
se

ar
ch

 o
n 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 s

ub
-r

eg
io

na
l p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 o

n 
H

M
O

s 
to

 s
ta

nd
ar

di
se

  f
ee

s,
 te

rm
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
an

d 
E

LR
P

 
su

pp
or

t. 
 

  
  

Page 83



  
55

 

 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

gu
ar

an
te

ed
 re

nt
 d

ep
os

it 
sc

he
m

e 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
S

L 
te

am
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
em

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ho
m

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
R

en
t 

D
ep

os
it 

S
ch

em
e 

 

M
itz

i M
yr

ie
 

O
ffi

ce
r t

im
e 

  
  

Ta
ck

le
 fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

E
LR

P
, o

n-
go

in
g 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
os

e 
ho

m
es

 w
hi

ch
 

ca
n 

be
 a

ss
is

te
d 

in
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
ei

r 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 th

ro
ug

h 
W

ar
m

 
Zo

ne
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 e
nt

itl
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

W
ar

m
 Z

on
e 

Jo
an

ne
 S

m
ith

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
w

ith
 E

LR
P

 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 W
ar

m
 

Zo
ne

 

  
  

  
P

ilo
t t

he
 s

ol
ar

 p
an

el
 g

ra
nt

s 
to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

us
e 

of
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

su
pp

lie
s 

 

D
er

ek
 C

or
by

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

6.
4 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

en
er

gy
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 

  
In

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 s
ch

oo
ls

, 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

pu
pi

ls
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

en
er

gy
 

am
ba

ss
ad

or
s 

an
d 

co
nd

uc
t e

ne
rg

y 
au

di
ts

 in
 th

ei
r h

om
es

, o
n-

go
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t b
eg

in
ni

ng
 in

 a
ut

um
n 

20
07

 

D
er

ek
 C

or
by

 
O

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
  

  

                                        

Page 84



  
56

 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
 A

S
B

 
A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 

LB
B

D
 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 

A
LM

O
 

A
rm

s 
Le

ng
th

 M
an

ag
em

en
t O

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

LC
H

O
 

Lo
w

 C
os

t H
om

e 
O

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
B

&
B

 
B

ed
 a

nd
 B

re
ak

fa
st

 
LD

F 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
B

M
E

 
B

la
ck

 a
nd

 M
in

or
ity

 E
th

ni
c 

LH
C

 
Lo

ca
l H

ou
si

ng
 C

om
pa

ny
 

B
V

P
I 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
r 

LH
C

S
 

Lo
nd

on
 H

ou
si

ng
 C

ap
ac

ity
 S

tu
dy

 
C

D
R

P
 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r R

ed
uc

tio
n 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
LL

A
S

 
Lo

nd
on

 L
an

dl
or

ds
 A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

S
ch

em
e 

C
H

P
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

LS
E

 
Lo

nd
on

 S
ch

oo
l o

f E
co

no
m

ic
s 

an
d 

P
ol

iti
ca

l S
ci

en
ce

 
 

or
  C

om
bi

ne
d 

H
ea

t a
nd

 P
ow

er
 

LS
P

 
Lo

ca
l S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
C

P
A

 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

LS
V

T 
La

rg
e 

S
ca

le
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
D

A
A

T 
D

ru
g 

an
d 

A
lc

oh
ol

 A
ct

io
n 

Te
am

 
M

M
C

 
M

od
er

n 
M

et
ho

ds
 o

f C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
D

C
LG

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t f
or

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
M

C
IL

 
M

or
e 

C
ho

ic
e 

In
 L

et
tin

gs
 

D
FG

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
G

ra
nt

 
M

R
A

 
M

aj
or

 R
ep

ai
rs

 A
llo

w
an

ce
 

D
oH

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

ea
lth

 
N

A
H

P
 

N
at

io
na

l A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
E

LH
P

 
E

as
t L

on
do

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

N
E

E
T 

N
ot

 in
 E

du
ca

tio
n,

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r T

ra
in

in
g 

E
LR

P
 

E
as

t L
on

do
n 

R
en

ew
al

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
O

S
M

 
O

ff-
S

ite
 M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 

G
O

L 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r L
on

do
n 

P
C

T 
P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t 
G

LA
 

G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
P

FI
 

P
riv

at
e 

Fi
na

nc
e 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
H

E
C

A
 

H
om

e 
E

ne
rg

y 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
ct

 
R

S
L 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

S
oc

ia
l L

an
dl

or
d 

H
H

S
R

S
 

H
ou

si
ng

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
R

at
in

g 
S

ys
te

m
 

S
A

P
 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t P
ro

ce
du

re
 

H
IA

 
H

om
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
S

O
S

M
 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 O
ff-

S
ite

 M
an

uf
ac

tu
re

 
H

IP
 

H
ou

si
ng

 In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
S

P
D

 
S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

oc
um

en
t 

H
IZ

 
H

om
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t Z

on
e 

TG
LP

 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 L
on

do
n 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
H

M
O

 
H

ou
se

s 
in

 M
ul

tip
le

 O
cc

up
at

io
n 

U
D

C
 

U
ni

ta
ry

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

H
R

A
 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 
U

D
F 

U
rb

an
 D

es
ig

n 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

IM
D

 
In

de
x 

of
 M

ul
tip

le
 D

ep
riv

at
io

n 
U

D
P

  
U

ni
ta

ry
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

LA
A

 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

V
FM

 
V

al
ue

 F
or

 M
on

ey
 

LA
S

H
G

 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

S
oc

ia
l H

ou
si

ng
 G

ra
nt

 
V

S
S

P
 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 
 

 
 

       

Page 85



  
57

 

C
on

ta
ct

s 
Li

st
 

 D
oc

um
en

t 
W

he
re

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

3-
6 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 (H
R

A
) B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n 
20

03
-6

 
Ja

m
es

 G
od

da
rd

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

02
0 

82
27

 8
23

8 
E

as
t L

on
do

n 
S

ub
-R

eg
io

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
5-

10
 

A
bi

 M
eb

ud
e 

E
as

t L
on

do
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
02

0 
82

27
 5

30
3 

D
ra

ft 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

  
C

hr
is

tia
na

h 
G

eo
rg

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

02
0 

82
27

 5
59

9 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 2

00
6 

Jo
e 

C
oo

ga
n 

A
du

lt 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
02

0 
82

27
 2

33
1 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
fo

r C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

 
C

hr
is

tia
na

h 
G

eo
rg

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

02
0 

82
27

 5
59

9 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
la

n 
20

06
 to

 2
00

9 
 

V
ic

to
ria

 H
un

t 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Po

lic
y 

an
d 

Tr
us

t C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

02
0 

82
27

 3
25

9 
D

on
e 

In
 O

ne
 –

 A
 C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 
Je

nn
ie

 D
uf

fy
 

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tre
 a

nd
 C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t 
02

0 
82

27
 5

73
0 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
ut

ur
es

 O
pt

io
n 

A
pp

ra
is

al
 

D
or

is
 A

cq
ua

ah
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
02

0 
82

27
 3

63
3 

M
or

e 
C

ho
ic

e 
In

 L
et

tin
gs

 
 

V
in

 O
lle

y 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

02
0 

82
27

 2
46

9 
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r H
ou

si
ng

 T
ea

m
 

02
0 

82
15

 3
00

0 
 

U
ni

ta
ry

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
(U

D
P

) /
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

(L
D

F)
 

Ta
m

m
y 

A
da

m
s 

S
pa

tia
l R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

02
0 

87
24

 8
09

7 
 

Page 86



  
58

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 / 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
LA

A
) 

C
ar

ol
 M

or
ga

n 
D

em
oc

ra
cy

 a
nd

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
02

0 
82

27
 2

46
3 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
5-

10
 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
Te

am
 

02
0 

82
27

 2
20

9 
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 fo
r P

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

20
05

-8
 

A
ng

el
a 

E
jo

h 
A

du
lt 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

02
0 

82
27

 5
18

3 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

5-
8 

 
K

at
he

rin
e 

G
ilc

re
es

t 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

&
 P

re
ve

nt
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

02
0 

82
27

 2
45

7 
D

om
es

tic
 V

io
le

nc
e 

S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

6-
9 

E
m

m
a 

G
ra

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

&
 P

re
ve

nt
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

02
0 

82
27

 2
80

9 
A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
6-

7 
K

at
he

rin
e 

G
ilc

re
es

t 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

&
 P

re
ve

nt
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

02
0 

82
27

 2
45

7 
B

la
ck

 a
nd

 M
in

or
ity

 E
th

ni
c 

(B
M

E
) H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

C
hr

is
tia

na
h 

G
eo

rg
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
02

0 
82

27
 5

59
9 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 S

ur
ve

y 
20

05
 

M
ar

k 
Jo

ne
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
02

0 
82

27
 5

07
3 

B
ar

ki
ng

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tu

dy
 

K
en

 B
ai

ki
e 

S
pa

tia
l R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

02
0 

82
27

 5
63

1 
C

ap
ita

l S
tra

te
gy

 
Jo

e 
C

he
st

er
to

n 
C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

 
02

0 
82

27
 2

93
2 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
tra

te
gy

 
Jo

e 
C

he
st

er
to

n 
C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

 
02

0 
82

27
 2

93
2 

B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
Je

nn
ie

 C
oo

m
bs

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

02
0 

82
27

 5
73

6 
 

Page 87



  
59

 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tra
te

gy
 2

00
3-

8 
C

hr
is

tia
na

h 
G

eo
rg

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

02
0 

82
27

 5
59

9 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
a 

lo
w

 c
ar

bo
n 

bo
ro

ug
h 

– 
A

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 

D
an

ie
l A

rc
ha

rd
 

S
pa

tia
l R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

02
0 

82
27

 3
70

7 
B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

5-
20

 
R

ut
h 

D
u-

Li
eu

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

02
0 

82
27

 2
64

1 
 

Page 88



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF ADULT EDUCATION 60+ SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
Title: Adult Education 60+ Scrutiny Panel 
 

For Decision  

Summary:  
 
This report details the Adult Education Scrutiny Panel’s review of Adult Education for 
those residents aged 60+. 
 
The origin of the panel’s review stems from the receipt of a number of letters of 
complaint to The Adult College of Barking & Dagenham arising as a result of the 
College’s decision to remove the age-related fees concession for residents aged 60+, 
together with a letter received by the Chair of the Scrutiny Management Board. 
 
The report gives details from residents who have been affected by the removal of fees 
concessions; from the Adult College, their Governing Body, and from the Learning and 
Skills Council that provides funding for the courses offered at the college. 
 
The Panel also heard evidence from medical professionals of the significant wider 
additional health and general well-being benefits to be gained in participating in 
educational activities. 
 
The Panel were also informed by the voluntary sector organisation Age Concern of the 
services and activities they provide, and how they might help fill gaps for residents 
arising as a result of the college’s fees increases. 
 
The Panel recognises that the Age Discrimination Act 2006 will prevent educational 
institutions such as The Adult College from offering concessions to fees for those 
residents not in receipt of benefits. 
 
The Panel was frustrated by the fact that no specific way forward could easily be 
identified to support those residents aged 60+ who could not afford to pay fees at the 
full cost. 
 
The Learning and Skills Council has made £20,000 available to East London boroughs 
to establish an Adult Education and Skills Forum, the purpose of which is to encourage 
greater partnership working in order to improve the qualifications held by residents and 
their job prospects.  Given the particular concern of the Scrutiny Panel to encourage the 
continued participation of residents aged 60+ in learning, the Learning and Skills 
Council has agreed to set aside a sum of £5,000 to establish an Adult Education 60+ 
Task Group that will report to the LAA Adult Trust.  Ongoing funding to support the work 
of the Group will be sought. 
 
Wards Affected: All 
 

AGENDA ITEM 13

Page 89



 
 
Implications: 
 
Financial: 
In the first place £5,000 being provided by the Learning Skills Council, as part of 
£20,000 to set up an Adult Education and Skills Forum. 
 
Legal: 
None 
 
Risk Management: 
None 
 
Social inclusion and Diversity: 
Lifelong Learning is an important activity for all.  Those residents aged 60+ who are no 
longer eligible for fees concessions for Adult Education courses must be catered for in 
order to prevent conditions such as dementia and social isolation from developing 
prematurely. 
 
Crime and disorder: 
Intergenerational learning opportunities between senior residents and young people 
often foster greater understanding and may have positive benefits on the subsequent 
behaviour of the younger members of the community. 
 
Options Appraisals: 
None 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
The Panel is proposing the following actions. That:- 
 
(1) The Corporate Director of Regeneration establishes an Adult Education 60+ 

Task Group and invites the following parties to participate. 
 

• Executive Members for Regeneration, and Lifelong Learning 
• Lead Member – Adult 60+ Scrutiny Panel 
• Staff and student representation from The Adult College 
• Voluntary and community sector organisations providing adult education 

services to residents aged 60+. 
 
(2) The funding of £5,000 made available by the Learning and Skills Council 

(London East) enables the Task Group to be advised on the range of 
educational activities currently on offer in the borough for senior residents, and 
how these might be promoted to encourage greater participation in order to 
maximise the benefits to health and general well-being. 

 
(3) The Task Group considers ways to extend adult education opportunities through 

the development of Neighbourhood Management teams providing outreach 
facilities. 

 

Page 90



 
(4) The work of the Task Group informs the priorities of the Adult Trust in order to 

potentially access funding through the LSP sub-group to encourage and support 
senior residents in educational activities. 

 
Reason: 
To agree and endorse the recommendations of the Scrutiny Panel, and accept any 
further recommendations. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Councillor Mrs K 
Flint 
 
 
 
Pauline Bonella 
 

Title: 
Lead Member 
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8594 0443 
kay.flint@lbbd.gov.uk 
  
 
Tel: 020 8227 2370 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
e-mail pauline.bonella@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
Introduction 
 
1.1 Councillor Twomey, Chair of the Scrutiny Management Board received a letter in 

July 2006 from a resident living in Dagenham who informed her that there are no 
longer concessions at The Adult College for those aged 60+ who do not receive 
benefits. 

 
1.2 In response to their concerns the Scrutiny Management Board at their meeting on 5 

July 2006 agreed to set up a scrutiny panel to look at Further and Adult Education, 
with set terms of reference, membership as set out below and a timeframe of 3 
months. 

 
2. Membership 
 
2.1 The Membership of the Panel comprised of Councillor Mrs K J Flint (Lead Member), 

Councillor Mrs S J Baillie, Councillor N S S Gill, Mrs L A Reason, Councillor P T 
Waker and Councillor J R White. 

 
2.2 An external representative attended the first two meetings of the panel. 
 
2.3 Alan Lazell, Head of Skills, Learning, and Enterprise Division, was identified as the 

lead service officer, and Bruce Morris, Head of Adult Care Services, Adult and 
Community Services Department was the independent scrutiny support officer.  
Pauline Bonella, Democratic Services Officer provided support to the Panel. 

 
2.4 The Panel also invited Councillor P A Twomey, Chair of the Scrutiny Management 

Board to a number of meetings to provide expertise in her role as a user of Adult 
Education. 

 
2.5 Pat Cooney, Head of The Adult College was invited to most of the meetings to give 

the Panel first hand information regarding statistics of the participation rates of 

Page 91



residents aged 60+, and the current and future funding information as derived from 
the Learning Skills Council.  

 
3. Terms of Reference 
 
3.1 The Panel was originally going to scrutinise Further and Adult Education, across all 

age ranges, but at their meeting held on 31 October 2006, the Panel together with 
the Chair of the Scrutiny Management Board discussed their work programme and 
felt that the terms of reference were too wide to complete within the timescale and 
agreed to focus their scrutiny on the area for Adult Education for those aged 60 plus 
only, which was reported to the Scrutiny Management Board who concurred with 
the Panel.  

 
3.2  A review to determine education and training needs of young people aged 14+ has 

been jointly commissioned by Rob Whiteman, the Chief Executive and Trevor Cook 
from the Learning Skills Council. 

 
3.3 The age range for education not being covered by this Panel could be considered 

by the Scrutiny Management Board in due course.   
 
4, Amended Terms of Reference 
 
4.1 To investigate the provision of adult education facilities across the Borough and 

whether these offer residents aged 60+ adequate choice and access. 
 
4.2 To examine costs and usage of facilities/resources for adult education aged 60+ 
 
4.3 To explore any opportunities for better value and participation, for example through 

granting of concessions and use of partnerships. 
 
4.4 Like all scrutiny panels: 
 

y To consult/build appropriate links with other groups or partners particularly Age 
Concern, The Adult College’s Governing Body and the Learning Skills Council. 

 
y To consider any related equalities and diversity issues, health implications, 

complaints in relation to the subject/service under scrutiny and efficiency gains. 
 
y To consider visiting other authorities for comparison purposes. 

 
y To report back with findings and recommendations. In this respect the Panel 

was given additional time to report their findings. 
 

5. Background 
 
5.1 Over 70 complaints were received by The Adult College when concessionary fees 

were abolished by the Governing Body for the College. The loss of concessionary 
fees, which resulted in an increase in fees was immediate, with no lead in time and 
gave the residents aged 60+ no time to prepare for this.  This was due to the 
change of focus for providing funding to the College by the Learning and Skills 
Council.  

 

Page 92



5.2 The Governing Body for the Adult College had to make up the shortfall of the 
funding they received from the Learning Skills Council by learners having to pay 
more towards their fees, this trend to continue by 5% each year until learners pay at 
least 50% contribution.  This will only apply to those who are not receiving benefits. 

 
5.3 Some of the work undertaken by the Panel covered the spectrum for all age groups 

and the information received outside the new terms of reference has been 
discounted in this report. 

 
6. Work Programme 
 
6.1 At the inaugural meeting Alan Lazell, Lead Services Officer, provided the Panel with 

a scoping report which covered the topics shown below. 
 

y The range and provision of further and adult education facilities across the 
Borough and whether these offer choice and availability 
 

y Vocational opportunities in schools, at Barking and Dagenham Training Services 
and in partnership with Further Education Colleges for young people 
 

y Examine costs and usage of facilities/resources for further adult education, 
including venues and teaching staff/lecturers 

 
y Explore opportunities for better value, for example, concessions 

 
y Consider any statutory requirements and or local strategies/initiatives for young 

people and adult education 
 
6.2 To provide the Panel with an insight of the facilities the College offered they 

undertook a tour of the College and met the Management Team.  They were 
impressed with the facilities but had concerns that should concessionary fees not 
continue classes would be closed due to lack of students.  Pat Cooney, Head of the 
College and her team, provided the panel with a considerable amount of statistical 
information, including comparisons with other Boroughs, the number of adult 
learners aged 60-74; the number of learners aged 60+ who had paid the full fee and 
the fee income for those aged 60+ for the last three financial years. The Panel 
heard how the College continues to find ways to attract learners, with ideas such as 
buy one get one free, payment of fees by instalments, etc. 

 
6.3 The Panel wanted to meet those residents, who had complained to the College 

about the rise in the cost of fees, due to the loss of concessionary rates.  We met 
with these residents, who completed a questionnaire devised by the Panel.  The 
results confirmed what the Panel expected in that many of the service users had 
incomes that were just above the benefit level and that due to this, many no longer 
attended classes, or reduced the number of classes they attended.  A copy of the 
questionnaire and a breakdown of the results is attached as an Appendix. 

 
6.4 The Panel felt it important to hear from the Learning Skills Council regarding the 

current and future funding arrangements for the College and invited Trevor Cook, 
Partnership Director of the Learning Skills Council for our Region.  The Panel heard 
what the priorities of the LSC are and how the change to funding arrangements will 
affect those aged 60+ not claiming benefits.  The ethos of the LSC was to 

Page 93



concentrate their funding on service users obtaining examinations and employment 
skills and less towards Community learning.  Trevor Cook was invited back to 
update the Panel on the funding arrangements for 2007/08 but at the time of 
completing this report the information is not available. 

 
6.5 The Panel invited members of the Governing Body from the College to clarify their 

decision to abolish concessionary fees to those who are not receiving benefits.  The 
Panel heard from the Chair of Governors that the Learning Skills Council had 
reduced the college’s funding, this was about £60,000 less for the financial year 
2006/07 this meant that the Adult College would be expected to make up the 
shortfall by learners paying more towards their fees. The Panel were informed that 
this would increase at 5% each year until learners eventually paid a 50% 
contribution.   Whilst the Governing Body understood the effects this may have on 
those aged 60+, they felt they had no choice but to abolish their concessionary 
rates and ask all service users not in receipt of benefits to contribute more to their 
fees. 

 
6.6 The Panel also heard from the Student Co-ordinator for the College who provided 

details of the large number of learners who had approached her regarding the large 
increase in fees.  She also confirmed that many of the learners age 60+ fell into the 
category just above the benefit level and therefore did not receive concessions. 

 
6.7 The Panel felt that part of keeping healthy is to keep the mind stimulated and they 

invited Dr Bhat from the North East London Mental Health Trust.  The Panel were 
provided with details of case studies that showed that when older people take up 
mental or physical activities it prevents the onset of dementia and promote general 
health and well-being.  This was further confirmed by a presentation by Lindsay 
Royan, Consultant Clinical Psychologist, who identified that in 2006, the number of 
people aged 60+ nationally signing up for further education, had reduced by nearly 
25% from the previous year and is thought to be to a combination of increased fees 
and reduction in courses for social and community purposes in favour of the greater 
focus on the skills agenda.  She highlighted three government agencies who all 
supported lifelong learning for older people and on how the National Institute of 
Adult Continuing Education (NIACE) also supported this.  The Panel were informed 
of the benefits of education in later life, particularly around reduced risk of 
depression, falls and dementia and providing social contact and a greater sense of 
well-being. 

 
6.8 Claire Ramm, Director of Age Concern provided the Panel with information about 

activities and courses they provide for those aged 60+.  Specifically she gave 
information to the Panel about a previous partnership working between the Adult 
College and UK On-Line Centres, and explained how at first the courses were slow 
to be taken up, but as they progressed they became more popular at which point 
the funding was withdrawn by the Learning Skills Council.  We were also informed 
that Age Concern provided their services at a number of outreach venues. 

 
6.9 Janet Thomas, a benefits adviser for Age Concern accompanied Claire Ramm and 

spoke about how the loss of concessionary fees had affected those aged 60+.  She 
confirmed that she was aware that sometimes a difference of as little as 99p could 
mean that benefits could not be paid. 

 

Page 94



6.10 The Panel invited Matthew Cole, Director of Health Improvement for the Primary 
Care Trust.  He is a joint appointment between the PCT and the Council and 
responsible for the Health Improvement agenda including issues affecting older 
people, which applies to the age range the Panel, are particularly looking at. He 
also interestingly told the Panel that the demographics of the Borough shows that 
within the next five years that there will be more people aged 65+ then those aged 
under 16. 

 
6.11 In line with neighbouring boroughs the Learning Skills Council agreed to provide the 

Borough with £20,000 to establish an Adult Education and Skills Forum.  Alan 
Lazell in discussions with the LSC secured agreement that £5,000 could be set 
aside to establish a Task Group to develop the recommendations arising from this 
Scrutiny Panel. 

 
6.12 Alan Lazell provided an article from the Times Educational Supplement which 

highlighted the shift in funding to post 16 Education and Adult Skills for Life, 
combined with a loss of traditional sources from the European Social Fund and 
Single Regeneration Budget.  This has lead to Voluntary and Community 
organisations no longer being able to sustain projects.  

 
7. Equalities and Diversity 
 
7.1 The Council’s agenda is clear around equalities and diversity, but the introduction of 

the Age Discrimination Act 2006, clearly identifies protection for those that are able 
to work, but does not take into account those who have now retired but still wish to 
be active in the Community, either by being able to participate in educational and 
community activities or having the opportunity to pass their experience and 
expertise onto others. 

 
7.2 The National Institute of Adult Continuing Education (NIACE) have provided 

guidelines to Further Education Colleges or Higher Education Institutes, which 
clearly states that all Adult Learners should be treated equally, and that providers 
should not discriminate unfairly on any of the grounds covered by the Council for 
Equality and Human Rights.  All Colleges of Further Education or Higher Education 
Institutes are complying with these guidelines to prevent any risk of a Tribunal might 
decide that the College must be covered the regulations.  They go on to say that 
older people are not necessarily poorer than younger people, so the justification for 
a fee discount should be on the individual circumstances and not age.   

 
8. Conclusion 
 
8.1 In essence the Panel felt very frustrated that the formula used by the Learning Skills 

Council did not take into account the deprivation in this Borough.  Whilst the Panel 
support education leading to examinations and skills for employment, they feel that 
this should not be the only route to be taken and it should take into account the 
health risk of those older people who still wish to continue being part of the 
community and engage in learning. 

 
8.2 The Panel recognised that there is a significant number of residents aged 60+ 

whose income is only marginally above the threshold at which fee concessions 
apply.  This prevents them from participating as fully as they might wish in 
educational activities.  

Page 95



 
8.3 The Panel were also made aware that many of the Borough’s older residents 

subsequently would give up the opportunity to continue in education as they could 
no longer afford it.  This in turn could lead to lack of social contact, depression, falls 
and dementia, and in the Panel‘s opinion lead to more pressure on other agencies. 

 
9. Thank you 
 
 The Panel would like to thank all the outside organisations and in particular the 

residents of the Borough, who have contributed to the findings of the Panel’s final 
report. 

 
Consultation 
 
Corporate Management Team 
Finance Department 
 
Background Papers 
Minutes of meetings held on 
 
26 September 2006 
12 October 2006 
31 October 2006 
21 November 2006 
11 December 2006 
23 January 2007 
12 February 2007 

Page 96



Questionnaire with Results Provided to Residents 
 
1) How many courses have you enrolled in this year? 
 4 one course and 5 none 
 
2) How many courses would you have liked to enrol in that you might have had the time 

to do? 
  6 one course, 3 two courses, 1 three courses 
 
3) Did the cost of courses affect the number of courses you enrolled in? 
 9 Yes, 1 No  
 
4) Did the cost of courses affect which course or courses you chose to enrol in and 

which you didn’t? 
 6 Yes, 2 No 
 
5) Does transport affect how many courses you attend? 
 10 No 

o Husband brought me in car 
o I have freedom pass I choose those within reasonable reach. 

 
6) Are there courses that you might like to enrol on that are not provided?  Please give 

examples. 
 5 No  

o The oil painting class which was cancelled. 
o Cannot think but variety is always an inventive to try. 
o Yes e.g. Ballroom or Latin Dancing 
o Woodwork 

 
7) Please provide any further comments or information that you feel we should be aware 

of. 
o They tell old people to keep busy and take up hobbies in their retirement and 

then make it almost impossible to do so being raising the fees 
o It made it difficult to do any 
o As I genuinely have difficulty finding extra rent and charges levied by this 

Council extortionately. 
o I feel that the increase was very substantial, making the difference of being able 

to attend a course or not – in my case not! 
o Not all of us have two pensions.  Not all of us qualify or want to apply for a free 

ride. 
o Yoga helped me after a serious R.T.A. cost me a job and left me impaired 

mobility.  We are told to keep active and fit why make it impossible. 
o By depriving pensioners of attending classes due to increase of fees will have 

an adverse effect on health and well being so increasing stress on NHS.  
Pensions do not increase at the same rate as services – another pressure on 
Pensioners. 

o If we could have paid by term, it would have helped with the cost.  I do a yoga 
class and helps me keep fit. 

o I think it was a big increase for people just on the boarder line. 
o Some classes have closed because of lack of students!  A direct result of 

removal of concessions. 
 

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



THE ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE 
 
Title: Annual Report of the Executive 2006/2007  
 

For Information 

Summary 
 
The Executive is responsible for: 

 
• Developing key policies and budget proposals for the Assembly's agreement; 
• Making decisions about Council strategies, services and finances, based on the 

policies set by the Assembly; 
• Ensuring all Council departments work well together in delivering services to local 

people; and 
• Ensuring the Council works well with other local organisations, such as the police 

and health services, for the benefit of the community. 
 
The Executive considered over 120 reports covering a range of local and regional issues 
such as the Council’s finances, the provision of a One Stop Shop in the Dagenham area, 
the regeneration of Barking Town Centre and other areas across the borough, the East 
London Transit scheme and the London Mayor’s proposals on climate change, transport, 
housing and economy and opportunity contained in the London Plan. 
 
The Executive also approved the implementation of improvements to the way that the 
Council provides services to its vulnerable children and adults as well as new 
arrangements for its in-house legal and printing services and the redesign of the Street 
Scene and waste service across the borough.   
 
Other key areas of work included: 
 
• the introduction of quarterly monitoring arrangements for the numerous projects that 

the Council is involved in as well as the key areas of performance against which the 
Council is judged; 

• the implementation of key strategies relating to, amongst others, community 
engagement and consultation, neighbourhood management and the rationalisation of 
office accommodation; 

• extensive plans to improve the Council’s housing stock through the Housing Futures 
programme; and 

• overseeing the arrangements for the Comprehensive Performance Assessment, 
carried out by the Audit Commission in early 2007, which resulted in Barking and 
Dagenham Council being judged as a ‘3 star’ (out of 4) Council for the way that it 
delivers services to its local residents. 

 
Contact: 
Councillor Fairbrass 
 
 
Amanda Thompson 

 
Chair 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Officer 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2116 
E-mail: charles.fairbrass@lbbd.gov.uk
 
Tel: 020 8227 3103 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

AGENDA ITEM 14

Page 99



Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: 
amanda.thompson@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
Consultees:  

 
• Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources  
• Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy & Partnerships) 
 

Background Papers used in the preparation of the report:  
 

Agendas and Minutes of Executive meetings 2006/07 
 

Page 100



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007  
 

REPORT OF THE CEREMONIAL COUNCIL  
 
Title: Annual Report of the Ceremonial Council 
2006/2007 
 

For Information 
 

Summary:  
 
There have been a number of presentations this year: 
 
• Borough Recognition Awards- 20 awards have been made to both individuals and 

organisations to recognise acts of bravery, charity activities, work with disadvantaged 
groups and achievement, including excellent customer services in a number of areas.  
 

• Police Commendation Award to PS John Goodwin for swift and excellent police work.  
 
• Certificates of Service to former councillors in appreciation of their services to the 

borough. 
 
• Sydney Russell Memorial Award to Reverend Roger Gayler for his tireless work for the 

community of Marks Gate for over 30 years.    
 
• Re-Presentation of Civic Trust Awards to Abbey Children’s Centre which received a 

Commendation, and Broadway Theatre Refurbishment, a Sponsored Award winner. 

• Re-Presentation of the Association for Public Service Excellence Award to Mickey 
Neale for Best Employee and Equality Initiative  for his achievements in setting up the 
Frizlands Learning Centre for staff. 
 

• Re-Presentation of the Gold Dagger Award to Linda Rhodes, Kathryn Abnett and Lee 
Sheldon for their non-fiction book “The Dagenham Murder”. 

 
• Re-Presentation of the London Planning Awards Commendation Certificate to The 

Castle Green Centre incorporating the Jo Richardson School under the category “Best 
built project contributing to London’s future”. 

 
Contacts: 
Councillor Dee Hunt 
 
Andrea Catlin 

Title:  
The Mayor 
 
Members’ Secretary & 
Leader’s PA 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2116 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2116 
Fax: 020 8227 2162 
E-mail: andrea.catlin@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
Consultees:  
Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources 
Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy and Partnerships) 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
• Agendas and minutes of the Ceremonial Council meetings 2006/07 

AGENDA ITEM 15

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

Title: Annual Report of the Scrutiny Management Board 
2006/2007 
 

For Information 

Summary: 
 
The principal role of the Board is to hold the Executive to account which it does through a 
number of ways including the process of Call-In.  
 
The Board seeks to encourage all non-Executive Members to become involved in the 
overview and scrutiny process, principally through the establishment of panels and other 
reviews to carry out short, sharp scrutinies on a particular topic.  Members can also bring 
suggested topics to the Board at any time.  
 
The Board continues to review services with lower quartile performance indicators and 
receives a regular report on the monthly Council Forward Plan.  The role of the Board is 
to ensure that key decisions contained in the Plan are taken properly.  Corporate 
Directors and Heads of Services report to the Board on matters arising from 
consideration of items on the Forward Plan. 
 
A Scrutiny Panel dedicated to looking at local health services on behalf of local residents 
has continued its work, raising local issues as well as focusing on the “Fit for the Future” 
Programme, a regional review of services across the country.  In this respect, Barking 
and Dagenham works very closely with the London Boroughs of Havering, Redbridge 
and Waltham Forest.  
 
The Board has an annual opportunity to scrutinise the Council’s budget proposals and 
also has its own scrutiny budget to support its work.  
 
Contact :  
Councillor Mrs P 
Twomey  
 
Val Dowdell  
 
 
 

Title: 
Chair of the Scrutiny 
Management Board 
 
Democratic Services 
Officer  
 

Contact Details:  
Tel: 020 8227 2116 
 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2756 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
E-mail: valerie.dowdell@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
1. Executive Challenge/Call-in 

 
1.1 Following a change last year in the process of call-in to introduce “a challenge” stage, 

the Board met to consider a total of six challenges to decisions from the Executive to 
see if they warranted a call-in.  The six were:  

 
• Contract for window cleaning services;  
• Contract for mechanical services repairs and maintenance 2007-2011; 
• Review of Community Forums five years on; 

AGENDA ITEM 16

Page 103



• Best Value Review of Information & Communication Technology (ICT); 
• The provision of private hire vehicles and those with escorts; 
• LBBD submission version of the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 

 
1.2 The Board agreed that the review of Community Forums and the Best Value Review of 

ICT did warrant call-ins but not the other four items. However, subsequent meetings of 
the Board upheld the Executive decision to disband the Community Forums. In relation 
to the ICT Best Value review, it was agreed, with the support of the Lead Member, that 
because of a lack of clarity those elements of the IT Service which were due to be 
outsourced would be withdrawn.  

 
2. Scrutiny Panels/ informal reviews 

 
2.1 Scrutiny Panels continued to be set up by the Board to look at specific areas of the 

Council’s work.  Scrutiny Panels that have been completed this year are: 
 
¾ Adult Education 60+ 
 
2.2 This review took place between July 2006 and February 2007 and arose from the 

receipt of a number of letters of complaint about the Adult College of Barking and 
Dagenham’s decision to withdraw age related fees concessions for residents aged 60 
plus.  

 
2.3  The Panel took evidence from residents who have been affected by the removal fees 

concessions, from the Adult College, their Governing Body, and from the Learning and 
Skills Council (LSC) that provides funding for the courses offered at the College.  

 
2.4 The Panel heard evidence from the medical professionals of the significant wider 

additional health and general well being benefits to be gained by older people through 
participation in educational activities. They were informed by Age Concern of the 
services and activities they provide, and how these might help fill gaps for residents 
caused as a result of the College fees increases.  The Panel did recognise, however, 
that the Age Discrimination Act 2006 would prevent the Adult College from offering 
concessions to fees for those residents not in receipt of benefits. 

 
2.5 Overall, the Panel was frustrated by the fact that no specific way forward could easily 

be identified to support those residents aged 60 plus who could not afford to pay fees 
at the full cost. However, the LSC agreed to make £20,000 available to East London 
Boroughs to establish an Adult Education Skills Forum, the purpose of which is to 
encourage greater partnership working in order to improve the qualifications held by 
residents and their job prospects. Given the particular concerns of the Scrutiny Panel, 
the LSC agreed to set aside a sum of £5,000 in order to establish an Adult Education 
60 plus Task Group that will report eventually through to the Adult Trust set up under 
the Barking & Dagenham Local Strategic Partnership. 

 
¾ Leasehold Management 

 
2.6 This panel was established to look closely at the activities of the leasehold 

management work of the Council’s right to buy team. The Panel concluded that there 
was scope for reviewing and improving the information given to leaseholders; that 
communication and consultation with leaseholders could be more effective, and that 
both would benefit from appropriate IT services. 

Page 104



 
2.7 The recommendations of the Panel were intended to develop both a better general 

relationship between the Council and leaseholders and a better understanding of the 
Council’s and leaseholders’ expectations of each other.  

 
¾ Follow up work 

 
2.8 An important part of the scrutiny process is to follow up the recommendations of 

scrutiny reports, and six months after final reports of panels have been accepted by the 
Assembly, progress reports, and how their recommendations are being implemented, 
are submitted to the Board. This year the Board received a progress report from the 
Community Consultation Scrutiny Panel. 

 
¾ Other Scrutiny Work  
 
2.9 As well as formal panels, the Board agrees from time to time to appoint two/three 

Members to consider/investigate less formally some of the topics on the list of future 
scrutiny panels and report back to the Board.  In the past year these have included: 

 
• Meals on Wheels  
• Redeployment process  
• Print Section  

 
3. Forward Plan 
 
3.1  Following regular review of the Council’s Forward Plan the Board have met Corporate 

Directors and/or other officers to discuss and, if appropriate, seek clarification on a 
number of matters.  These have included:  

 
• Asbestos Removal Strategy; 
• Older People Strategy; 
• Tenant Loyalty Reward Card; 
• Urban Redesign Framework Supplementary Planning Document; 
• Highways Maintenance; 
• Corporate Audit Strategy; 
• Review of Print Services; 
• Contract for the provision of Employment Services for people with Learning 

Disabilities; 
• Cost of Disposal and arrangement (for disposing of confidential waste); 
• Planning and Design Matters; 
• Leisure Assets Strategy – our Sporting Future; 
• Barking Riverside; 
• Redevelopment of Barking Town Centre and the Heathway; 
• Street naming and numbering service – revised procedures and introductions of 

fees and charges; 
 

3.2 All Members of the Council have been invited to presentations on Regeneration and 
Neighbourhood Management. 

 

Page 105



4. Health Scrutiny  
 

4.1 Since January 2003, local authorities have had the power to look into and report on 
local health services on behalf of residents.  A dedicated Health Scrutiny Panel has 
been set up to carry out this work.  

 
4.2 The Health Scrutiny Panel submitted its Annual Report to the SMB in April 2007.  The 

main aspects to note in relation to the work of the Panel are:  
 

• Considered the Government’s framework to set up Local Involvement Networks 
(LINks), which replaces the patient forums and is to be established for every local 
authority area with social services responsibilities.  LINks will have the power to 
refer matters to the Health Scrutiny Panel and receive appropriate responses; 

• The Panel submitted a response to the London Dental Health and Education 
Partnership consultation paper ‘A Vision for Londoners’ Oral Health 2016’; 

• Agreed to the Barking and Dagenham Primary Care Trust carrying out a public 
consultation as to the proposals for refurbished healthcare facilities to be developed 
on the Barking Hospital site in Upney Lane; 

• A delegation of three Members from Scrutiny, Councillor Mrs. Twomey, Councillor 
Mrs. West and Councillor J Denyer, is to participate in the public consultation of the 
Outer North East London review of health services entitled ‘Fit for the Future’. 
Members will form part of a cross borough scrutiny, with representatives from 
London Borough of Havering, London Borough of Redbridge and London Borough 
of Waltham Forest.   The public consultation has been delayed until October 2007; 

• The Panel has been regularly updated by the North East London Mental Health 
Trust on the Mascalls Park reprovision project and the impending review of mental 
health services.   

 
5. Lower Quartile Departmental Performance Indicators  
 
5.1 As well as inviting Corporate Directors to report on lower quartile performance 

indicators (PI’s) and action to improve performance, the Board also welcomed Tony 
Estaugh, Borough Police Commander, to their meeting in November to learn of the 
actions being taken by the Police to improve the PI’s in relation to domestic burglaries, 
violent crimes and the number of vehicle crimes over the past twelve months.  

 
5.2  As a result of reviewing the Regeneration Department’s PI’s the Board expressed a 

wish to find out how other authorities secure better results with regard BVPI 187 which 
relates to key borough footpaths.  A visit was undertaken to Lewisham. 

 
 

Consultees:  
 
• Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources  
• Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy & Partnerships) 
 

Background Papers used in the preparation of the report:  
 

Agendas and Minutes of Scrutiny Management Board meetings 2006/07 

Page 106



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL BOARD 
 
Title: Annual Report of the Development Control Board 
2006 / 2007 

For Information 

 
Summary: 
 
The Board has considered 118 new planning applications as follows-  
 

 No of decisions in 
line with officers’ 
recommendations 

No of decisions 
against officers’ 
recommendation 

No of 
deferred 

decisions 

No of 
applications 
withdrawn 

 
May 2006 – 
April 2007 
 

 
100 

 
10 

 
1 

 
7 

 
During this time 34 town planning appeals were lodged with the Planning Inspectorate, of 
which 14 were allowed and 20 dismissed. 
 
In addition to planning applications the Board was advised of the current status of Best 
Value Performance Indicator 204, which relates to the number of appeals lost by the 
Council, and which potentially has a significant bearing on the Council’s Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment rating. 
 
It also received a report summarising the outcome of the Government’s consultation on 
the devolution of additional powers to the Greater London Authority (GLA), the changes 
that were decided as a result, and the potential implications for planning in Barking and 
Dagenham. The report also looked at the current consultation on how ‘strategically 
important planning applications’ are defined.  The Board made an appropriate response. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Councillor I.S Jamu 
 
 
 
Guy Butterworth 

Title: 
Chair of the 
Development Control 
Board 
 
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2116 
 
 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2119 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
E-mail: guy.butterworth@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 
Consultees: 
 
• Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources 
• Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy and Partnerships) 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
• Agendas and minutes of Development Control Board meetings 2006/07 

AGENDA ITEM 17

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE LICENSING AND REGULATORY BOARD 
 

Title: Annual Report of the Licensing and Regulatory 
Board 2006/2007 
 

For Information 
 

Summary:  
 
The Board has considered 23 different applications under the Licensing Act 2003 in the 
last 12 months, with the outcome being:  
 

Applications 
Granted 

Applications 
Partially 
Granted 

Applications 
Refused 

Applications 
Withdrawn 

16 1 5 2 
 

 
Applications considered by the Board included those relating to premises licences for 
pubs, members’ clubs, community halls, service stations, parks, off licences, restaurants 
and personal licences. 

 
The Board also considered an application on behalf of the Police that reviewed the 
premises licence of a nightclub, which had been closed due to its poor record with regard 
to crime and disorder. 
 
In addition, the Board also considered: 
 
• the revocation of a street trading licence under the London Local Authorities Act 1994 

(as amended) 
• an application for a sex establishment licence under the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 
• the adoption of a procedure for determining future review applications under the 

Licensing Act 2003 
 
The Board also decided that in future it would be beneficial for the Borough Police 
Commander to meet with Board Members to discuss joint working arrangements and that 
these should take place every six months. 
 
The Board also received separate briefings on the implications for local authorities of the 
Gambling Act 2005 and the national Smoking Ban coming into force in July 2007. 
 
Contact: 
 
Cllr Lee Waker  
 
Guy Butterworth 

Title: 
 
Chair of the Board 
 
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Contact Details: 
 
0208 227 2116 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2119 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
E-mail: 
guy.butterworth@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

AGENDA ITEM 18

Page 109



 
Consultees: 
 
• Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources 
• Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy and Partnerships) 
• Clive Vallis, Licensing Development Officer 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
• Minutes of Licensing and Regulatory Board meetings 2006 / 2007 

Page 110



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE PERSONNEL BOARD 
 
Title: Annual Report of the Personnel Board 2006/2007 
 

For Information 

Summary:  
 
The main focus of the Board’s work this year has been cases of redundancy, which 
totalled 23 across departments. 
 
The Board also heard two appeals; one in relation to a written warning, which was upheld, 
and the other a dismissal for gross misconduct, which was dismissed. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Councillor P Waker 
 
 
John Dawe 

Title: 
Chair of the Personnel 
Board 
 
Democratic Services 
Officer 
 

Contact Details: 
E-mail: phillip.waker@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2135 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
E-mail: john.dawe@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Consultees: 
 
• Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources  
• Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy and Partnerships) 
• Jan Southwell, Assistant Head of Human Resources (Employee Relations) 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
• Agendas and Minutes of Personnel Board meetings 2006/07. 

AGENDA ITEM 19

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Title: Annual Report of the Standards Committee 
2006/2007 
 

For Information 
 

Summary:  
 
The Standards Committee is responsible for promoting and maintaining high standards of 
conduct by all Members and employees of the Council and to assist them in observing 
relevant Codes of Conduct. 
 
Last year, following the annual review of the Council’s Constitution, Article 8 Part B was 
amended to stipulate that the Chair of the Standards Committee should be an independent 
member and not a Councillor.  In that respect Mrs Fiona Fairweather was appointed Chair for 
2006/07. 
 
The Committee reviews, on an annual basis, all policies and procedures relating to ethical 
standards and various codes, policies and protocols.  These include: 
 
� Guide for Members’ Use of Council Resources, Facilities and Equipment 
� Benefits Fraud Policies  

� Member/Employee Relations’ Protocol  
� Whistle Blowing Policy  

It was agreed that no amendments were required to any of these documents for the coming 
year. 
 
� Standards for Members of the Public (Volunteers) Undertaking Council Activities - 

The Assembly supported the Committee’s proposed revision to the Standards to extend 
the General Behaviour provisions to make reference to members of the public not using 
their status to promote any organisation when undertaking voluntary activities on behalf 
of the Council. 

 
� Conferences, Visits and Hospitality Rules - The Committee has asked for a further 

report be presented later this year on the follow up and other assurance work to be 
undertaken arising from areas of concern highlighted by an internal audit of these Rules.

 
� Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy - The Committee reviewed and supported the 

proposed changes to the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy and Strategy 
together with the creation of a Corporate Anti-Fraud Team. 

 
The Government’s new draft Model Code of Conduct for Local Authority Members was 
presented together with comments on a consultation paper which incorporated views 
expressed previously by Members of the Council.  Further reports on this Model Code and 
also proposed changes to the role and responsibilities of Standards Committees will be 
considered by the Committee over the coming year. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 20

Page 113



 

As part of its yearly work programme the Committee also received annual reports from the 
Monitoring Officer, the Whistle Blowing Officer, the Head of Human Resources and the Head 
of Strategic Finance and Audit. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Alan Dawson 

Title: 
Democratic Services 
Team Manager 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2348 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
E-mail: alan.dawson@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
Consultees: 
 
The following were consulted in the preparation of this report 
 
• Mrs F Fairweather, Chair of the Standards Committee 
• Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources  
• Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy and Partnerships) 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
• Agendas and minutes of Standards Committee meetings 2006/2007. 

Page 114



THE ANNUAL ASSEMBLY 
 

16 MAY 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Title: Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2006/2007 
 

For Information 

Summary 
 
This is the first year for the Committee, which was established in May 2006 to provide an 
independent assurance of the adequacy of the Council’s risk management framework, 
independent scrutiny of the Authority’s financial performance and related major finance 
and non-financial systems and controls, as well as overseeing the financial reporting 
process. 
 
To maintain transparency and add expert advice Bill Roots, the former Chief Executive 
and Director of Finance at Westminster City Council, was invited and agreed to take on the 
role of an Independent Advisor to the work of the Committee.  

 
The Committee has dealt with a range of issues including: 
 
� an overview of the Council’s financial position through the submission of the 2004/05 

Grant Certification Letter, Statement of Accounts and Statement on Internal Control for 
2005/06 as well as the Audit Commission Judgment on the Use of Resources which 
contributed to the Council’s overall 3 Star CPA rating; 

� internal and external auditor reviews of financial and other key systems 
� a review of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy Strategy 
� a new Audit Strategy aligned to the Council’s key risks 
� reports on IT Computer Controls 
� the Annual Report of the Head of Strategic Finance and Audit which focused on the 

investigative work of the internal Audit Section. 
 

As this was the first year of the Committee a work plan was established for 2006/07 to 
match the annual cycle of work on the Authority’s financial statements and other aspects 
of its financial administration. The Programme has importantly built in time for training 
Members.  
 
Contact: 
Councillor S. Carroll 
 
 
Amanda Thompson 

 
Chair 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Officer 

 
Tel: 020 8596 5983 
E-mail: shaun.carroll@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8227 3103 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: amanda.thompson@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
Consultees: 
• Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources 
• Nina Clark, Assistant Chief Executive (Democracy and Partnerships) 
• Patrick Clackett, Head of Strategic Finance and Audit 
• Joe Chesterton, Divisional Director of Corporate Finance 

AGENDA ITEM 21

Page 115



 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report: 
Agendas and Minutes of Audit Committee meetings 2006/07 
 

Page 116


